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The Lord maKes firm the steps of the one who delights in him;

Psalm 37:23
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MEHE

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
wEE T EREET EREET E¥EET B%EER
Consolidated income statement LA R
for the year ended 31 March BE3IH31HIEE
Revenue A 3,330.9 3,647.2 3,891.6 3,940.8 3,401.7
Profit/(loss) for the year SRR () 250.9 233.5 172.2 92.1 (189.8)
Interim dividend paid Bk HRE 33.3 37.7 37.7 20.9 -
Final dividend proposed BERAHIR S 42.8 33.5 38.7 10.5 -
Special dividend proposed BEIRAS I A B 9.5 5.2 - - -
Consolidated balance sheet HREEARE
as at 31 March 3A31 A&E
Assets B 2,330.5 2,761.5 2,965.8 3,091.4 2,958.4
Less: Liabilities and W AR
non-controlling interests P 22 1,157.7 1,364.5 1,507.5 1,644.9 1,728.6
Shareholders’ funds R B 4 1,172.8 1,397.0 1,458.3 1,446.5 1,229.8
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
iR T VST iR ST i T BET
Per share data fFE R
Farnings/(loss) (restated) B/ (B8 (F51) 0.239 0.223 0.164 0.088 (0.182)
Interim dividend paid BRI E 0.035 0.036 0.036 0.02 -
Final dividend proposed BERA IR S 0.045 0.032 0.037 0.01 -
Special dividend proposed BEIREER IR B 0.010 0.005 - - -
Shareholders’ funds (restated) PR G 4 (T ) 1.121 1.335 1.394 1.382 1.175

Note: Earnings per share and shareholders” funds per share of 2012 is restated to take up the effect of the bonus issue of shares during the
year ended 31 March 2013.

BRFRE © 2012 409 RE BB A S R O RO 4 T 28 E 3 > DARE AR 2013 4F 3 A 31 H IR 4R FEAL B BEA TR 28 o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

The directors of the Company (the “Board”) submit their report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the
financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by operating
segment is set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 40.

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2015: HK$0.02 per
ordinary share).

The directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: HK$0.01 per
ordinary share).

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations of HK$293,000.

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the shares issued in the year ended 31 March 2016 are
set out in note 21 to the financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 1 of this
annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2016, the distributable reserves of the Company
available for distribution as dividends to shareholders amounted
to HK$79,568,000 (2015: HK$61,309,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s

Bye-laws although there is no restriction against such rights under
the laws in Bermuda.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

Group Turnover decreased by 13.7% (FX neutral: 10.7%)

- Group Gross Profit Margin down 1.6 percentage point to
59.7%

- Group Net Loss at HK$190.0 million
- Inventory reduced by HK$229.1 million, or 17.3% y-o-y
- Net cash inflow from operating activities of HK$226 million

The Group’s businesses comprise principally of watch retailing
(“CITY CHAIN"), optical retailing (“OPTICAL 88” and “eGG
Optical Boutique”); and the wholesale trading of watches
(“SEIKO”). Operating around 640 shops in Hong Kong, Macau,
Mainland China, Singapore, Malaysia and Thailand, our
businesses offer affordable lifestyle products and quality services
targeting middle class consumers in Asia.

In the financial year under review, the slowdown in emerging
economies, volatile stock markets, a strong US dollar and a weak
yuan contributed to weak consumer sentiment, falling tourist
numbers and sluggish domestic consumption in markets where
the Group operates.

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group recorded a decline
in turnover of 13.7% (FX neutral: 10.7 %) to HK$3,401.7 million
(2015: HK$3,940.8 million) and a loss attributable to the Group’s
equity holders of HK$190.0 million (2015: net profit of HK$91.8
million).

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

The Group would report a loss attributable to shareholders
of HK$88.8 million (2015: Profit of HK$147.4 million) after
excluding (i) the non cash impact of an increase in the liability
component of convertible bonds of HK$71.3 million (2015:
HK$55.4 million); (ii) a provision made for onerous leases of shops
of HK$17.6 million (2015: HK$0.2 million); (iii) an impairment of
intangible assets related to our Swiss movement assembly facilities
of HK$26.4 million (2015: nil); and (iv) the bargain purchase and
fair value gain made on acquisition of a subsidiary of HK$14.1
million (2015: nil).

During the year under review, the Group adopted a two pronged
strategy to reduce inventory and maintain a stable cash flow.
Group net cash inflows from operating activities increased to
HK$226 million (2015: HK$81.0 million) and Group inventory
stood at HK$1,098.6 million, down 17.3% (2015: HK$1,327.7
million) against that as at 31 March 2015; with the size of
inventory reduction outpacing the decline in turnover as inventory
turnover days was shortened to 293 days (2015: 318 days).

The gross profit margin for the Group narrowed to 59.7%
compared to 61.3% in FY2014/15 as aggressive promotional
incentives were implemented to drive sales in a market severely
impacted by the downturn. However, due to the more resilient
nature of the optical business, Optical 88 and eGG, were able to
maintain gross profit margins at stable levels.

Group operating costs fell by 2.1% to HK$ 2,160.4 million (2015:
HK$ 2,207.3 million). The Group expects operating costs to be
further reduced in FY2016/17. We have seen some softening of
shop rentals towards the end of Q4 FY15/16, in Hong Kong, and
we expect to see further downward pressure.

Group net debt decreased by around 5.6% to HK$521.7 million
(2015: HK$552.4 million) whilst Group gearing ratio edged up
to 42.4% (2015: 38.2%). Excluding convertible bonds, bank
borrowings net of bank balance was reduced to HK$75.3 million
(2015: HK$171.7 million) with increased operating cash inflow.

FINAL DIVIDEND

Due to the challenging operating environment, the Board does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31
March 2016 (2015: HK$0.01 per ordinary share).

EEEFWE D (&)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

CITY CHAIN GROUP

- City Chain Group turnover down 18.5%
- City Chain Group LBIT of HK$31.0 million

City Chain Group with around 350 stores in Hong Kong, Macau,
Mainland China, Singapore, Thailand and Malaysia together with on-
line stores at http://citychain.tmall.com/ and http://titus.tmall.com/
posted a decrease in turnover of 18.5% to HK$1,803.8 million
(2015: HK$2,212.5 million) whilst recording a LBIT of HK$31.0
million (2015: EBIT of HK$189.4 million) due to the decline in
turnover and a squeeze on gross profit margin. However, tight
inventory management and prudent stock replenishment led to
faster stock turnover and inventory was reduced by 32.2% y-o-y.

Hong Kong and Macau

City Chain Hong Kong and Macau saw turnover falling by 20.3%
to HK$1,169.9 million. (2015: HK$1,467.4 million). This was due
to the decline in Mainland Chinese tourist traffic and associated
spending fall, together with the general economic slowdown in
Hong Kong and Macau.

With the decrease in turnover and narrowed gross profit
margin triggered by promotions to boost consumer purchase,
dis-economies of scale hit bottom line and EBIT decreased to
HK$43.9 million (2015: HK$244.3 million). This was despite
operating costs (other than shop rentals) dropping by 12.2%. The
Group is also streamlining fixed costs to reduce the ratio of fixed
costs to turnover whilst retaining more flexibility with variable
costs. Inventory was reduced by 29.9% y-o-y.

Mainland China

Our operations in Mainland China faced a very challenging
operating environment following volatile stock markets and the
depreciation of the yuan in mid 2015 and a further slowdown of
the Chinese economy in the second half of FY 2015/16. Turnover
fell by 5.6% (FX neutral: 3.3%) to HK$218.0 million (2015:
HK$230.9 million) with a corresponding decrease in number
of shops. LBIT widened to HK$74.7 million (2015: HK$55.1
million).

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Our e-business saw strong turnover growth. This momentum is
expected to continue in FY2016/17. The fast growing Mainland
online market is an important focal point and key to our O,0
strategy. To capture this growth, we continue to invest in our
e-business by enriching the product mix and appeal of our house
brands through increased marketing.

Mainland China continues to be the focus for the long term
development of City Chain both online and offline.

South East Asia

With reduced number of shops in Thailand and Singapore and
the introduction of GST in Malaysia, turnover dropped by 19.1%
to HK$415.9 million (2015: HK$514.1 million) and a minor loss
of HK$0.2 million (2015: EBIT of HK$ 0.3 million) was posted.
Following a dissatisfactory performance in the first half, we saw a
profit contribution in the second half.

The losses in Singapore and Thailand were contained in
FY2015/16 with disciplined management of operating costs and
closure of non-performing shops. Malaysia remains a profitable
market despite the adverse external conditions.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

OPTICAL 88 GROUP

- Optical 88 Group turnover down 10.3%
- Optical 88 Group EBIT down 46.7% to HK$32.6 million

Given cautious local consumption, Optical 88 Group with around
220 stores in Hong Kong, Macau, Mainland China, Singapore,
Thailand and Malaysia posted a decrease in turnover of 10.3%
to HK$1,092.2 million (2015: HK$1,218.1 million) and a
corresponding decline in EBIT to HK$32.6 million (2015: EBIT
of HK$61.2 million). Through a committed focus on providing
differentiated professional eye care services, gross profit margin
improved. Further, y-o-y, inventory was reduced by 19.3%.

Hong Kong and Macau

With weak local consumption and reduced tourist spend, Hong
Kong and Macau posted a turnover decrease of 9.2% to HK$758.5
million (2015: HK$835.6 million) with EBIT falling by 44.5% to
HK$52.9 million (2015: HK$95.4 million) but a healthy gross
profit margin was maintained. Operating costs other than shop
rentals dropped by 4.6%.

We are targeting the market potential of aging demographics and
the ever increasing demand of children with eye-care needs. The
Group is also developing the market for hearing aid care and so far
results have been within expectations. Therefore, we will continue
to further explore and develop this in the next year.

Mainland China

Amid weak market sentiment and fierce competition, our
Mainland China business maintained turnover at HK$105.0
million (2015: HK$105.8 million) and achieved a significant
reduction in loss to HK$9.7 million (2015: HK$27.5 million),
contributed by profit growth in Southern China. Excluding Eastern
China, where operations have ceased, Mainland China turnover
in local currency terms edged up 5.2% and loss fell to HK$8.4
million (2015: HK$20.2 million). Southern China reported almost
break-even results in the second half of FY2015/16 as operating
costs decreased by 4.0% y-o-y.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

South East Asia

Faced with sluggish domestic consumption and depreciation of
local currencies, turnover declined by 17.3% to HK$228.7 million
(2015: HK$ 276.7 million) and a loss of HK$ 10.6 million (2015:
HK$6.7 million) was reported. Gross profit margin in Thailand
was under pressure whilst gross profit margin in Malaysia saw an
uplift.

However, bottom line performance in Southeast Asia greatly
improved, turning to a profit in the second half of FY2015/16 with
positive contributions from Thailand and Malaysia.

Well contained operating costs helped to alleviate the unfavorable
decline in gross profit and the loss in Singapore narrowed in the
second half of FY2015/16.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

eGG OPTICAL BOUTIQUE

- Turnover up 42.5% to HK$161.6 million
- Breakeven in Hong Kong
- Positive same store sales growth

With the gradual roll out of eGG, there are currently 23 stores in
Hong Kong, 38 stores in Mainland China and 7 stores in Southeast
Asia. Organic growth contributed to a turnover of HK$161.6
million, a rise of 42.5% from FY2014/15. (2015: HK$113.4
million).

eGG Hong Kong has gained popularity achieving a pleasing
turnover growth of 43.4% to HK$102.4 million (2015: HK$71.4
million) and almost breakeven results (2015: loss of HK$0.7
million).

In Mainland China, turnover was sharply up by 40.7% as there
were further shop rollouts in Southwestern China and Guangdong.
Loss increased to HK$20.1 million (2015: HK$15.3 million) due
to initial diseconomies of scale associated with new shops. The
Group maintains a positive view on the prospects of eGG in
Mainland China.

eGG was started in Malaysia and Singapore in FY2015/16 and
results achieved so far have been within expectations. There are
plans for further roll out.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT AND WHOLESALE TRADING

This business division is made up of the Group’s supply chain and
watch and optical wholesale units.

Turnover decreased by 13.3% to HK$344.1 million (2015:
HK$396.9 million) due to the slowdown in the Group’s watch and
optical wholesale businesses hit by a contraction in orders from
retailers.

In view of the current sluggish sentiment in the traditional Swiss
made mechanical watch market segment, a non-cash impairment
of HK$26.4 million was made with respect to our Swiss subsidiary
engaged in the manufacture and assembly of Swiss mechanical
watch movements. This impairment resulted in EBIT falling to
HK$10.2 million (2015: HK$85.1 million).

OUTLOOK

As we expect the soft retail climate in the regions where we
operate to persist in the foreseeable future, we shall continue in
FY2016/17 with prudent strategies adopted in FY2015/16, such
as maintaining healthy cash flow; reducing/containing costs and
CAPEX; and maintaining strict inventory control.

Nevertheless, we believe that the middle class demographic will
continue to expand and favorable consumption patterns will
eventually return. Therefore, our vision to transform the Group
into a major retailer in Greater China has not changed and remains
pivotal to the Group’s future growth.

FINANCE

The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 March 2016 was 42.4%
(2015: 38.2%). Group gearing ratio was calculated based on
the Group’s net debt of HK$521.7 million (2015: HK$552.4
million) and shareholders’ funds of HK$1,229.8 million (2015:
HK$1,446.5 million). The Group’s net debt was calculated based
on the Group’s borrowings of HK$674.5 million (2015: HK$631.8
million) and convertible bonds of HK$446.4 million (2015:
HK$380.7 million) less the Group’s bank balances and cash of
HK$599.2 million (2015: HK$460.1 million).

Of the Group’s borrowings at balance sheet date, HK$656.4
million (2015: HK$579.7 million) were repayable within 12
months.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Of the Group’s borrowings, 3% (2015: 3%) were denominated in
foreign currencies. The Group’s bank borrowings denominated
in Hong Kong Dollars were on a floating rate basis at either bank
prime lending rates or short term inter-bank offer rates.

Prior to the date of this report, the Group has obtained a one-off
waiver from a bank from strict compliance with certain covenant
requirement of a bank borrowing amounted to HK$222,364,000.

The Group does not engage in speculative derivative trading.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group does not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

On 23 June 2016, the Company announced that the Company
entered into an amendment deed with the holder of convertible
bonds of HK$371,022,600 issued on 18 December 2012, (the
“Convertible Bonds”) to early redeem the outstanding Convertible
Bonds at 100% of their principal amount, to pay the accrued
coupon interest of HK$6,493,000 up to 18 December 2016,
and a sum equivalent to a payment for the put option of the
Convertible Bonds (if the put option in the original Convertible
Bond Instrument has not been exercised on or prior to the early
redemption date) of HK$111,306,780 on or before 30 September
2016.

STAFF

The Group’s remuneration policies are reviewed on a regular
basis and remuneration packages are in line with market practices
in the relevant countries where the Group operates. As of 31
March 2016, the Group had 3,668 (2015: 3,876) employees. The
Group offers KPI related bonuses to eligible employees based on
the performance of the Group and the individual employee. The
Group also provides related training programmes to improve the
quality, competence and skills of its employees.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(retirement effective from 1 July 2015)

Joseph C. C. Wong
Vincent Lau Tak Bui
Wallace Kwan Chi Kin
Sakorn Kanjanapas

Mary Ma Xuezheng

(also known as Mary Ma)
Alex Wong Yu Tsang
(also known as Alex Wong)
Nelson Wu Chun Sang
Lawrence Wu Chi Man
Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

(resignation effective on the Early
Redemption Date)

(resignation effective on the Early
Redemption Date)

(independent non-executive)

(independent non-executive)

(independent non-executive)

Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui resigned on 1 July 2015 as executive
director of the Company due to retirement.

Due to the early redemption by the Company of the
HK$371,022,600 convertible bonds due 2017 issued by the
Company on 18 December 2012 (the “Convertible Bonds”),
the outstanding Convertible Bonds shall be redeemed no later
than 30 September 2016 (the “Early Redemption Date”), Ms. Ma
Xuezheng (also known as Mary Ma) and Mr. Wong Yu Tsang, Alex
(also known as Alex Wong) have tendered their resignations as
non-executive directors of the Company with effect from the Early
Redemption Date.

Each of Mr. Lau, Ms. Ma and Mr. Wong have confirmed that they
have no disagreement with the Board and nothing relating to the
affairs of the Company needed to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company.

In accordance with Bye-law 110(A), Mr. Nelson Wu Chun
Sang and Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr. Joseph C. C.
Wong, Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas, Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin and
Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui (up to 1 July 2015) are also directors
in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Other directors of the
Company’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong during the year and up
to the date of this report are: Ms. Caroline Chong Sue Peng, Mr.
William Hui Kin Wai, Mr. Cheng Hok Yuk, Ms. Stella Chow Yin
Oi, Mr. Lancelot Lo Kwun Fung, Mr. Wong Kai Kwong, Ms. Emily
Choy Pik Yin, Ms. Leung Sze Mun and Mr. Johnny Chan Koon Kiu.

No director has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the employer within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The Company’s directors have formal letters of appointment
setting out the key terms and conditions of their appointment.
During the year, Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong, Mr. Wallace Kwan
Chi Kin and Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui (up to 1 July 2015) were
each eligible to an annual bonus determinable under the terms
of a KPI based executive bonus scheme with respect to their
management of the Group. Provision for the bonuses in respect
of the directors eligible under the executive bonus scheme for the
year ended 31 March 2016 amounted to HK$9,936,000 (2015:
HK$16,945,000).

Apart from the foregoing, no other transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s businesses to
which the Company's subsidiaries or its holding company was a party
and in which a director of the Company and the director's connected
party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Joseph C. C. WONG, aged 56, was appointed executive director
of the Company in 1986. Mr. Wong undertook his tertiary
studies in the United Kingdom. He graduated from the University
of Bradford with a B.Sc. in Industrial Engineering (First Class
Honours). Mr. Wong also holds a M.Sc. (with Distinction) in
Operational Research from the University of Southampton. Mr.
Wong is the Founding Honorary Patron of the HKU Foundation
for Education Development and Research and has been serving
the Board of Directors of the Foundation for over 15 years. He is
also a member of the Court of the University of Hong Kong. He
was awarded an Honorary Fellowship by the University of Hong
Kong in 2012. He is a brother of Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas, a non-
executive director of the Company.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES (continued)

Directors

Vincent LAU Tak Bui (retirement effective on 1 July 2015), aged
58, was appointed executive director of the Company in 2006.
Mr. Lau was CEO of the Thong Sia Group of Companies (“Thong
Sia Group”) (acquired by the Company in September 2005)
between 2002 and 2012. He was appointed Vice-Chairman of
Thong Sia Group in 2012. He is an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Up till Mr. Lau’s
retirement, he was Group Chief Operating Officer.

Wallace KWAN Chi Kin, aged 46, joined the Group in November
2011 as Group Finance Director and was appointed an executive
director and Chief Financial Officer of the Company in July
2013. Mr. Kwan holds a Bachelor of Social Science Degree
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He also holds a
Master of Business Administration Degree from the University of
Manchester and a Master of Laws in Corporate & Financial Law
from The University of Hong Kong. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and also a fellow
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Kwan
has over 20 years of experience in financial management having
worked at an international audit firm and listed companies.

Sakorn KANJANAPAS, aged 66, was appointed a non-executive
director of the Company in 1987. He is a brother of the Chairman
and CEO of the Company.

Mary MA Xuezheng, aged 64, was appointed a non-executive
director of the Company in December 2012. Ms. Ma graduated
from Capital Normal University. She was appointed a non-
executive director of the Securities and Futures Commission
on 15 November 2013. She is a Managing Partner of Boyu
Capital Advisory Co. Ltd., the adviser to the investment fund
which ultimately owns Sapphire Illuminatus Holdings Limited.
Prior to Boyu Capital, Ms. Ma was a Partner of TPG Capital and
co-Chairman of TPG China where she primarily focused on
investments in the Greater China region. Before joining TPG,
Ms. Ma was a Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
of Lenovo Group Ltd. Ms. Ma has been a member of the Lenovo
board since 1997 and currently serves as non-executive Vice
Chairman, a role she has served since 2007. She is also a non-
executive director of Wumart Stores, Inc. and a non-executive
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES (continued)

Directors (continued)

director of Unilever N.V. and Unilever PLC. Between 2009
and 2011, Ms. Ma was a non-executive director of Daphne
International Holdings Ltd. Between 2009 and 2013, Ms. Ma
was a member of the Listing Committee of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and between 2004 and 2013, was an independent
non-executive director of Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong)
Limited. Ms. Ma has been a member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors since 2000. Ms. Ma worked for The Chinese Academy
of Sciences before joining Lenovo.

Alex WONG Yu Tsang, aged 38, was appointed a non-executive
director of the Company in December 2012. Mr. Wong holds
a Bachelor of Business Administration degree (First Class
Honours) from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr. Wong
is an executive director of Boyu Capital Advisory Co. Ltd., the
adviser to the investment fund which ultimately owns Sapphire
[lluminatus Holdings Limited. Prior to Boyu Capital, Mr. Wong
was an executive director at Goldman Sachs’ Principal Investment
Area. Prior to this, Mr. Wong was a consultant in McKinsey &
Company’s Corporate Finance Practice.

WU Chun Sang, aged 59, was appointed an independent non-
executive director of the Company in 2004. He is a Macau
Registered Auditor. He is also a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, UK and an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Lawrence WU Chi Man, aged 58, was appointed an independent
non-executive director of the Company in 2005. He graduated
from Bristol University, UK with a BSc(Eng) and PhD in
Aeronautical Engineering. He is a Professor at the Department of
Physics and Material Science at the City University of Hong Kong.
He is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers (HKIE). He
is also a Council Member of the HKIE. He received the Taishan (=
LLIE235) Scholar award from the Shandong Provincial Government
in 2012.

Agnes KWONG Yi Hang, aged 57, holds a PhD in Molecular
Immunology from the University of Hong Kong. She was
appointed an independent non-executive director of the Company
in 2006. She is a director of Health Wisdom Limited, the company
is a health consultancy.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES (continued)

Chief Counsel and Company Secretary

Caroline CHONG, aged 54, joined the Group in 1997. She
graduated from the University of Kent, United Kingdom with a
Bachelor of Arts (Law) (Hons) degree. She is admitted as a Barrister
in England and Wales, and, Hong Kong. She heads the Group
Legal and Corporate Secretariat and Group Human Resources.
Ms. Chong was awarded the “Managing IP In-House Award”
organised by the Euromoney Legal Media Group in 2012 to
recognize leading lawyers.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company and its subsidiaries did not set up or operate any
share option scheme for the year ended 31 March 2016 and up to
the date of publication of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of the
directors, and the Company’s chief executive in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies were as follows:
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEREE
S
DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ESERRP - HRRENER (&)
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (continued) EE s (E)
(@)  The Company — Ordinary shares (@ ANFE A
Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company TR 1] Z SR R R 17 2 47 B
Approximate
Number of shares percentage of
R EE issued share
Corporate/ capital
Personal Family trust interest Other HE 8T
Name of Director interest interest EE interest Total BAZ
EEHS B ARER REER ErERER Hihigz Hwy SR EI
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 548,474,814 11,000 1,195,100 - 549,680,914 52.53
HOHHE G (Note 2)
(hfit 2)
Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin - - - - - -
B AR B R
Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas 67,221,078 - 1,195,100 - 68,416,178 6.54
HANTIEAE (Note 1) (Note 2)
(BtaE1) (Bt 2)
Notes: B -
(1) Options granted by Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas to Mr. Joseph C.C. (1) EANLeAR T RIS A B 20124R8 ] 27 H
Wong to purchase such shares within a period of 3 years from 27 AT 3 AR 3T AL S A B 0 4 S HE L 778 2015 48
August 2012 lapsed on 27 August 2015. 8 727 HIRAL -

(2) Yee Hing Company Limited, directly and indirectly through (2) 2016453 A 31 H » FEBLAT BRA W) B4 ok [ 3%

its subsidiary including Active Lights Company Limited, held 40 38 FLIfF B 23 | Active Lights Company Limited
1,195,100 shares of the Company as at 31 March 2016. 55% of the FEAAN T 1,195,100 KA © Klayze Holdings
total issued ordinary shares of Yee Hing Company Limited is held by Limited A/E 2 —JHMI S (5 5T ([{5 € ) < 2Rt A &
Klayze Holdings Limited, which is the trustee of a discretionary trust By FE A R A A AR E 8 T AL 2 55% HE
(the “Trust”). Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong and Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas %o HAIE AR RO AR AL Z R
are the beneficiaries of the Trust and were therefore deemed to be WAL 2oy 2 A GE IR F B BR A Wl 2 RERR T A
interested in 1,195,100 shares of the Company through the Trust’s AN ) 1,195,100 B AnRERS o

interest in Yee Hing Company Limited.

1 7 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEERESE
S
DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ESERRP HRRENER (E)
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (continued) EE o (E)
(b)  Subsidiaries (b)  BEAT
Approximate
percentage
of the total
preference
shares in issue
as at
31 March
2016
Number of shares 2016
R EE 3A31H
Personal Family Corporate E2EE
interests interest interests Total BITEER
1B AR RE#ER ZEER e BHNED
(i) City Chain (Thailand) Company Limited — Preference shares'
City Chain (Thailand) Company Limited — &5/’
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 200 - 208,800 209,000 99.52
BRI AR
Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas 200 - 208,800 209,000 99.52
wENTL A
(i) Stelux Watch (Thailand) Company Limited — Preference shares?
Stelux Watch (Thailand) Company Limited — 55/ 2
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 600 - - 600 16.67
BRI SEAE
Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas 600 - - 600 16.67
AT A
(iii) Optical 88 (Thailand) Company Limited — Preference shares®
Optical 88 (Thailand) Company Limited — 56/
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 5,000 - 225,000 230,000 90.20
BRI SEAE
Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas 5,000 - 225,000 230,000 90.20
AT A
(iv)  Stelux (Thailand) Limited — Preference shares*
Stelux (Thailand) Limited — &% 4
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 5,100 - - 5,100 100

ORI S
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (continued)
(b)  Subsidiaries (continued)

Notes:

(1) City Chain (Thailand) Company Limited is a subsidiary of the
Company. Each preference share carries a right to vote and a right
to an annual fixed dividend but not to any other profit sharing. The
corporate interests of each of Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong and Mr. Sakorn
Kanjanapas in 208,800 preference shares duplicate with each
other.

2) Stelux Watch (Thailand) Company Limited is a subsidiary of the
Company. Each preference share carries a right to vote and a right
to an annual fixed dividend but not to any other profit sharing.

(3)  Optical 88 (Thailand) Company Limited is a subsidiary of the
Company. Each preference share carries a right to vote and a right
to an annual fixed dividend but not to any other profit sharing. The
corporate interests of each of Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong and Mr. Sakorn
Kanjanapas in 225,000 preference shares duplicate with each
other.

(4)  Stelux (Thailand) Limited is a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Joseph
C. C. Wong is entitled to approximately 8.6% of the voting power of
such subsidiary and an annual fixed dividend by virtue of the 5,100
preference shares held by him but not to any other profit sharing.

Save as disclosed above, no directors, chief executive of the
Company or their associates have any interest or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies.

INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE PURSUANT
TO THE SFO

As at 31 March 2016, the following persons had interests in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO:

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, BEEERXRE  BERAOER (E)
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)
INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE PURSUANT

TO THE SFO (continued)

RIBRHFRAEROIA T R E 2 RRERS (8]

T L F] Z 8 R B0 2 4T

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Approximate

Number of shares percentage of

R EE issued share

Corporate/ capital

Personal Family  trust interest Other HE BT

Name of Director interest interest E=E interest Total RA&Z

EEnE BARER REER SR HipfEs Fok BABSH

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 548,474,814 11,000 1,195,100 - 549,680,914 52.53
HAIE (Note 1)
(M7 1)

Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas 67,221,078 - 1,195,100 - 68,416,178 6.54
wHANTEE (Note 1)
(M7 1)

Boyu Capital Holdings Ltd. - - 190,268,000 - 190,268,000 18.18
(Note 2)
(i 2)

NTAsian Discovery Master Fund 54,250,000 - - - 54,250,000 5.18

Notes: B -

Yee Hing Company Limited, directly and indirectly through
its subsidiary including Active Lights Company Limited, held
1,195,100 shares of the Company as at 31 March 2016. 55% of the
total issued ordinary shares of Yee Hing Company Limited is held by
Klayze Holdings Limited, which is the trustee of a discretionary trust
(the “Trust”). Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong and Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas
are the beneficiaries of the Trust and were therefore deemed to be
interested in 1,195,100 shares of the Company through the Trust’s
interest in Yee Hing Company Limited.

The Company has issued convertible bonds in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$371,022,600 to Sapphire Illuminatus
Holdings Limited (the “Convertible Bonds”), all of which were
outstanding as at 31 March 2016. The Convertible Bonds are
convertible into shares of the Company at the initial conversion
price of HK$1.95 per new share. Assuming the exercise in full
of the conversion right attaching to the Convertible Bonds at the
initial conversion price, a total of 190,268,000 new shares of the
Company will be issued. Sapphire Illuminatus Holdings Limited is
wholly-owned by Boyu Capital Fund I, L.P., which is wholly-owned
by Boyu Capital General Partner I, L.P., which is wholly-owned by
Boyu Capital General Partner |, Ltd., which is in turn wholly-owned
by Boyu Capital Holdings Ltd.

)

201643 A 31 H » FEBA PR w H 4% ol ) 4%
I E 2 7 Active Lights Company Limited
FEA AT 1,195,100 B A © Klayze Holdings
Limited LAfE 2y —HRIEE 58 (1558 ) 2 ZeE NS
Py AT FEFAT BRAS ) 2230 8 15 B I . 55% HE
i o ARG SeE RE AL BEFEZZ A
BRI 2 (5 RE R 8 B PR W) 2 REAR T HE A
AN 1,195,100 BARHE SR -

A 7y # [ Sapphire Illuminatus Holdings
Limited ([Sapphire]) #4745 & A S A% Ly s
371,022,600 JCH) AT B 57 - % 2016 4F3 A
31 H Sapphire i RATERZ MR o AR S AT A
HRIE) P S AR B BB 1.95 J0 Sy 23 W) 2 i
3 o IR SEAR R WA AT L Bk 2
HRBHE 24 FLI & 8547 48 H0190,268,000 JBEHT
5% = Sapphire H Boyu Capital Fund I, L.P 2 ¥ #E
£ > TiiBoyu Capital Fund I, L.PHiBoyu Capital
General Partner |, L.P. 2% #47 » MiBoyu Capital
General Partner |, L.P. 1 Boyu Capital General
Partner I, Ltd. 22 &#E4 - MBoyu Capital General
Partner 1, Ltd. 3J& 1 Boyu Capital Holdings Ltd.
YA o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)

INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE PURSUANT
TO THE SFO (continued)

Save as disclosed above, the directors are not aware of any person
(other than a director or chief executive of the Company or his/
her respective associate(s)), who had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO as at
31 March 2016.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or
sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier

— five largest suppliers combined
Sales

— the largest customer

— five largest customers combined

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
to the best knowledge of the directors of the Company, at least
25% of issued share capital of the Company was held by public
members as at the date of this report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE BY INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received confirmations of independence from
its independent non-executive directors, who have confirmed
their independence as of 1 April 2015 up to and including 31
March 2016. The Company considers its independent non-
executive directors to be independent.

Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang was appointed an independent
non-executive director of the Company in 2004 and by the
forthcoming AGM will have served 12 years. Mr. Wu has
confirmed his independence as regards each of the factors referred
to in Rule 3.13(1) to (8) of the Listing Rules; he does not have
any past or present financial or other interest in the business
of the Company or its subsidiaries or any connection with any
connected person (as defined under the Listing Rules); and there
are no other factors that may affect his independence. Therefore,
the Board believes that Mr. Wu is independent and proposes
his re-election as an independent non-executive director of the
Company at the forthcoming AGM.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following continuing connected transactions are based on
normal commercial terms agreed after arms’ length negotiations
between the parties and are in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group. The continuing connected transactions
are subject to the annual review, reporting and announcement
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and
exempt from independent shareholders” approval.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Continuing connected transactions of the Group for the financial
year ended 31 March 2016

The following continuing connected transactions under the
heading above have been reviewed by the directors (including
the independent non-executive directors) of the Company. The
independent non-executive directors of the Company have
confirmed that during the year all these transactions were entered
into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  either (i) on normal commercial terms; or (ii) where there
was no available comparison on terms no less favourable
to or from the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

(c)  inaccordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions on terms that were fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The Company’s auditor has issued
an unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group below in accordance with paragraph 14A.56 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,

ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) BERERS (E)
Summary of the continuing connected transactions:
FRAE R 2 7 B
Income/
Connected persons Nature of transactions (expenses) Annual Caps Notes
BEAL REME KA (%) FELR By aE
HK$'000 HK$’000
AT AT
International Optical Manufacturing Manufacture and supply of (913) (5,600) (i) & (xiii)
Company Limited and its subsidiaries optical products and purchase
(“1OM”) of optical products
PRIR ST B A PR W] B HE M A /] S R (bR R G i S
(MfomJ) RS
Mengiwa Property Investment Limited Leasing of properties (14,750) (15,308) (i) to
(“MPIL") as Landlord e (viii)
I e E A R A (TIHEE ) & (xiii)
((ZF =
Active Lights Company Limited (“ALCL”)  Leasing of properties (1,975) (1,975) (ix)to
and Thong Sia Company Limited HEYE (xi)
(“TSCL"), each of them as Landlord & (xiii)
Active Lights Company Limited (T ALCLJ)
S Thong Sia Company Limited
(TTSCL) » 24 AfE AT
MPIL as Principal Provision of management and 2,340 2,831 (xii) &

MEE > fERZFEN

property agency liaison
services

R ALAE T R ) S A
Tt ke P

(xiii)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Notes:

Manufacture and supply of optical products and purchase of optical
products

(i) The Group announced on 22 March 2013 (“Announcement”),
that on 21 March 2013, the Group, through certain of its wholly-
owned subsidiaries, entered into the Manufacturing and Supply
Agreements 2013 with IOM with effect from 1 April 2013 to 31
March 2016 to renew the Manufacturing and Supply Agreements.
All definitions in this note have the same meaning as referred to in
the Announcement.

The Group has continued to engage IOM to design, manufacture
and supply house-brand and licensed-brand optical products to the
Group typically for cash with payment terms ranging from 30 days
to 90 days, upon receipt of invoice. The terms of purchases have
been determined on an individual purchase order basis based on
prevailing industry conditions and the purchases have been made
on normal commercial terms.

The annual cap for the year ended 31 March 2016 was set at
HK$5,200,000 based on the Group’s past experience and best
estimation of the maximum amount of future purchases.

In order for the Group to continue to make purchases of optical
products for the Group's retail operations from the IOM Group after
the expiry of the Renewal Retail Purchase Agreement on 31 March
2013, on 21 March 2013, the Group and IOM Group, through
their respective subsidiaries, entered into a Further Renewal Retail
Purchase Agreement with effect from 1 April 2013 to 31 March
2016.

The annual cap for the year ended 31 March 2016 was set at
HK$400,000 based on the Group’s past experience and best
estimation of the maximum amount of future purchases.

Based on the above, the maximum aggregate annual values of
purchases of optical products by the Group from the IOM Group
under the Manufacturing and Supply Agreements 2013 and the
Further Renewal Retail Purchase Agreement in aggregate for the
year ended 31 March 2016 were set at HK$5,600,000.

The Group is satisfied with the business relationship with IOM
over the previous years, and IOM’s market knowledge and trend
perception in certain major markets, as evidenced by its success
in being a supplier to various internationally renowned brands of
optical products.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

0]

(continued)

The directors (including all independent non-executive directors)
of the Company are of the view that the Manufacturing and
Supply Agreements 2013 and the Further Renewal Retail Purchase
Agreement were entered into in the usual and ordinary course of
business of the Group on normal commercial terms which were
agreed after arm’s length negotiations between the parties, and that
the terms of the above-mentioned agreements and the maximum
aggregate annual values of purchases of optical products by the
Group from IOM Group are fair and reasonable and are in the
interests of the Group and the Shareholders as a whole.

Leasing of office premises and carparking spaces

(if)

The Group announced on 10 December 2012 (“Announcement”),
that on 10 December 2012, Stelux Holdings Limited (“SHL"),
Thong Sia Watch Company Limited (“TSWCL”) and Thong Sia
Optics (Hong Kong) Company Limited (“TSOHK”), wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, each individually as tenant, entered
into the Stelux House Renewal Tenancy Agreements 2013 with
Mengiwa Property Investment Limited (“MPIL”) in respect of the
following properties:

Premises A: whole of 27th floor and portion of 28th floor
(including 12 carparking spaces) at Stelux House

Premises B: whole of 21st floor (including 3 carparking spaces)
at Stelux House

Premises C: office unit numbers 502, 503, 505 and 506 on the
5th floor at Stelux House

Premises D: office unit numbers 1901, 1902 and 1903 with two
storerooms numbers 1A and 1B on the 19th floor at
Stelux House

Premises E: office unit numbers 1702 and 1703 on the 17th
floor at Stelux House

Premises F: storeroom no. 6A on 18th floor at Stelux House

Premises G: portion of office unit numbers 1905 and 1906 with
storeroom no. 6A on 19th floor at Stelux House

Premises H: office unit numbers 2201, 2202 and 2206 with

storeroom numbers 1A, 1B, 6A and 6B on the 22nd
floor of Stelux House
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(continued)

All definitions in this note have the same meaning as referred to in
the Announcement.

The lease term of the above premises was from 1 April 2013 up to
and including 31 March 2016 with no rent-free period.

The total monthly rental of HK$881,700 comprising HK$830,000
per calendar month for the office premises (Premises A, B, C, D,
E, G and H exclusive of rates, government rent and management
charges) and HK$51,700 per calendar month for the 15 carparking
spaces and a storeroom (Premises F) (inclusive of rates, government
rent and management charges), both payable monthly in advance
in cash by the tenant on the first day of each and every calendar
month.

On 21 March 2013, the renewed tenancy agreement in respect
of Premises G above was surrendered (“Surrendered Tenancy
Agreement”) and SHL (as tenant) entered into a new tenancy
agreement with MPIL (as landlord) to rent a larger portion of office
unit numbers 1905 and 1906 with storeroom no. 6A on 19th floor
and an additional 6 carparking spaces at Stelux House for the
same rental period as that for the Surrendered Tenancy Agreement
(“Tenancy Agreement”). The monthly rental for the Tenancy
Agreement was HK$70,762.90 comprising HK$51,862.90 per
calendar month for the portion of the office units with a storeroom
(exclusive of rates, government rent and management charges)
and HK$18,900 per calendar month for the 6 carparking spaces
(inclusive of rates, government rent and management charges), both
payable in advance in cash by the tenant on the first day of each and
every calendar month.

In addition to the above, before the expiration of the Stelux House
Renewal Tenancy Agreements 2013, SHL has surrendered the
leases of the following premises to MPIL:

(@) the lease of one car parking space under Premises B was early
terminated with effect from 1 June 2014;

(b) the lease of the Premises C was early surrendered on 31 May

2015 (see (viii) below for further details); and

(c)  the lease of the Premises E was early surrendered on 31
October 2015.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(continued)

SHL, as tenant, has been granted the naming right of Stelux House
and each of SHL, TSWCL and TSOHK has been granted an option
for the Premises A, B, C, D, E, H and the Tenancy Agreement, but
not an obligation, to renew the relevant tenancy agreement with the
landlord every three years for three more years for a maximum of
15 years commencing from 1 April 2016 at the then prevailing open
market rent.

The monthly rents of all the above-mentioned office premises
were determined on an arm’s length basis taking into account the
valuations conducted by an independent property valuer dated
2 November 2012, which indicate that the renewal rental rates
under the Stelux House Tenancy Renewal Agreements 2013 and
the Tenancy Agreement were favourable to the Group as compared
with the prevailing market rental values of the subject premises,
while the rental rates for carparking spaces were determined
with reference to the prevailing market rental rates. Accordingly,
the Directors considered the Stelux House Renewal Tenancy
Agreements 2013 and the Tenancy Agreement were on normal
commercial terms and were fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Group has been using the subject office premises (including the
carparking spaces) primarily for office, administrative and storage
purposes over a long period of time. In order to avoid possible
disruption to its business due to relocation, the Group intends to
continue to lease/licence the subject office premises (including
the carparking spaces) following the expiration of the relevant
leases/licences. The directors consider it to be in the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole for the Group to
continue to use the subject premises as long as the relevant rental/
licence fee and other terms are favourable to the Group so as to
avoid relocation and refurbishment costs which otherwise the
Group will have to incur.

The Group announced on 22 May 2013 (“Announcement”), that on
22 May 2013, SHL (as tenant) entered into two tenancy agreements
with MPIL (as landlord) as summarized below. All definitions in this
note have the same meaning as referred to in the Announcement.

(@) to rent office unit number 2205 on 22nd floor at Stelux
House for a term of two years ten months and nine days
commencing on 23 May 2013 and expiring on 31 March
2016 (“Tenancy Agreement A). The monthly rental of
HK$23,850 (exclusive of rates, government rent and
management charges) was payable in advance in cash by the
tenant on the first day of each and every calendar month; and
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, EEERRS - HERENEDS (K)
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) BEBRERS (&)
Notes: (continued) MiEE : (8
(iiiy  (continued) (i) (&)
(b)  to rent storeroom number 1B on 20th floor at Stelux House (b)  FHRECREEFR L2008 1BYEEGFE > A
for a term of two years eight months and nineteen days from WE/MAHAE+JLH > 5201347 H 13 H
13 July 2013 up to and including 31 March 2016 (“Tenancy 201643 H31 H (WHEEEM H) &
Agreement B). The monthly rental of HK$5,000 (inclusive (TfHEWB]) o AR N 5,000 7T (FLFE
of rates, government rent and management charges) was ZEfR ~ BURORE R AT ) - ZH R A S R
payable in advance in cash by the tenant on the first day of FEAEIEH | H ABLEFA o
each and every calendar month.
The above monthly rents were determined on an arm’s length basis bl i ARG TR AP IR R E - et R E G
taking into account the prevailing market rental rates at Stelux ELBATHIGIE - Bk - EFHRR - T
House. Accordingly, the directors considered that the terms of the Tk A B B AWk e e — i e 20k > T
Tenancy Agreements A and B reflected normal commercial terms o M EDLAE I RA KB A AN F KR Z
and were fair and reasonable, and the entering into of Tenancy A4 -

Agreements A and B were in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

With respect to the Tenancy Agreement A, SHL was granted an A E W RA TS > SHLER T34 ({0 K
option, but not an obligation, to renew the tenancy every three years F) W S AR E R BT A R TS -
for three more years for a maximum of 15 years commencing from WA =4 > 20164F4 71 HERHEZ #H
1 April 2016 at the then prevailing open market rent. R4 -

(iv)  The Group announced on 28 November 2013 (“Announcement”), (iv)  AEFER20134FE11 A28 HARK (TEAHED »
that on 28 November 2013, SHL (as tenant) entered into a tenancy 2013411 H28 H » SH (EAFHF) B0 (fE /2
agreement with MPIL (as landlord) to rent office unit number 601 ) RIS Wk - T EDE O 6 M 601 %
and storeroom numbers 1A and 1B on 6th floor at Stelux House for a ZHEAE AL KA K ABIERAEE » RIIRIEE
term of two years and three months commencing on 1 January 2014 =B - B201441 A1 HESE20164E3 A31H
and expiring on 31 March 2016. All definitions in this note have the IR o A B T A o 26 Bz A 4 T R EL A [R] 38
same meaning as referred to in the Announcement. £
The monthly rental of HK$42,500 (exclusive of rates, government AN 42,500 70 (A ELEG 26 ~ BOM AR K& &
rent and management charges) was payable in advance in cash by M) > BT R EEEH T H BTN o

the tenant on the first day of each and every calendar month.

The monthly rental was determined on an arm’s length basis taking g HA G5V IE R REE - St S Sr i 2E A
into account the valuation on the office unit with two storerooms (ELRA 2013 45 11 H 22 H sl 32 58 B0 K g 41 £t
conducted by an independent property valuer dated 22 November EEWATINE - L > R L > HEHERZ
2013. Accordingly, the directors considered that the terms of the AR W — IR P ek - A B > AT SL A
tenancy agreement reflected normal commercial terms and were B IR A A R 2 BB R 45 o

fair and reasonable, and the entering into of tenancy agreement was
in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

SHL early surrendered the above-mentioned tenancy to MPIL on 31 SHLEJA 201641 A 31 H B R4 T Bl
January 2016. HE -
29 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

v)

(vi)

The Group announced on 9 April 2014, that on 9 April 2014, SHL
(as tenant) entered into a tenancy agreement with MPIL (as landlord)
to rent storeroom number 6A on 17th floor at Stelux House for a
term commenced from 16 April 2014 and expired on 31 March
2016 (i.e. one year eleven months and sixteen days).

The monthly rental of HK$4,570 (inclusive of rates, government rent
and management charges) was payable in advance in cash by the
tenant on the first day of each and every calendar month.

The monthly rental was determined on an arm’s length basis
taking into account prevailing market rental rates at Stelux House.
Accordingly, the directors considered that the terms of the tenancy
agreement reflected normal commercial terms and were fair and
reasonable, and the entering into this tenancy agreement was in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

In addition, SHL was granted an option, but not an obligation,
to renew the tenancy every three years for three more years for a
maximum of 15 years commencing from 1 April 2016 at the then
prevailing open market rent.

The Group requires more space to meet its operational needs and
leasing this additional space at Stelux House (where the Group’s
headquarter is located) is more convenient than at other locations
and will also help to improve operational efficiency.

The Group announced on 9 October 2014, that on 9 October 2014,
SHL (as tenant) entered into the following tenancy agreements with
MPIL (as landlord) to rent office premises and storerooms:

Premises I: whole of 26th floor with storeroom numbers 1A,
1B, 6A and 6B on 26th floor at Stelux House

Premises J: office unit 2203 on 22nd floor at Stelux House

Premises K: office unit 1501 with storeroom number 1A on

15th floor at Stelux House

The lease term of the above premises commenced from 9 October
2014 and expired on 31 March 2016 (i.e. one year five months and
twenty three days).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(continued)

The total monthly rental of HK$352,540 (exclusive of rates,
government rent and management charges) was payable in advance
in cash by the tenant on the first day of each and every calendar
month.

The monthly rents for all the above-mentioned office premises
were determined on an arm’s length basis taking into account the
respective rental valuations conducted by an independent property
valuer dated 30 September 2014, which indicate that the rental
rates of these office premises are at market rates. Accordingly, the
directors considered that the terms of these tenancy agreements
reflected normal commercial terms and were fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole.

In addition, SHL was granted an option, but not an obligation,
to renew the tenancy every three years for three more years for a
maximum of 15 years commencing from 1 April 2016 at the then
prevailing open market rent.

The Group requires more space to meet its operational needs and
leasing the additional space at Stelux House (where the Group’s
headquarter is located) is more convenient than at other locations
and will also help to improve operational efficiency and reduce
overall rental costs.

With respect to Premises K, SHL early surrendered the corresponding
tenancy to MPIL on 30 November 2014.

The Group announced on 29 May 2015 (“Announcement”), that
on 29 May 2015, SHL (as tenant) entered into a tenancy agreement
with MPIL (as landlord) for the leasing of portions of office unit
numbers 1905 and 1906 with storeroom number 6B on 19th floor at
Stelux House for a term of ten months from 1 June 2015 up to and
including 31 March 2016. All definitions in this note have the same
meaning as referred to in the Announcement.

The monthly rental of HK$25,217.50 (exclusive of rates,
government rent and management charges) was payable in advance
in cash by the tenant on the first day of each and every calendar
month.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(vii)

(viii)

(continued)

The monthly rental was determined on an arm’s length basis
taking into account the rental under an early terminated tenancy
agreement, made between MPL and the previous tenant for the
premises, for the remaining term of the tenancy between the parties.
The directors considered that the terms of the tenancy agreement
reflected normal commercial terms and were fair and reasonable,
and the entering into of tenancy agreement was in the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

In addition, SHL was granted an option, but not an obligation,
to renew the tenancy every three years for three more years for a
maximum of 15 years commencing from 1 April 2016 at the then
prevailing open market rent.

The Group announced on 29 May 2015 (“Announcement”), that
on 29 May 2015, SHL (as tenant) entered into a partial surrender
agreement with MPIL (as landlord), with respect to the tenancy
agreement entered into by these two parties for office unit numbers
502, 503, 505 and 506 on 5th floor at Stelux House (“5th Floor
Tenancy Agreement”) on 10 December 2012.

All definitions in this note have the same meaning as referred to in
the Announcement.

SHL early surrendered office unit numbers 502, 503, 505 and a
portion of 506 of the 5th Floor Tenancy Agreement but continued to
rent the remaining portion of office unit 506 and two storeroom nos.
6A and 6B from MPIL (“5th Floor Remaining Tenancy Agreement”)
with the monthly rental adjusted downwards accordingly (but
remaining unchanged per square feet from the rental under the
5th Floor Tenancy Agreement) and all other terms and conditions
remaining unchanged.

The monthly rental of HK$17,325.25 (exclusive of rates,
government rent and management charges) was payable in advance
in cash by the tenant on the first day of each and every calendar
month.

The monthly rental for the 5th Floor Remaining Tenancy Agreement
was determined on an arm’s length basis taking into account
the actual rental per square feet under the 5th Floor Tenancy
Agreement. Accordingly, the directors considered that the terms
of the 5th Floor Remaining Tenancy Agreement reflected normal
commercial terms and were fair and reasonable, and the entering
into of tenancy agreement was in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(viii)

(continued)

In addition, SHL was granted an option, but not an obligation, to
renew the 5th Floor Remaining Tenancy Agreement every three
years for three more years for a maximum of 15 years commencing
from 1 April 2016 at the then prevailing open market rent.

The Group requires more space to meet its operational needs and
in addition to renting more office space at Stelux House the Group
would also reorganize its current usage of office space at Stelux
House by renting whole floors instead of separate individual units
on separate floors for greater efficiency. The reorganization had
commenced and would be carried out in the current financial year.
After the completion of the office space reorganization, the Group
would occupy 6th floor, 19th floor, 21st floor, 22nd floor, 27th floor
and 28th floor at Stelux House.

Leasing of warehouses and vehicle parking spaces

(ix)

The Group announced on 10 December 2012 (“Announcement”),
that on 10 December 2012, the Group, through certain of its wholly
owned subsidiaries, each individually as tenant/licensee, entered
into the Warehouse Leasing and Licence Renewal Agreements
2013 with TSCL and ALCL, each individually as landlord/licensor,
to renew the term of the leases/licences of 4 existing warehouse
spaces in Hong Kong for terms of three years commenced from 1
April 2013 and expired on 31 March 2016. All definitions in this
note have the same meaning as referred to in the Announcement.

Monthly rental totaled HK$155,920 comprising HK$146,420
per calendar month (exclusive of rates, government rent and
management charges) for 3 warehouse spaces and HK$9,500
per calendar month (inclusive of rates, government rent and
management charges) for the remaining 1 warehouse space, both
payable monthly in advance in cash by the tenants on the first day
of each and every calendar month.

The monthly rentals/licence fees were determined on an arm’s
length basis after having taken into account the valuations on
the warehouses conducted by an independent property valuer
on 23 November 2012, which indicate that the renewal rentals/
licence fees under the Warehouse Leasing and Licence Renewal
Agreements 2013 were favourable to the Group as compared
with the prevailing market rental/licence fee values of the subject
warehouses. Accordingly, the directors considered the Warehouse
Leasing and Licence Renewal Agreements 2013 were on normal
commercial terms and were fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
e

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(x)

The Group announced on 9 April 2014 (“Announcement”), that
on 9 April 2014, the lease of the warehouse under the Renewal
Tenancy Agreement has been surrendered and the warehouse
was relocated within the same building for logistic efficiency. A
new tenancy agreement was entered into between the existing
tenant and the landlord (i.e. TSCL) for a term commenced from 16
April 2014 and expired on 31 March 2016 (i.e. one year eleven
months and sixteen days) and for a monthly rental of HK$9,500. All
definitions in this note have the same meaning as referred to in the
Announcement.

The monthly rental was determined on an arm’s length basis
taking into account prevailing market rental rates in the vicinity.
The directors considered that the terms of the tenancy agreement
reflected normal commercial terms and were fair and reasonable,
and the entering into of this tenancy agreement was in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Group announced on 9 April 2014, that on 9 April 2014, the
Company through two of its wholly-owned subsidiaries entered into
two License Agreements with ALCL to license two vehicle parking
spaces for a term of one year eleven months and sixteen days
commencing on 16 April 2014 and expiring on 31 March 2016. The
total monthly license fee was HK$8,600 (inclusive of management
charges but exclusive of rates and government rent).

The monthly license fees were determined on an arm’s length
basis taking into account prevailing market rates for the vehicle
parking spaces in the vicinity. The directors considered that the
terms of the License Agreements reflected normal commercial
terms and were fair and reasonable, and the entering into of these
License Agreements were in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

The continuing connected transactions as set out in (ii) to (xi) above, in

relation to the leasing of properties from connected parties, have been
aggregated for the purpose of classification in accordance Rule 14A.81
of the Listing Rules, and the aggregate annual caps for the financial year
ended 31 March 2016 was approximately HK$ 17,283,000.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExanREE

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

Provision of management and property agency liaison services

(xii)

The Group announced on 10 December 2012 (“Announcement”),
that on 10 December 2012, Stelux Properties Agency Limited
(“SPAL”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as agent,
renewed the management and property agency liaison services
agreement (“Service Agreement 2013”) with MPIL for a term of three
years up to and including 31 March 2016 for the provision of the
following services (“Services”):

(a) contract administration with respect to contracts entered into
between MPIL and third parties from time to time;

(b)  property agency liaison and tenancy management;
(c)  management of the property manager of Stelux House; and
(d) other miscellaneous administrative services.

All definitions in this note have the same meaning as referred to
in the Announcement. SPAL has been providing the Services with
respect to Stelux House since 1998 and has accumulated relevant
knowledge and experience. MPIL is satisfied so far with the Services
provided by the Group, whilst the remuneration received by the
Group under the Service Agreement is more than enough to cover
the relevant costs incurred by the Group in providing the Services.
As such, SPAL continued to provide the Services to MPIL following
the expiration of the preceding service agreement on 31 March
2013.

Monthly remuneration was set at HK$195,000 per calendar month
(in the first year up to and including 31 March 2014) payable in
advance in cash on the first day of each and every calendar month.
Parties to the Service Agreement 2013 shall negotiate and agree in
good faith to increase the remuneration on an annual basis for the
second year and the third year by not more than 10% over that in
the preceding year with reference to the actual increase in costs
(including but not limited to the related staff salaries) incurred by
the Group with respect to the provision of the Services. In the event
that no agreement is reached between the parties in negotiating
the remuneration for the next year, the remuneration shall remain
unchanged.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
e

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(xii)

(continued)

The monthly remuneration received by the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2016 was the same as that under the preceding
service agreement for the three years ended 31 March 2013.
The remuneration was arrived at after arm’s length negotiations
between the parties and with reference to the estimate of the costs
to be incurred by the Company with respect to the provision of the
Services in the financial year ended 31 March 2013. The directors
considered the terms of the Service Agreement 2013 were on
normal commercial terms and were fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

With reference to the monthly remuneration under the Service
Agreement 2013, the Annual Cap Amount for this continuing
connected transaction was set at HK$2,831,400 for the financial
year ended 31 March 2016.

Relationships between counterparties

(xiii)

With respect to transactions (i) to (xii) above, each of IOM, MPIL,
TSCL and ALCL is a subsidiary of Yee Hing Company Limited (“Yee
Hing”). Yee Hing, directly and indirectly through its subsidiary, held
0.11% of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 March 2016. The
Trust, of which Mr. Joseph C.C.Wong and Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas,
being directors of the Company, are beneficiaries, holds 55% of
the total issued shares of Yee Hing. Therefore, each of IOM, MPIL,
TSCL and ALCL is an associate of the aforesaid directors and hence
is a connected person of the Company. Therefore, transactions (i)
to (xii) above constitute continuing connected transactions for the
Company.

The above continuing connected transactions also constitute related party
transactions and are disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExanREE

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

As permitted by the Bye-laws of the Company, a director of the
Company may be indemnified out of the Company’s assets against
any liability incurred by the director, to the extent permitted by
Bermuda law. Such permitted indemnity provision has been in
force throughout the financial year and is currently in force at the
time of approval of this report.

The Company has also taken out and maintained directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout the year, which provides
appropriate cover for certain legal actions brought against its
directors and officers.

As permitted by the articles of association of the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong (“Hong Kong Subsidiaries”), a director
or a former director of the Hong Kong Subsidiaries may be
indemnified out of the Hong Kong Subsidiaries’ assets against
any liability incurred by the director to a person other than the
Hong Kong Subsidiaries or an associated company of the Hong
Kong Subsidiaries, to the extent permitted by law. Such permitted
indemnity provision is currently in force at the time of approval of
this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

Last but not least, | express my most sincere thanks and gratitude
to colleagues and staff members for their commitment, hard work
and loyalty to the Group during the year.

On behalf of the Board

Joseph C. C. Wong
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 23 June 2016

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B3 BT 3R

_E
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF STELUX HOLDINGS
INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Stelux Holdings International Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries set out on pages 40 to 142, which comprise
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2016, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

ALK G T EB P B PIRR T RE T
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B R

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of Company and
its subsidiaries as at 31 March 2016, and of their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 June 2016

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

meWwamk
For the year ended 31 March 2016 #% 201643 31 H L4

2016 2015
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 BT BT
Revenue A 5 3,401,716 3,940,849
Cost of sales P S A 8 (1,370,752) (1,524,407)
Gross profit B 2,030,964 2,416,442
Other gains/(losses), net HAbik st~ (ft8) - W8 6 12,180 (16,557)
Other income HAtg A 7 22,370 25,318
Selling expenses FHEE ST 8 (1,657,260) (1,740,051)
General and administrative expenses — PR B ATECE 8 (406,717) (413,857)
Other operating expenses HAEE S 8 (96,472) (53,344)
Operating (loss)/profit B¥E B A (94,935) 217,951
Finance costs A A 10 (90,778) (72,141)
Share of loss of an associate JREA B 425 ) s 48 16 - (5,302)
(Loss)/profit before income tax W BT A8 (Bs4H) T A (185,713) 140,508
Income tax expense P mi 2 11 (4,066) (48,449)
(Loss)/profit for the year N (k18) i ) (189,779) 92,059
Attributable to: DU EA
Equity holders of the Company ARAFRER TR A (190,009) 91,756
Non-controlling interests TEFE IR 7 230 303
(189,779) 92,059
HK cents HK cents
Bl Bl
(Loss)/earnings per share attributable AN FIRE AR A AL
to the equity holders of the Company B (E18) & F
— Basic e ZN 12 (18.16) 8.77
— Diluted — fiE 12 (18.16) 8.77

The notes on pages 46 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meETHEkER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #% 201643 7 31 H IL4EE
-

2016 2015
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
MIsE BT BT
(Loss)/profit for the year N (E8R) T A (189,779) 92,059
Other comprehensive loss: HoAtb 22T i 18
Items that may be reclassified to HEAJEHE
profit or loss: Az HIHHA -
Exchange differences 1 2250 (16,245) (41,622)
Revaluation of available-for-sale AL Y B RS
financial assets G E, 17 (523) (2,679)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, EINFORIAR 2 HoAth
net of tax AR (16,768) (44,301)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income ENATHE (EH)
for the year Wi 25 AR (206,547) 47,758
Attributable to: DL AL -
Equity holders of the Company LNk ST SN (206,212) 47,791
Non-controlling interests FEFE A 5 (335) (33)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income ENEE (EE)
for the year Wi g SE AR (206,547) 47,758

The notes on pages 46 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mEEEAEX
As at 31 March 2016 /4201643 A 31 H

Note 2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt BT BT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FE B E
Property, plant and equipment LERR YT 13 451,192 460,463
Prepayment of lease premium TEASHAH B 14 29,777 40,242
Intangible assets Ei3IA Vi 15 104,200 60,664
Investment in an associate RS A A E 16 - 61,329
Deferred tax assets IR ALl TE B 27 76,162 70,692
Available-for-sale financial assets AT A Y A TS 17 12,129 12,652
Debtors, deposits and prepayments JEMOIRK ~ e R FEAS IE 19 153,846 166,752
827,306 872,794
Current assets T &
Stocks r& 18 1,098,607 1,327,732
Debtors, deposits and prepayments JEMOIRK ~ e R FEATRIE 19 433,250 430,743
Bank balances and cash SRAT G KB 4 20 599,225 460,143
2,131,082 2,218,618
Total assets W AR 2,958,388 3,091,412
EQUITY iz HE
Capital and reserves attributable to AN FIRE AR A AR
the equity holders of the Company JBeA K At A
Share capital A 21 104,647 104,647
Reserves frtfts 22 1,125,156 1,341,833
Shareholders’ funds R E 4 1,229,803 1,446,480
Non-controlling interests Ik F2E LA 75 7,015 7,350
Total equity il ke 1,236,818 1,453,830

B () A RA A
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mEEERER

As at 31 March 2016 /4201643 A 31 H

Note 2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
B EE BT AT
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities FEE) A E
Deferred tax liabilities PR SR IE A K 27 7,342 2,299
Borrowings B 25 18,048 52,068
Convertible bonds AR AR 26 336,475 380,753
361,865 435,120
Current liabilities AR
Creditors and accruals JE AT IR I T 24 589,235 601,488
Income tax payable JREAT A58 4,082 21,249
Borrowings R 25 656,439 579,725
Convertible bonds CIELY i€ 26 109,949 -
1,359,705 1,202,462
Total liabilities A 1,721,570 1,637,582
Total equity and liabilities JBOHE I A A A 2,958,388 3,091,412

Joseph C.C. Wong Wallace Kwan Chi Kin

HAIG AEE
Chairman and Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
LR AT e
BT Al

The notes on pages 46 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

#4546 2142 TR RE 2 O AF AR 3 9 AN T sl o

The consolidated financial statements on pages 40 to 142 were approved by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2016 and
were signed on its behalf.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REREEER
For the year ended 31 March 2016 #% 201643 31 H L4
-

Attributable to the equity holders

of the Company
RAREREEAREL
Non-
Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capital  reserves earnings Total  interests equity
BAE  HivfE  REERA @t FERER  ERAE
(Note 21) ~ (Note 22)  (Note 22)
(Msk21)  (MEE22)  (FE22)
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
X TR 1 3 R STV ¥ TP 4 o A TR 3 ¥ s STV X T
At T April 2014 201444 1 H 104,647 107,387 1,246,304 1,458,338 7,483 1,465,821
Profit for the year AR A - - 91,756 91,756 303 92,059
Other comprehensive loss: Hh 2T -
Exchange differences 527 - (41,286) - (41,286) (336)  (41,622)
Revaluation of available-for-sale ] {it i & (1) B 7 4 s i i
financial assets (Note 17) (FitaE17) - (2,679) - (2,679) - (2,679)
Total other comprehensive loss  HAl 2 T H A - (43,965) - (43,965) (336)  (44,301)
Total comprehensive 2T (kR /a4
(loss)/income - (43,965) 91,756 47,791 (33) 47,758
Dividends paid (Note 23) B (M 23) - - (59649 (59,649) (100)  (59,749)
At 31 March 2015 20154F3 A31H 104,647 63,422 1,278,411 1,446,480 7,350 1,453,830
At 1 April 2015 1201544 4 1H 104,647 63,422 1278411 1,446,480 7,350 1,453,830
(Loss)/profit for the year ER (FE1R) /A - - (190,009)  (190,009) 230 (189,779)
Other comprehensive loss: Hh 2T -
Exchange differences i 3725 - (15,680 - (15,680) (565)  (16,245)
Revaluation of available-for-sale  AI {1k 8 () B BS & e T4
financial assets (Note 17) (PiEE17) - (523) - (523) - (523)
Total other comprehensive loss oAt 2 i 4 48 - (16,203) - (16,203) (565  (16,768)
Total comprehensive loss ZTHERAH - (16,203)  (190,009)  (206,212) (335)  (206,547)
Dividends paid (Note 23) BT (BfFE23) - - (10,465)  (10,465) - (10,465)
At 31 March 2016 #2016%F3 A31H 104,647 47,219 1,077,937 1,229,803 7,015 1,236,818

The notes on pages 46 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #% 201643 7 31 H IL4EE
-

2016 2015
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bisr BT BT
Cash flows from operating activities BEEHNB SN E
Cash generated from operations BEIEH TGS 28 269,931 161,371
Interest paid AR (12,121) (9,311)
Hong Kong profits tax paid AR FIBL (14,501) (48,620)
Overseas profits tax paid AT SR (18,621) (22,880)
Overseas profits tax refunded TR BN HL 1,581 454
Net cash generated from operating activities EEEE) BT 1R B A 226,269 81,014
Cash flows from investing activities REFEHNR BN E
Purchase of property, plant and equipment AW ~ HEER Sty (109,695) (95,572)
Proceeds from sale of property, HEYE - B R
plant and equipment LS el 1,204 1,029
Investment in an associate N E A RE - (17,448)
Acquisition of a subsidiary YN/ 31 7,871 -
Interest received =il 1,946 1,342
Dividends received B 3,506 2,052
Disposal of prepayment of lease premium T B 1,527 -
Net cash used in investing activities BB E) T B 4 TR (93,641) (108,597)
Cash flows from financing activities S BN R
Drawdown of bank loans FEIRIT B 741,609 557,765
Repayment of bank loans IR AT R (697,806) (457,697)
Capital element of finance lease payments B EREAS (50) (129)
Dividends paid to the Company’s shareholders — ELf 72 Al R B, (10,465) (59,649)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests O A IR 2 IR HE A T S - (100)
Interest paid on convertible bonds O A AT 4R IR fi 2 1L (12,986) (13,533)
Net cash generated from financing activities TR O Y 1 B T 20,302 26,657
Net increase/(decrease) in cash Ba kB Em
and cash equivalents #Em,/ (eirb) 1E 4 152,930 (926)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning SEAIIY B BB Y
of the year 460,143 457,683
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes e e S ) ) 3 20 (13,848) 3,386
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ERNE S LB &5 EY 599,225 460,143
Analysis of balances of cash and B BB eSE &R
cash equivalents: 44 -
Bank balances and cash WATRE O Bl 20 599,225 460,143

The notes on pages 46 to 142 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

GENERAL INFORMATION

The principal activity of Stelux Holdings International
Limited (“the Company”) is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are shown in Note 35
to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Canon’s
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved by
the Board of Directors on 23 June 2016.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(@ Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets
and the liability component of the convertible bonds,
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@)

Basis of preparation (Continued)
Adoption of amendments to standards

The following amendments to standards are
mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 April 2015 and are adopted by the Group
during the year:

HKAS 19 (Amendment)  Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions

Annual Improvement Annual Improvements
Project (2010-2012 cycle)
Annual Improvement Annual Improvements
Project (2011-2013 cycle)

The adoption of the above amendments to standards
has no significant impact on the results and financial
position of the Group.

New standards and amendments to standards that are
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group

The following new standards and amendments to
standards have been published and are mandatory for
the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after
1 April 2015 or later periods, but the Group has not
early adopted them:

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHERME ()
(Continued)

(@) Basis of preparation (Continued) (@ wREE )

R R ERERT ()

New standards and amendments to standards that are
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by
the Group (Continued)

Effective for the Group's
annual financial periods
beginning on or after

URRTNEE T v

LB
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Disclosure initiative 1 April 2016
B ATHERE 1 9 (T4 bR )i 201654 /11T H
HKAS 7 (Amendment) Disclosure initiative 1 April 2017
B AR 79 (BT 4) R )i 20175471 H
HKAS 12 (Amendment) Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses 1 April 2017
B ATHERE 1258 (BT A) AR LR ENEEHERE 2017547 1H
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (Amendment) Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation 1 April 2016
FEATHEALE 16 S RFRETHER R AT BB AT A i 201654 /11T H
#3855 (BiTA)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 (Amendment) Agriculture: Bearer plants 1 April 2016
BRGNS 165t LA B G 7 R RIS 2016541 1H
B4 (BiTA)
HKAS 27 (Amendment) Equity method in separate financial statements 1 April 2016
BN 27 5 (AT 4) B AR 201654 A 1H
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 April 2018
FrIB R R AR 9 9 EMTR 20185411 H
HKFRS 10 and HKFRS 12 and Investment entities: Applying the consolidation exception 1 April 2016
HKAS 28 (Amendment) BT « RS ZARBIMER 2016541 1H

BRGNS 1095 - FEMBREER

FNFERFBGTEAS 285 (B4
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendment)

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its

To be determined

BB HCE R 1058 R associate or joint venture (i 7
i aTrEF 28 5 (7T A) fERRHRE A RSB LR N ER BRI E
HKFRS 11 (Amendment) Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations 1 April 2016
AR BRI 11 98 (BATA) Yol ea R 2 gt 201654 41 H
HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts 1 April 2016
BRI RIS 145 EHETRS 201654110
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers 1 April 2017
BEMBR AR 155 UV ASHIASE VA | UN 2017441 1H
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 April 2019
BRI 165 HE%E 20194710
Annual improvements project Annual improvements 2012-2014 cycle 1 April 2016
R 2012 22014 FE 2 R 0E 2016441 1H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTERME ()

(Continued)

(@) Basis of preparation (Continued) (@ wBEE )
New standards and amendments to standards that are [ 2 57T AN B B IS JHEFE AR AR A 1 7
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by TR RAERIEFT (7)

the Group (Continued)

The expected impacts from the adoption of the above 7B [ B L A DR A I S5 R ) S v
standards and amendments to standards are still being RIMERT 2 T2 2 > HE B RE BOR it
assessed in details by management and management S5 ) B ME B AT R 1 S AR A F A
is not yet in a position to state whether they would B R T I BSIR DU I 2 -

have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.
(b) KEAF
(b) Subsidiaries

(i) Consolidation

WY T 2 ) 6 A 2 L LA

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured i HE 1) i AL B (04
entity) over which the Group has control. The ) o EAEME G2 M H
Group controls an entity when the Group is R T 7 7% T A (] Y L e E
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns AR s RS > WA RES
from its involvement with the entity and has the 375 it HC B % T RO R ) B
ability to affect those returns through its power S5 [m i RE o AR BN EE I LB
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated 8 o BB A A Z AR H B
from the date on which control is transferred to HIETAEEZ HR2WEEE
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the AR - I B Rz RERC L 2 1
date that control ceases. FILSRARIAIRE o
49 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EEEWBRESE A
(Continued)
(b) Subsidiaries (Continued) b) MEBRRE )
(i) Consolidation (Continued) (i)  AAIEH ()
(1) Business combinations (1) ZEBEH
The Group applies the acquisition method A5 T BRI o SE

to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of
any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of
the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair
value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their
acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

BN o WS B R 2
Job i e A AR A 4 1 i
HERAVEE - B eOUE T
(iIE7 ZEPNIYE A DR =R 9/
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WOl 7 I JE e AL -

7SR A5 T8 ol s A e
Tl FL A B A 7 ) 42
FEHE 2 o AU T 1 8
i B e AT M AR i I
FCHR A R T R IRF 4 L 491
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R Y EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

Consolidation (Continued)

(1)

Business combinations (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved
in stages, the acquisition date carrying
value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition
date; any gains or losses arising from such
re-measurement are recognised in the
income statement.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed
to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 39 in the income
statement. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured,
and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill (note 2(g)). If
the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHEREME ()
(Continued)
(b) Subsidiaries (Continued) b) KEBATE ()
(i) Consolidation (Continued) (i)  AAIEH ()

(1)

Business combinations (Continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting
policies.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions-
that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners.

(M

KHE A

LN - LEAA ]
M 52 5 2 i i Je R B B
T LA o R BER
IR T LABE] o RAHE
IR o A JBg 2 ) e i 2 <
T LA B LA R B A 4R 1
ZERTBURTT &2

A A 2 2 A
2 T 42 i R A

S JF e PR MR 4 AT AN B
R P HE 2 52 5 LA i
Lo AN > B 5 A B
A NEAT 228 5 o AR
CAT AU 2 24P (B RE A

The difference between fair value of any JIT N R JB 2 ) R AR
consideration paid and the relevant share T {EL P 5 [H] 2 22 451 A
acquired of the carrying amount of net gtk o M T I O RE f
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in JIT AR 2 B O 5 A HE
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to fii. ©

non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R Y EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Consolidation (Continued)
(3) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as
an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to the income
statement.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving dividends
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(0

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the
date of acquisition. The Group’s investments in
associates include goodwill identified on acquisition.
Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in
an associate, any difference between the cost of the
associate and the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to the income
statement where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of
post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(d)

Associates (Continued)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to ‘share of results of an associate’ in the income
statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associate have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on disposal or dilution of equity interest
in associates are recognised in the income statement.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive
directors of the Company that makes strategic
decisions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (HK$), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuations where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement, except when deferred in other
comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow
hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets, such as equities classified
as available for sale, are included in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R Y EE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ifi)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

- income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

- all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

2

FESTHEEREE (4

(e)

INEIAE ()
(iii)  ZESHE T2 A

£ BN BT A Y e B B 2
GWERT 2 8 (e Ik A
BRI 2 1) 2 245 K IR
Lo LA R S B
i

- KREEAMKTREINEE
S B HAS A 2l
HEARE

- BRI A KT
P RE SRR E > HEILT
YA 3E 22 5y & H BiAT i
FHEREMR Z AL
BRA o ZERLIE LT - YA
B3 31 % 38 5 A R
=N

= JTA B R R AR
HoAt 2T AR o

Wi S i S B B T A R B
T RSN E
KB A B Sl 4% Wi B % 4
B o A BEE S 25 REUARE R A
(UEXTTIE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISR MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EESHBESE )
(Continued)
(e) Foreign currency translation (Continued) (e) INEIBE (HH)
(iv) Disposal of foreign operation and partial (iv) i B A R s o i B

disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the
equity holders of the Company are reclassified
to the income statement.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are reattributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (that
is, reductions in the group’s ownership interest
in associate that do not result in the group
losing significant influence), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange difference is
reclassified to the income statement.

T B — T P SERS IR (B 6
A AR T A Y8 A1 65 BT R 2 R R
at o B R (EAE— RIS
W) B > w2 i RE 2
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UL 1 LBl o3 ik 2 25T BE 5
2 BT B T e 2 s i T
ATEAR 8 P RERE o HAh RO
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SRR B R

(f)  Property, plant and equipment % BBRRE
WIS ~ B B s 4 B S A o R A
Preg K BB E R RANR o B AR
BLAE BRI R 2 SO IE H B3 o

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

®

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced parts is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest
becomes available for its intended use. Amortisation
on leasehold land classified as finance lease and
depreciation on other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:
Leasehold land classified Shorter of remaining
as finance lease lease term or
useful life
Lesser of the unexpired
lease term or 20 to

Buildings

50 years
Equipment and 3 to 10 years or over
the lease term
3 to 15 years

4 to 5 years

leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

No depreciation is provided on freehold land.
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are

reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESTHERBE (&)
(Continued)
(f)  Property, plant and equipment (Continued) ¥ - BBRERE (A

(8

An asset’s carrying amount is written down

immediately to its recoverable amount if the

asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (note 2(h)).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by

comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and

are recognised in the income statement.

Intangible assets

(i)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of
subsidiaries represents the excess of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value
of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"),
or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill
is allocated represents the lowest level within
the entity at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes. Goodwill is
monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of CGU
containing goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher
of value in use and the fair value less costs
of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g

(h)

Intangible assets (Continued)
(i)  Goodwill (Continued)
(ii)  Trademarks

Trademarks have an indefinite useful life and
the carrying amount brought forward are not
amortised but tested annually for impairment.
Trademarks are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation up to 31 March 2005 and
impairment losses.

(iii)  Technical know-how

Technical know-how acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The technical know-how has
a finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is
calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of the technical know-how of
thirty years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example,
goodwill and trademark or assets not ready to use are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHEEME ()
(Continued)
()  Financial assets i)y SMEE
Classification Vg |

The Group classifies its financial assets in the

following categories: loans and receivables and

available for sale. The classification depends on the

purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.

Management determines the classification of its

financial assets at initial recognition.

()

(i)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These are
classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise deposits, trade
and other receivables and bank balances in the
balance sheet.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the end of the reporting period.

AL E LT R e A E
SRR WGHIE DA B Tt B o 08
AT OB 0 < il 7 T AE o A B
Fe FLA) A7 e SR L Al 7 AT )

K o

(1)

(i)

R IEN

B HE WK f HLA [ E B
it AR A EL S R A {7 SR T 8
WEMFEMEEMEE  HE
HTERBEE - O & H Y
A A 00 TR A6 ARA% 12418 H LA
BT & &R AR SN » 7%
SFMBFRBEE - AL
9 4 S E WO TR AL A B A
HERNESE - 8o LA
IE MR T A B -

A (i B i B

AT O 2 AR E T L
I BSIG A 3 HE 7 2 o] H At
A JEATAE TR 4678 IR i
B EE > BRJE 5CE 2 e B
G A TR ot D PR A6 TR AR 1 2.4
H R AR 1 1 1l

B () A RA A
2016 4F4F-H

62



63

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0]

Financial assets (Continued)
Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available for sale are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the income
statement as other gains/(losses),net.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in
the consolidated income statement as part of other
income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EEETBRERSE )
(Continued)
(i)  Financial assets (Continued) (i) =SmEE )
Impairment of financial assets TREERE
(i) Assets carried at amortised cost () IR AT B

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets
is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,
and where observable data indicate that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M o

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0]

()

(k)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(i)  Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost includes the cost of direct labour, materials
and appropriate proportion of production overhead
expenditure, and is calculated on the weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is the anticipated
sales proceeds less selling expenses in the ordinary
course of business.

Trade debtors

Trade debtors are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
debtors is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade debtors are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

Trade debtors (Continued)

Trade debtors are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
debtors is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade debtors are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

A provision for impairment of trade debtors is
established when there is objective evidence that the
Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the trade debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered indicators that the trade
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision
is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the
use of an allowance account, and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the income statement. When
a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for debtors. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, and bank overdrafts.
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities on the balance sheet.

(m) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.

(n) Creditors

Creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Creditors are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Creditors are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

(0) Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(0)

(p)

Borrowings and borrowing costs (Continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facilities will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facilities will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facilities to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the income
statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Compound financial instruments

The Group determines the classification of its financial
liabilities at initial recognition. All financial liabilities
are recognised initially at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs.

Compound financial instruments issued by the Group
comprise convertible bonds that can be converted
to share capital at the option of the holder, and the
number of shares to be issued does not vary with
changes in their fair value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA RS ERaR B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Compound financial instruments (Continued)

The liability component of a compound financial
instrument is recognised initially at the fair value
of a similar liability that does not have an equity
conversion option. The equity component is
recognised initially at the difference between the
fair value of the compound financial instrument as a
whole and the fair value of the liability component,
which is included in shareholders’equity in other
reserves. Any directly attributable transaction costs
are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability
component of a compound financial instrument
is carried at fair value. The equity component of a
compound financial instrument is not re-measured
subsequent to initial recognition except on conversion
or expiry.

The liability component of a convertible instrument
is classified as current unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q)

(r)

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the
countries where the Company, its subsidiaries
and its associate operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R Y RE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i)

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
the deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided
on taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associate,
except for deferred income tax liability where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EEREABEME )
(Continued)
() Current and deferred income tax (Continued) (r HERIELERSS ()
(i)  Deferred income tax (Continued) (i) EHITFER (4)
Outside basis differences (Continued) HNERELBEZE L ()

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and associate only
to the extent that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis.

(s) Employee benefits

(i)

Pension obligations

Group companies operate various pension
schemes. The schemes are generally funded
through payments to insurance companies or
trustee-administered funds. The Group mainly
has defined contribution plans.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R R R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Pension obligations (Continued)

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal
or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior
periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a
formula that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the Company’s shareholders
after certain adjustments. The Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHEREME ()
(Continued)
(s)  Employee benefits (Continued) s) EERF )
(i) Termination benefits (i) ALIFFEF)

(iv)

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises
costs for a restructuring that is within the
scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

(iv)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R R R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(  Share-based payment transactions

(i)

Issue of convertible bonds as share-based
payment transactions

If the identifiable consideration received by the
Company appears to be less than the fair value
of the convertible bonds issued, the Company
measures the unidentifiable services received (to
be received) as the difference between the fair
value of the convertible bonds issued and that
of the identifiable consideration received, and
the difference is recognised in the profit or loss
immediately unless qualified for capitalisation.

The liability component (i.e. the bondholder’s
right to demand payment in cash) of the
convertible bonds will be accounted for
as a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction while the equity component (i.e.
the bondholder’s right to demand settlement
in the Company’s shares) of the convertible
bonds will be accounted for as an equity-
settled share-based payment transaction. The
entity first measures the fair value of the liability
component, and then measure the fair value of
the equity component by taking into account
that the bondholder must forfeit the right to
receive cash in order to receive the equity
instrument. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the liability component of the convertible bonds
is stated at fair value, with changes recorded
in the income statement under finance cost.
The equity component is not re-measured
subsequent to initial recognition.

STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

2

FEESHEEREE (4
O HARHBERIARRS
(i) BT AT IR 23 LR 13 75

HPEZ NS

A AL T CRCRT Bk AU A
RS Jr 3% 47 m] fhe FBE AR 23 1) 2
SF-{EL > A R DA BT B AT AT
B A6 55 ) 2 - B 2 W B T
ik (UE AP E 2 M5 &5t
SR GIF i) o RE Bk
9 B 5 - T A IR 22 R B RS 7R
AR R RS > BRIEHAT & &%
ETTEA

AT AR 2 2 AR (R
IR RPN R LB & AT e i
H) o A 2 Bl A B LA A
Lt 2 AR o ABR > i A] 4
et 2 g AR (R 5 A
SR LLA Y 7 e A 1 A 2
A o WA A DUBCAS &5 55 DUBEfy
AR ALY o HRE L
FHE ARG 2 A TE > AR
AT RME G N 2 A E > Hp
SEA e RPNV )€ 3
B 2 REA > 7 AT OO o
TH - YIRHERSAR - AR
Ir Z BRI 15 T (E S R
11 A B8l ) e A WA i 2 817 U
BEAST o HE 2 B A 17 0 46 e R
AR R -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

()

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and the
amounts has been reliably estimated. Provisions are
not recognised for future operating losses. Provision
for an onerous contract is recognised when the
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under
the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to
be received.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Recognition of revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, and represents
amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated net of
discounts, returns and value added taxes. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customers, the type of
transactions and the specifics of each arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R Y RE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)  Recognition of revenue (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Sales of goods — retail

Sales of goods are recognised when a group
entity sells a product to the customer. Retail
sales are usually in cash or by credit card.

Sales of goods — wholesale and trading

Sales of goods are recognised when the Group
has delivered products to the customer,
the customer has accepted the product and
collectability of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.

Building management fee income and eye care
service income

Building management fee income and eye
care service income are recognised when the
services are rendered.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w)

(x)

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and
equipment. Leases of property, plant and equipment
where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the
leased property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
borrowings. The interest element of the finance cost is
charged to the income statement over the lease period
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
The property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of the
useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and
Company’s financial statements in the year in which
the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FA RS ERaR B o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(y)

Financial guarantee

A financial guarantee (a kind of insurance contract) is
a contract that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments
when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of a debt instrument. The Group does
not recognise liabilities for financial guarantees at
inception, but perform a liability adequacy test at each
reporting date by comparing the carrying amount of
the net liability regarding the financial guarantee with
its present legal or constructive obligation amount. If
the carrying amount of the net liability is less than its
present legal or constructive obligation amount, the
entire difference is recognised in the income statement
immediately.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(@)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong,
China and a number of countries in South
East Asia. Retail sales transactions are mostly
denominated in the functional currencies of
respective group entities. The Group’s exposure
to foreign exchange risk mainly arises from
commercial transactions, recognised assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the group entities
to which they relate. The Group considers its
foreign currency exposure as mainly arising
from the exposure of the Singapore dollar,
Malaysian ringgit, Thai baht and Renminbi
against the Hong Kong dollar. The Group
regularly monitors its exposures to foreign
currency transactions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 M EREE (4)
(@ Financial risk factors (Continued) (@ HHEREBEZE G
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (i) ShEEmR G ()

The details of the currencies in which the
Group’s bank loans are denominated are set
out in Note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Group’s bank loans are
principally denominated in the functional
currency of the relevant group entity.
Management does not anticipate any significant
foreign exchange risk associated with the
Group’s borrowings.

The approximate impact to the Group'’s (loss)/
profit before tax that might be resulted from
the reasonable possible changes in the foreign
exchange rates against the Hong Kong dollar to
which the Group has significant exposure at 31
March 2016 is summarised below. The analysis
includes balances between group companies
where the balances are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currencies of
the lending or the borrowing entities.

A5 [ B BRAT S wH(E B
w1 B R H B RE25 o A SR
(19 SR AT 8 3K I B LA S A R
L TR B W R o e
St A FEH AT TR A S R AT
(DE SN

201643 A31H » NALEM
By [ 0 S D TR TE SR A
SR B A ) T AR B0 A SR
WL AT (5 18) Vs A 40 5 2
BEEEW N o 32T 4G £ A
A2 TR R &5 6% o T R% A5 % 9 LA
PR EER IR LI &
WERTE o

2016 2015
Increase  Decrease Increase Increase
in foreign in loss  in foreign in profit
exchange before  exchange before
rate income tax rate income tax
SMNEER  BRBIAIE  SNERER  BRBUATG
g B A MR
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Singapore dollar BT 5% 3,876 5% 3,297
Malaysian ringgit TRV B A i 5% 4,666 5% 4,121
Thai baht B 7S 5% 390 5% 293
Renminbi NG 5% 8,064 5% 3,042

ke 4b [ BE R I8 D 5% (2015
AF 1 5%) AFEBRBLHT (5 18)
Yo ] 7 A= A (] 4 BFAELAR I )
52 o

Decrease in the above foreign exchange rates
by 5% (2015: 5%) would affect the (loss)/profit
before income tax by the same amount but in
the opposite direction.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R R R

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(@ Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows
are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates as the Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets other than
bank balances, details of which have been
disclosed in Note 20. The Group’s exposure to
changes in interest rates is mainly attributable
to its bank loans. Bank loans at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate
risk. Details of the Group’s bank borrowings
are disclosed in Note 25(a) to the consolidated
financial statements. The Group is exposed
to fair value interest rate risk arising from the
convertible bonds bearing interest at fixed rate.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps
to hedge its exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk.

At 31 March 2016, if interest rates of bank loans
at variable rates had been 50 basis points (2015:
50) higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, loss for the year would have been
HK$3,265,000 (2015: profit for the year would
have been HK$2,915,000 lower/higher) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 B EREE (4)
(@ Financial risk factors (Continued) (@ HHEREBEZE G
(iii)  Credit risk (i) 17 B

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to perform an obligation by
the counterparties arises from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial
assets (mainly include deposits with banks and
debtors) as stated in the consolidated balance
sheet.

Bank balances are deposited in banks with
sound credit ratings to mitigate the risk arising
from banks. The Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk with any single
counterparty or group of counterparties. The

I R 52 5 3 F 07 R RE AT
FAL 51 B 5 e 1R TR I 2 R
KAG B B ok B 576 EE AR
R PTHA CE R B L R
T > 2 AR AT A7 A K
SRR -

HRAT 45 BR AT O AR B AP A R 7
19 SR AT LA SRR MR SR AT A AR A A
B o A% 45 [ Sl J BELAT: o] BE— 52
SEF IR AL HEF A
I 119 o] B A £ 5 4 v LB o

Group also has policies in place to assess A IR B FT A BUOR sEAL % 5
the credit worthiness of customers to ensure ZE Sk > AHEARE & Y
that sales of products are made to wholesale EEAERGZAERT

customers with an appropriate credit history.
Besides, management of the Group monitors its
credit risk on an ongoing basis by reviewing the
debtors’ aging to minimise its exposure to credit
risk.

Sales to retail customers are made in cash or via
major credit cards.

Rental deposits are mainly placed with various
landlords in countries where the Group operates
and are due to refund upon the expiry of the
tenancy agreements and handover of the leased
premises. During the year, the Group did not
experience any defaults by the landlords.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M o

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBRRER )
(@ Financial risk factors (Continued) (@ HMERBEZEGHE)
(iv)  Liquidity risk (iv) BB E L

Prudent liquidity risk management implies I 2 B < R B B AR
maintaining sufficient cash and the availability HERr 20 B BB A U
of funding through an adequate amount of W) 2 BR S SRR AR L
banking facilities. Due to the dynamic nature of ZEE - MRMHBET GRS
the underlying businesses, management aims to s WUE BT BT MR SRR
maintain flexibility in funding by keeping credit AR o DUOR A B 2 I T
lines available. P o

The table below analyses the Group’s financial T RBR A AN\ 2
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based HAE > AR B A
on the remaining period at the balance sheet WEMHEEAZSAFMAN
to the contractual maturity date. The amounts Tl 5 IR R AT A AT o T 2R IR B
disclosed in the table are the contractual B E AR BB SR E -

undiscounted cash flows.

Repayable
on demand/ Between Between
within 1 year 1and 2 2and 3 Over
EEREE years years 3 years

180T 1225 2E3FR 3ELE
HK$' 000  HK$' 000 HK$ 000  HK$’' 000
BT BT BT BT

At 31 March 2016 20163 H31H

Bank borrowings (note b)  S-ATEK (&t b) 668,886 1,666 1,700 15,388
Finance lease MEHE 31 62 62 88
Convertible bonds (note a) I A& % (it a) 12,986 380,308 - -
Creditors and accruals JRE A5} AR 2 1% B 128 R 556,018 - - -
At 31 March 2015 20153 31 H

Bank borrowings (note b)  #UTHEFK (H&kb) 589,777 13,552 10,901 29,983
Finance lease MEHE 60 60 60 119
Convertible bonds (note a) A #altfif 2% (W3 a) 12,986 12,986 380,308 -
Creditors and accruals OB AR} B I JE 2 598,715 - - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBEBRERE A
(@ Financial risk factors (Continued) (@ HHEREBEZE G
(iv)  Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) B &L ()
Note: BF5E
(@) The analysis on the convertible bonds above (@) bl ] i AR 5 1 o A T R
assumes the bond holder’s option has not been R B RS SR A A2
exercised and has not been converted to shares RSN e A7 fef7 L3I e ot 0 ni i
at the time of maturity (Note 26). iy (Bt 26) »
Should the bond holder exercises the option A 185 5 1 AN B B R AT IRE
at the earliest possible time, the maturity AT - B EEAfR
groupings of the convertible bonds from the FI 40 2 T e R A 2 0 40 B 4%
balance sheet date would be as follows: MR
Between Between
Within 1and 2 2and 3 Over
1 year years years 3 years
TEUT 1826/ 2E3FR 3ENE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
BT BT BT BT
At 31 March 2016 R20164-3 H31H 124,293 380,308 - -
At 31 March 2015 201543 131 H 12,986 124,293 360,308 -
(b)  Certain borrowings contain a repayment (b)  # TG B R AR
on demand clause which can be exercised R 3C > Al R SRAT R REM AT
at the bank’s sole discretion. The analysis i o DUR 23 M R AR SR ST
below shows the cash outflows based on the BRMBEARE - AH 4
scheduled repayment. The amount includes A 45 18 & 40 F S 5151 )
interest payments computed using contractual ST WER R AR
rates. The directors believe that such O 5 K Bt e P S T )
borrowings will be repaid in accordance with K F A o
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
loan agreements.
Between Between
Within 1and 2 2and 3 Over
1 year years years 3 years
1EUTF 1826/ 2E3FR 3ENE
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
BT BT BT BT
At 31 March 2016 "201643 H31H 323,486 43,019 42,047 309,955
AU31 March 2015 /8201543 /131 H 589,777 13,552 10901 29,983
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M o

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMEEBRER )
(b) Capital risk management (b)) EXEBEE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to AR T Y B A I AR IR A A
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going R AR A 78 LA PR AR At ] A 7 G
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders M HE AR A NS BERI £ - (7] IR A R I
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an 1) A 5 e DA TR A 4 A 2 e
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. Ji e
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the T T MERF B B AR AN > ARG T
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to RE B W RS SN IR A e B OB - 1) I
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new FUOR G ~ AT B A DA
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. AR -
Consistent with others in the industry, the Group B HoA S WA vE — B ALEFILL
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. TR HE R ARy B AR B E o (8
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total FO R R B DL A SR O o 1T
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings HHHERAE (G EEAR
(including current and non-current borrowings and TR 2 B SIE BB DA B A
convertible bonds as shown in the consolidated A5 ) WARAT A B R Bl e EE o &
balance sheet) less bank balances and cash. Total ARBET ARG A EE AERIURE
capital is calculated as ‘shareholders’ funds” as shown R ] o
in the consolidated balance sheet.
The gearing ratios at 31 March 2016 and 2015 were as W20154 K 201643 H 31 H 2 &8
follows: FEAREI T
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Total borrowings (Note 25) SRR (5T 25) 674,487 631,793
Convertible bonds (Note 26) é‘e &2 (KHEE26) 446,424 380,753
Less: Bank balances and cash ¥ : #8474k KB4 (F3E20)

(Note 20) (599,225) (460,143)
Net debt IFE 521,686 552,403
Shareholders’ funds IS 1,229,803 1,446,480
Gearing ratio fER 42% 38%
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PR ER AR B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(9]

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair value by valuation method.
The different levels have been defined as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

J Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

J Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) (level 3).

The Group’s available-for-sale financial assets
and liability components of convertible bonds are
measured at fair value by discounting the estimated
future cash flows. Their fair value measurement is
classified as level 3. Changes in level 3 instruments for
the year ended 31 March 2016 are set out in Note 17
and Note 26 respectively.

There was no transfer of financial instruments into or
out of level 3 during the year.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
including cash and cash equivalents, deposits,
debtors and other receivables, and financial liabilities
including creditors, other payables and current
borrowings, approximate their fair values due to their
short maturities.

3 MBEREBRERE)

(]

AR
A A LA R REHS TR - S0
S DL T A R A P
R U

o MR EERAFEEERTSE
AR ORECHEE) R -

o BREE—MPTEIERIRAES > &
FE BB RN AT (R A% 32
fi] #e (RPAGE ( 4 A5 iy ) LR P
WAE (38R o

o Sl R AR R TS T 8 R 2
¥ e B e A (e (RPN R B
FHIAE) CR=#R) -

AR 14 RT3 e B AT R

& BAE A T4 8 8 B I sAG w1
KRB R ETT R o S PENEZS

RO o HE20164E3 H31 H IR
AT L sl 4y A SO B R 17 S
5126

A A ST S8 A B B = S
A -

FS E 0 H R AR BB R
(BB & LB ESEY - fF30 1§
W HREK) e BB B 6 (LA A AR B
FEL B 2 MR T BB AP (ELAR A -
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2016 4F4F-H 86



87

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M o

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(i) Net realisable value of stocks

Net realisable value of stocks is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition
and the historical experience of manufacturing and
selling products of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management will reassess the estimations at
the balance sheet date.

(i) Impairment of trade debtors

The Group’s management determines the provision
for impairment of debtors receivable. This estimate is
based on the credit history of its customers and the
current market condition. Management reassesses the
provision at each balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses annually whether property, plant
and equipment exhibit any indications of impairment.
The recoverable amounts are determined based on
value-in-use calculation. The value-in-use calculation
involves estimating the future cash inflows and
outflows to be derived from continuing use of the
asset and applying the appropriate discount rate to
those future cash flows. The estimation of future cash
flows and selection of discount rate require the use of
judgements and estimates. Management believes that
any reasonably foreseeable change in any of the above
key elements in the value-in-use calculation would
not result in material additional impairment charges.

Impairment of intangible assets and goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill and
trademarks have suffered any impairment. Technical
know-how is reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts have been determined based on
value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs to sell.
These calculations require the use of judgments and
estimates (Note 15).

Deferred income tax

The Group’s management determines the amount
of deferred tax asset to be recognised by estimating
the amount of future profit available to utilise the
tax losses or certain temporary differences in the
relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The estimate is
based on the projected profit in respective jurisdiction
and entity and the Group uses its judgement to
make assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing on balance sheet date. It could
change as a result of the uncertainties in the market
conditions.

4

BREH bt RAE )

(i)

(iv)

)
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A5 0435 3 R A T 2 S T R
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BRI R B SR E o B ELEZ
HEwE - JOREH M 152 % 5
2 A st o RS S
A A EAR B A B AT FH
SEH) > AN E B RSN IR o

BIEENRE

7% £ [0 A A Tt R R R A o B
TRAE o F B IR I B SRR
T (B V) B I 72 i o] IR 3 B S A
e B EEATAR ST o AT [m] 4 B A%
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IESEFRSH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M o

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(vi) Fair value of convertible bonds

The fair value of convertible bonds are determined
using valuation techniques including reference to
other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing
model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this
is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values.

(vii) The right to acquire 12% equity interest in CATENA
SA

On 16 April 2015, the Group entered into a
shareholders’ agreement with the 12% equity interest
holder of CATENA SA for a right to purchase the 12%
equity interest. Management has assessed the risks and
rewards of the 12% equity interest by considering the
purchase price of the right and the Group’s intention
to exercise the right. Since the exercise price is the
net asset value in the book of CATENA SA which is
substantially lower than the fair value of CATENA SA
and it is highly likely that the Group will exercise the
right, management considered that the risks and rewards
of the 12% equity interest have been transferred to
the Group upon the completion of the transaction.
Accordingly, the financial statements of CATENA
SA have been consolidated as if it is a 100% owned
subsidiary since 16 April 2015.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-makers have been identified
as the executive directors. The executive directors review
the Group’s financial information mainly from product
and geographical perspectives. From a geographical
perspective, management mainly assesses the performance
of watch and optical operations in Hong Kong, Macau and
Mainland China and rest of Asia.

Revenue represents sales of goods. Sales between operating
segments are carried out on terms equivalent to those
prevailing in arm’s length transactions. The executive
directors assess the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of adjusted earnings before interest and
tax (EBIT). This measurement basis excludes unallocated
income and net corporate expenses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR B

5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 oHENG)

Unallocated income represents dividend income from RATEMCA BTG 0B B A o 4 B47 B
investment. Net corporate expenses mainly represent T S T2y B A R e AR B AE AL
staff costs and provision for senior management bonus. B o o o3 IC A G A T D TET U1 A
Unallocated assets represent equipment and debtors at WORR R ~ B s mPE ~ AT s B
corporate level, investment in an associate, available-for- B IR E B A A E DL SR AT &S R K
sale financial assets, deferred tax assets and bank balances G o AT TC BAE S S ) R T ARG REAST B ER
and cash. Unallocated liabilities represent creditors and JEFHE - (EE - THRR A - IR EBIIA
accruals at corporate level, borrowings, convertible bonds, BE BT TARBE

deferred tax liabilities and income tax payable.

For the year ended 31 March 2016

BE26F3ANALEE
Watch retail Optical retail
ERZE RERE

Hong Kong, Hong Kong,

Macau and Macau and
Mainland Rest ~ Mainland Rest ~ Wholesale Group
China of Asia China of Asia trading Total

- N

AR L1y E15)'3 £y I KE
TEAR  HBME  PEAE  HHME % st
HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
AR BRffr  AMfn  BRER BRffn %R

Revenues A
Gross segment AP 1387825 415946 1025062 228746 613815 3,671,394
Inter-segment il - - - - (269,678)  (269,678)
1,387,825 415946 1,025,062 228,746 344,137 3,401,716
Segment results MRS (30,770) (199) 22950 (10590 10159  (8450)
Unallocated income FATIA 3,506
Net corporate expenses SEETEE (89,991)
Operating loss BXRER (94,935)
Finance costs R (90,778)
Loss before income tax BB R (185,713)
Income tax expense PR (4,066)
Loss for the year ERER (189,779)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS ERaR B o

5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 DEER ()

For the year ended 31 March 2016

BEW6F3ANALEE
Watch retail Optical retail
BRIE REZTE

Hong Kong, Hong Kong,

Macau and Macau and
Mainland Rest ~ Mainland Rest ~ Wholesale Group
China of Asia China of Asia trading  Unallocated Total
BR L)) AR L) & &8

TEAE  HEME  PEARE  HEHE ] Vil fazt
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ARffn  BRffrn  ERffr BB BRffn  ERfx ERfx

Capital expenditures BAMRR (28,827)  (11,09) (39957  (18174) (76,947 (9,042)  (184,043)
Depreciation I (27,590) (17,136) (36,957) (10,674) (3,157) (12,760) (108,274)
Amortisation of BT E A

prepayment of

lease premium - (3,126 - (2,774) - - (5,900)
Amortisation of B g

intangible assets - - - - (2,346) - (2,346)
(Provision)/write back of 75 () /1

provision for stocks (4,947) 6,545 (5,678) (673) (29,477) - (34,230
Impairment of property, ~ #13 ~ &2 &

plant and equipment A (3,438) (568) (2,620) (395) - - (7,021)
Impairment of intangible  #E%; 4

assets - - - - (26,431) - (26,431)
Provision for onerous ~ FIEHEE AL

contracts iy (15,424) - (2,136) - . - (17,560)
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5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 DEER ()

For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE201543 731 HILFE

Watch retail Optical retail
BHETE 37233
Hong Kong, Hong Kong,
Macau and Macau and

Mainland Rest  Mainland Rest ~ Wholesale Group

China of Asia China of Asia trading Total

R R L#h] R R il it (3

MECKEE HEMME PERE RERUE *1 it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R WP WP BB WP W

Revenues LN

Gross segment IR 1698368 514088 1054789 276716 964153 4,508,114
Inter-segment 7 biH - - - - (567,265 (567,265)
1,698,368 514,088 1,054,789 276,716 396,888 3,940,849

Segment results DS 189,173 260 51,866 (6715 85103 319,69
Unallocated income FAEIA 2,052
Net corporate expenses MBI (103,797)
Operating profit gl 217,951
Finance costs PR (72,141)
Share of loss of an associate  FEf /A FlEE (5302)
Profit before income tax ~ FRAF BTG 140,508
Income tax expense P B (48,449)
Profit for the year R F 92,059
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A RS ERaR B o

5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 DEER ()

For the year ended 31 March 2015

HE201553 431 HILFE
Watch retail Optical retail
HETE REFE

Hong Kong, Hong Kong,

Macau and Macau and
Mainland Rest  Mainland Rest ~ Wholesale Group
China of Asia China of Asia trading  Unallocated Total
/PR A R R Lkl it (3
PEARE  HEMLE  PEKE LR e RO st

HK§'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BRI BR BRI W W R

Capital expenditures BASER (30200)  (14,628)  (34,613) (5,532) (1,289) (9,580)  (95,842)
Investment in an associate NS\ AL - - - - - (17,448) (17,448)
Depreciation & (29,106) (21,701) (35,475) (12,992) (1,914) (12,440) (113,628)
Amortisation of BHEATENE

prepayment of

lease premium - (3,639) - (3,212) - - (6,851)
Amortisation of By G

intangible assets - - - - _ _ _

(Provision)/write back of 775 (B /B

provision for stocks (4,270) 2,808 (1,364) (3,420) (13,294 - (19,540)
Impairment of property, 1%  #25 Rt

plant and equipment R (2,210) (1,126) (1,197) (1,033) - - (5,566)
Provision for onerous HEREEAY

contracts g (48) - (130) - - - (178)

As at 31 March 2016
R2016E3A31R

Watch retail Optical retail
BETE RETE

Hong Kong, Hong Kong,

Macau and Macau and
Mainland Rest ~ Mainland Rest  Wholesale Group
China of Asia China of Asia trading Total

N R

AR L) AR L) I

TEAR  HBME  PEAE  HHBME %
HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ARffn  BRffn  EMffr BB BB ERfx

Segment assets ARG 787,577 200,472 365,570 136,079 536,047 2,025,745

Unallocated assets FAMEE 932,643

Total assets HEE 2,958,388

Segment liabilities AT 256,077 40,140 155,551 28,333 85,909 566,010

Unallocated liabilities FEAE 1,155,560

Total liabilities AR 1,721,570
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5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 DEER ()

As at 31 March 2015
R201543 431 H

Watch retail Optical retail
T REZE
Hong Kong, Hong Kong,
Macau and Macau and
Mainland Rest  Mainland Rest ~ Wholesale Group
China of Asia China of Asia trading Total
Bk Ll PR i it %M

TEAKE  REE  PEAE HELE *H st
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Wi W WWir wRr EW W

Segment assets G 984203 281,030 364807 143711 460,885 2,234,636
Unallocated assets FAMEE 856,776
Total assets HERE 3,091,412
Segment liabilities A 272,781 47,184 157,045 25,777 67,842 570,629
Unallocated liabilities KA 1,066,953
Total liabilities aaf 1,637,582
An analysis of the Group's revenue by geographical area is T Ml AT AR BT
as follows:
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT AT
Hong Kong s 1,963,623 2,273,122
Macau T 222,964 270,335
Mainland China F K 391,093 397,102
Rest of Asia SO ER b 823,003 999,914
Europe By 1,033 376
3,401,716 3,940,849
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ISR R MR

5  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 ZEREM A
An analysis of the Group’s segments results by geographical iz 3 [ 734 5 1 3 B SE AN
area is as follows:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Hong Kong s 91,211 326,480
Macau LA 39,907 78,759
Mainland China e PN :: (110,357) (98,107)
Rest of Asia E I b [ 4,450 15,511
Europe BRI (33,661) (2,947)
(8,450) 319,696
An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other 2 b i o3 A7 6 1 U B (< R KR
than financial instruments and deferred tax assets) by JEBLTEE ERAN) T -
geographical area is as follows:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Hong Kong ik 251,039 272,587
Macau TR 169,204 168,863
Mainland China PR [R)  [E 61,592 59,530
Rest of Asia CHEVIER 7501 176,459 192,306
Europe [ P 80,721 96,164
739,015 789,450
6  OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES), NET 6 Httas (FER) - B8
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T AT
Gain on bargain purchase of ARE I E T Al (BFEE3T)
a subsidiary (Note 31) 9,863 -
Gain on remeasuring to fair RSB BLA T A AR
value of the existing interest in E R h s /NS U €
an associate upon acquisition (BF&E31)
of control (Note 31) 4,222 -
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEYE - B KR
plant and equipment, net Wess, (518 - 265 (688)
Exchange losses, net M SRR > AR (2,170) (15,869)
12,180 (16,557)
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g s b

OTHER INCOME 7 HflA
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Building management fee income MFE A LA 2,340 2,340
Dividend income from investments HE B E A 3,506 2,052
Interest income BN 1,946 1,342
Sundries AT 14,578 19,584
22,370 25,318
EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 BRMHEITHER
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Cost of stocks sold and raw B A B A SRR AR
materials consumed 1,370,752 1,524,407
Amortisation of intangible assets S MY G 2,346 -
Amortisation of prepayment of S YR R B A
lease premium 5,900 6,851
Depreciation of property, W2k - W S I 8
plant and equipment
— Owned —HE 108,220 113,623
— Leased — % 54 5
Impairment of property, LY YN R TR
plant and equipment 7,021 5,566
Impairment of intangible assets ST W o 26,431 -
Provision for onerous contracts LB A4 17,560 178
Auditor’s remuneration % TP 5
— Audit services — RS 5,350 5,539
— Non-audit services — A BT 1,777 3,300
Operating leases on buildings MFEEHNE 715,354 698,840
Provision for stocks 17 & e 34,230 19,540
Impairment of debtors JRE ISk T 80 116
Write back of bad debt provision 135 1] S HRVE (55) (40)
Donations EEEN 293 5316
Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) 1B B & A3 i (Fi5E9) 683,546 717,586
Others HAthy 552,342 630,832
Total cost of sales, selling expenses, — $HE A ~ SHE I - — R EATEL
general and administrative expenses 3¢ i K HoAth 5 4 32t AAH
and other operating expenses 3,531,201 3,731,659
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A RS R R B o

9  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 9 REEREAXH
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT WA
Salaries and allowances M B RS 621,199 646,450
Pension contributions less RAREGALK (FOBR B E 1Y

forfeiture utilised (Note a) BRI (Fiaka) 33,853 33,155
Termination benefits eIyl 2,124 1,669
Unutilised annual leave A F AR (576) 4
Social security costs FEE ORI S 23,143 31,990
Other allowances HoAth 4 B 3,803 4,318
683,546 717,586

(@) Pensions — defined contribution plans (@) ERE-— EHEMEZRHE

The Group operated a retirement scheme under
Occupation Retirement Scheme Ordinance (“ORSO
scheme”) up to 30 November 2000 for employees
in Hong Kong. With effect from 1 December 2000,
a mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) scheme is set
up which is available to eligible employees of the
Group, including executive directors. No further
employees and contributions have been added to the
ORSO scheme after the set up of MPF. Contributions
to the MPF scheme by the Group and employees
are calculated at rates specified in the rules of
the MPF scheme. The assets of the MPF scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.

For subsidiaries outside Hong Kong, contributions to
the local pension schemes are made by the Group and
employee, which are calculated at rates specified in
the rules of the local pension schemes. The assets of
the pension scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund.

Forfeited contributions totalling HK$4,049,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: HK$1,178,000)
arising from employees leaving the ORSO scheme,
were utilised to offset contributions during the year.
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9  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Continued) 9 EEEFXEH )
(b)  Five highest paid individuals b HEEUESHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the VNGNS N N s R
highest in the Group for the year include three (2015: =4 (20154F « =4)#EF > HHEE
three) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the 15 R B 34 A Ao S o

analysis shown in Note 34.

The emoluments payable to the remaining two (2015: FAAE R EAT P Hfk — 4 (20154 —
two) individuals during the year are as follows: Z)NTZBEIT
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000

b 3 AT

Basic salaries, allowance and B4 > R R EY A5

benefits in kind 2,451 2,615
Performance bonus FHAEAL 3,201 2,827
Contributions to pension plans R {RE & Y fHk 115 153

5,767 5,595
The emoluments fell within the following bands: v i E 2l /NG (1 I

Number of individuals

A
2016 2015
Emolument bands (in HK dolloar) #rAH A (7 %)
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 #5% 2,000,001 G #% 2,500,000 JG 1 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 %%3,000,001 ﬁi?’%%iSO0,000TE 1 1
2 2
()  Senior management emoluments 0 SHREBAEMS
The emoluments fell within the following bands: AT I NG o 1

Number of individuals

AE
2016 2015
Emolument bands (in HK dollar)  #FMI4HFI (#E %)
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 %%2,000,001 fnﬁ‘iﬁﬁrﬁz/SOO/Ooofm 1 1
1 1

B () A RA A 98
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e R Y EE

10  FINANCE COSTS 10 BRI
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts — $R4TER & 5 SR B 12,089 9,212
Borrowing cost on convertible bonds R4 B it fi £ 78,657 62,830
Interest on other financial liabilities HoAth o5 & ALS 25 82
Interest on finance leases S A A)S 7 17
90,778 72,141

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

11 FiBHixH

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% on the estimated assessable profits for the year ended
31 March 2016 (2015: 16.5%) less relief for available tax
losses. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated
on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates
of taxation prevailing in the territories in which the Group
operates.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated
income statement represents:

HE201643 A31 HIL4EEFEBFER T
AR C T 85 ] B A Bl TE AR R 1 A R R R B
Ui MR %16.5% (20154F & 16.5%) 5HE -
VA FIASBL TS AR A TR A 5 I BB U6k ) 4%
A 45 [ 65 7 L Y 9 PR B AT o

B R ARG Wi £ B I B e

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Current income tax AR PTATHL

— Hong Kong profits tax —E U1 11,188 34,668
— Overseas profits tax LT 6,145 20,796

— (Over)/under provision in AR Gl Z) b
respect of prior years (1,048) 48
16,285 55,512
Deferred income tax (Note 27) PRAEFTAS R (Bt 27) (12,219) (7,063)
Income tax expense PSR 4,066 48,449

The taxation on the Group’s (loss)/profit before income
tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the applicable tax rate, being the weighted average
of tax rates prevailing in the territories in which the Group
operates, as follows:

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

A [ 4 LR T A3 BT (s 183 A 1
SRBLIA > B EL R 4% 7 M T 1Y 7 B
CIAREF- 35 252 T w3 0 2 i B TH AT 22
Al IR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11 Ffedix (A7)
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
(Loss)/profit before income tax 4 BT BB BT (B8 T A (185,713) 140,508
Add: share of loss of an associate i REAS B A A SR - 5,302
(185,713) 145,810
Theoretical tax at weighted average T 20.75% (2015 4F :
rate of 20.75% (2015: 7.56%) 7.56%) 1515 Y B G A IE (38,538) 11,028
Income not subject to tax Kl SR IOL N (8,037) (13,203)
Expenses not deductible for ANETHIL Y BH 3
tax purpose 13,679 22,368
Recognition of temporary differences AL AF A B AERR 198 IRF M 26 38
not previously recognised 423 (4,179)
Utilisation of previously il PR 47 A e RR Y B I s 1R
unrecognised tax losses (6,221) (5,466)
Tax losses not recognised AT B B T e 1R 41,975 36,431
Effect of change in tax rates A5 B ) 5 2 - 227
(Over)/under provision in WL AR LR
respect of prior years (%) b (1,048) 48
Others HAth 1,833 1,195
Income tax expense FRABIS 4,066 48,449
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 20.75% T RET- 3538 A B % 55 20.75%% (2015 4F
(2015: 7.56%). The increase is caused by a change in the 7.56%) o B TY i A A A A0 B
distribution of profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in the W} T8 2 ) 11 385 ) 4 T 5t o T 3 o

respective countries.

B () A RA A
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12

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic

Basic (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
(loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

12

SR (1) BF
E-¥N
TG BEEAR (B R) /B A AR R AR 2 ) E 48

Fifr NHEAL fs18) /3 Bk DA C 88 17 3% 28
R B =5 -

2016 2015

Weighted average number of E BT 2 - 1

ordinary shares in issue (thousands) (DM 1,046,474 1,046,474
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity AN EIHERRFEA NHEAG Oks18) 16 )

holders of the Company (HK$’000) (AT IT) (190,009) 91,756
Basic (loss)/earnings per HIRIEA (k518) /7R (s Al)

share (HK cents) (18.16) 8.77
Diluted 3

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The Group’s dilutive potential ordinary shares in
existence represent convertible bonds. The convertible
bonds are assumed to have been converted into ordinary
shares, and the net profit is adjusted to eliminate the expense
relating to the convertible bonds less the tax effect.

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the year ended 31
March 2016 equals basic (loss)/earnings per share as the
conversion of convertible bonds would be anti-dilutive
(2015: same).

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 P13 - BBRFRE
Equipment,
leasehold
Land and improvements
buildings and others Total
A
T HE £
o Je M R K H A Bk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WA AT AT T
Year ended 31 March 2015 BZ2015F3 A31 HILFE
Opening net book amount A4l If {F4H 319,237 174,236 493,473
Additions nE - 95,842 95,842
Disposals/write off W R - (1,717) 1,717)
Depreciation e (8,291) (105,337) (113,628)
Impairment (note d) WA (it d) - (5,566) (5,566)
Exchange differences i 50 2= %A (3,789) (4,152) (7,941)
Closing net book amount 4R #& R TH 48 307,157 153,306 460,463
At 31 March 2015 R20155%3A831H
Cost AR 452,799 737,846 1,190,645
Accumulated depreciation 2 F1T8 K i (H
and impairment (145,642) (584,540) (730,182)
Net book amount MR Th {4 307,157 153,306 460,463

B () A RA A
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13 W - WEBRBE )
Equipment,
leasehold
Land and improvements
buildings and others Total
B
HEks
T RIEF BRRHA BE
HK$’000 HK$/000 HK$/000
BEAT T BT BEAT T
Year ended 31 March 2016 EZ2016F3 31 HLLEE
Opening net book amount  4F47) R T 3 48 307,157 153,306 460,463
Additions WH - 109,695 109,695
Disposals/write off R - (939) (939)
Depreciation e (7,995) (100,279) (108,274)
Impairment (note d) WAE (F5Ed) - (7,021) (7,021)
Acquisition of a subsidiary W2 "] (FiEE31)

(Note 31) - 3,532 3,532
Exchange differences T 50,22 %5 (2,476) (3,788) (6,264)
Closing net book amount A% R TH V48 296,686 154,506 451,192
At 31 March 2016 MR2016E3 A31H
Cost A 448,881 766,034 1,214,915
Accumulated depreciation 2 FITE K g (H

and impairment (152,195) (611,528) (763,723)
Net book amount U T V3 3R 296,686 154,506 451,192
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13

14

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) Y - BB RR1E (40)

Notes: RAE -

(@)  Certain property, plant and equipment of the Group have (@)  AEEETYHE - HHLRMCHRAT
been pledged for bank borrowings. The carrying value B A o R20164E3 H31H » 3%
of these property, plant and equipment as at 31 March LW - W A Y R T (Y B S i
2016 were approximately HK$283,382,000 (2015: 283,382,000 7T (2015 4F © 5 293,842,000
HK$293,842,000). JC) ©

(b) At 31 March 2016, the net book value of motor vehicles (b) 201643 A31H » EMEHE T HrH
held under finance leases amounted to HK$215,000 (2015: L MR VAR A R 215,000 9C (2015 4F
HK$265,000). i 265,000 70)

(c) Depreciation expense of HK$89,595,000 (2015: (c) P& 2 F %5 89,595,000 7T (2015 4F © #k
HK$96,583,000) has been charged in selling expenses and #96,583,000 70 ) B 71 A B S0 KOs
HK$18,679,000 (2015: HK$17,045,000) has been charged 18,679,000 JC (2015 4F = #5 17,045,000
in general and administrative expenses. 78) CRFA— R BATE S -

(d)  The Group regards its individual retail stores as separately (d) A A [ 4 AR 7 2 T il B 0 S T ik I ER
identifiable CGUs. It assessed the recoverable amounts of the G AR HUAL o T Tl TT S [m] 22 B 4 e A B
CGUs with reference to their value-in-use. An impairment PR RS 2% 2 ) 2 KO i 1 PR
provision of HK$7,021,000 (2015: HK$5,566,000) was ] T 30 0 v 2 Bl o) LR T (> OBk LA
made as their carrying values are not expected to be fully HE B 7,021,000 8 (20154F ©
recoverable. Impairment loss was included in other operating 5,566,000 7C) © WAEEHF A LR G U
expenses in the consolidated income statement. FAYHA A S -

PREPAYMENT OF LEASE PREMIUM AENEERE

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T

At 1 April WaH1H 40,242 47,256

Amortisation B8 (5,900) (6,851)

Exchange differences [ifE S0, 25 %0 (3,038) (163)

Disposal e (1,527) -

At 31 March W3H31H 29,777 40,242

Amortisation of prepayment of lease premium for premises

was included in selling expenses in the consolidated income

statement.

) S TR REL 6 P 48 0 R A 5 Wi R AR
AP S S
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15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15 \|BREEE
Technical
Goodwill Trademarks know-how Total
mE BiE  EEHE Mz
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
BEMST BEfTT BT BEfx
Year ended 31 March 2015 BZ2015F3A31HILLFE
Opening net book amount AR T T B 10,266 52,931 - 63,197
Exchange differences fE 50,75 %8 (1,260) (1,273) - (2,533)
Closing net book amount AR AR TH T A 9,006 51,658 - 60,664
At 31 March 2015 20153 A31H
Cost A 9,006 81,291 - 90,297
Accumulated amortisation S KOs

and impairment - (29,633) - (29,633)
Net book amount S AT {5 AH 9,006 51,658 - 60,664
Year ended 31 March 2016 BZ2016F3A31HILEE
Opening net book amount SRR IHT 9,006 51,658 - 60,664
Acquisition of a subsidiary T T (T3 T)

(Note 31) - - 70,816 70,816
Amortisation WS - - (2,346) (2,346)
Impairment WA - - (26,431) (26,431)
Exchange differences ME 54,7 %A 876 86 535 1,497
Closing net book amount A AR T AR 9,882 51,744 42,574 104,200
At 31 March 2016 HA2016%F3 A31H
Cost A 9,882 81,512 70,941 162,335
Accumulated amortisation SR M

and impairment - (29,768) (28,367) (58,135)
Net book amount W THT VA 9,882 51,744 42,574 104,200
Impairment test for goodwill BEREIR

105

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified
according to business segment. The goodwill is attributable

to the watch wholesale trading operations.
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15

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment test for goodwill (Continued)

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculation. This calculation uses pre-tax
cash flow projections based on financial budgets performed
by management covering a five-year period. Management
determined the financial budgets based on past performance
and its expectations for the market development. Cash
flows beyond the five year period are extrapolated using the
estimated growth rate stated below.

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation are as
follows:

1. Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond
the budget period of 0% (2015: 0%) which does not
exceed historical growth rate.

2. Pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections
of 8% (2015: 8%). The discount rate used reflects
specific risks related to the Group.

Management believes that any reasonably foreseeable
change in any of the above key assumptions would not
cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed the
recoverable amount significantly.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, there was no
impairment on the CGUs containing goodwill with
indefinite useful lives (2015: nil).

15

BIVEE (4)
AERERR (4)

4 7 A B Y AT S ] R (8 I (E
it o TR T SOM T B AT B i T
MR A L A% 1) AR S B BT o A
i AR AR 30 1 2 B0 % JEL 38 i 3 3 e ) T o
S FABUTL S o B B RZ T AR 0 A B < U e R
FIRAR Brde A9 Al s 3= AR A

FHEM R EER &S

1. P DA BRE A 1E BB ) ) PR & U T
JHRY R 2R 75 0% (2015 4E : 0%) » Wf
LR R R

2. JHRHAEREFE BB AT R A 8%
(20154F : 8%) o sZ AN IR A BRI >
SISz e B A A2 [ A B 1 4 o R

IR > LA T RS AT
MW TH AR ) RN e R 2 AR (E
R Wt A T A ] < B

BE 201643 A31 HILAEER » HEeEt
B0 JUT 5 L 4 BR 2 1 1) PR I Bk (HL (2015
o) o
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15

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment test for trademarks

Management tests annually whether the trademarks here
suffered any impairment by considering the economic
benefit generated from the trademarks. The recoverable
amount is determined based on value-in-use calculation.
This calculation use pre-tax cash flow projections based
on financial budgets performed by management covering
a four-year period. Management determined the financial
budgets based on past performance and its expectations for
the market development. The key assumption used for the
value-in-use calculation includes a pre-tax discount rate of
8%.

No impairment provision on trademarks was made during
the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: nil).

Impairment test for technical know-how

In order to secure the supply of mechanical movements
in the future, the Group acquired CATENA SA, a swiss
watch manufacturer, on 16 April 2015 and recognised an
identified technical know-how of HK$70,816,000. In view
of the unexpected downturn of the market condition and the
decrease in demand for mechanical watches subsequent to
the acquisition, management has performed an impairment
assessment for the technical know-how as at 31 March
2016, taking into account the current market condition and
production plan of CATENA SA.

The recoverable amount of the technical know-how
is determined based on value-in-use calculation. This
calculation uses pre-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets performed by management covering a
five-year period. Management determined the financial
budgets based on past performance and its expectations for
the market development. Cash flows beyond the five year
period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rate
stated below.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 15 |PEE (4)

Impairment test for technical know-how (Continued) XM ERNR (4)

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation are as i AR TR0 E T

follows:

1. The useful life of the technical know-how of 30 years. 1. BLZEHAYCE IR 30 4F -

2. Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the 2. AR BT A A TG 0 B A
five-year budget period of 2%. RE2% -

3. Pre-tax discount rate applied to cash flow projections 3. MR B 4 v T A R 4T R S
of 12%. The discount rate used reflects specific 12% o Fiv FH 47 8 5 Se WA 0 A 4 o) G
risk related to the Group’s watch movement SR A B B E SRR o

manufacturing business.

Based on the result of the impairment test, the Group has R Bl 0k 1) A 2R > AR B E 2016
made an impairment charge of HK$26,431,000 for the year 33T H IR AR BN E E R R
ended 31 March 2016. 26,431,000 7C °

Should the growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows i FE A B o A 4 A 1 B U R
beyond the five-year budget period applied in the value-in- JA T B BN T 3R 1% - RIS ERR AR S
use calculation for the technical know-how had been 1% B 3,949,000 °

lower, additional impairment of HK$3,949,000 would have
been recognized.

16  INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 16 REEQRKRE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
At 1 April #4aH1H 61,329 54,989
Acquisition of additional WS g N R A MRE AR
interest in an associate - 17,448
Deemed disposal upon obtaining B B RS B AR (MFRE31)
control over the associate (Note 31) (61,329) -
Share of loss JREAY e 15 - (5,302)
Exchange differences [ 50, 7= 5 - (5,806)
At 31 March W3H31H - 61,329
On 13 May 2014, the Group acquired an additional 220144E5 13 H » AR EIUE CATENA
10% equity interest in CATENA SA for a consideration of SATIHM 0% 4 - FUE %5 2,000,000 1
CHF2,000,000. LR .
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16 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 16 REERTRE (4
On 16 April 2015, the Group acquired additional 48% #20154E4 16 H » ALEFIGIE T CATENA
equity interest in CATENA SA and also entered into a SAHHIN48% HIMERE > TEBLA]IFFEL CATENA
shareholders” agreement with the 12% equity interest holder SA Y 12% i #a Fr A N2 UBCR h o > LA
of CATENA SA for a right to purchase the remaining 12% H12% MR IR (BT 5E31) -

equity interest (Note 31).

Details of the associate as at 31 March 2015 were as FZBE A FR 201543 A 31 HIWFEFI T -
follows:
Place of
business/country of % of
Name of entity incorporation ownership interest Principal activities
BEsH EENYHEMRIER FrsEER Dt FREH
CATENA SA Switzerland 40% Manufacture of
Fit watch movements
TG
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's AR BTN R B RS SR 5 A T
associate was set out below:
2015
HK$’000
AT T
Assets HE 69,966
Liabilities =K (10,957)
Income A 36,421
Loss after tax BRI 18 (9,158)
The associate had a December year-end and the above WA FIMELEH 12 H31H > Bt R4
unaudited financial information had been adjusted to FIHERE B R G ARENZ T4
conform to the Group’s financial year-end. H o

1 09 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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17  AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 17 AHEENBRKEE

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT T

At 1 April ®4H1H 12,652 15,331

Revaluation deficit transfer WA RE £ 1Y A B4R

to equity (Note 22) (F$5E22) (523) (2,679)

At 31 March 3 H31H 12,129 12,652

Available-for-sale financial assets as at 31 March

2016 represent unlisted equity investment in an entity

incorporated in Liechtenstein and are denominated in Swiss

Francs.

The valuation of available-for-sale financial assets was
determined using dividend growth model and are within
level 3 of fair value hierarchy. The most significant

unobservable input is the rate of return on the investment of
24% (2015: 25%). The lower the rate of return, the higher
the fair value of the available-for-sale financial assets.

A20164E3 H 31 H » Bk 8 0 s &
T8 AT 1 ik B wHE 0 i — A2 5 S0 3t
BEE MRS A R IE B TR o

AL R B Y P L A (L A A0 (5 P A 3R B
S TR R o R AR A A S
R 1A o W KA AT LA A (BRI A%
1 0] 2R 5 24% (2015 4F © 25%) o [ 4]
RAR A B S 1 TR -

18 STOCKS 18 #E&
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Raw materials J T R 125,153 111,432
Work-in-progress e fi 15,127 13,087
Finished goods AL 958,327 1,203,213
1,098,607 1,327,732

B RERR 2 B SN0 R 8 8 A 1A A A B
ABHENE1,370,752,000 7T (2015 4F © #EiKs
1,524,407,000 7C) ©

The cost of stocks sold recognised as expense and included
in cost of sales amounted to HK$1,370,752,000 (2015:
HK$1,524,407,000).
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19 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 19 BEWER - B2 RESKE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT WA
Trade debtors, gross JEUE IRk > 48%H 249,337 253,892
Less: provision for impairment - RN B Rk
of trade debtors (note b) WAESE (FHEEDb) (549) (472)
Trade debtors, net (note a) JRES ' S Bk > AR (KtsEa) 248,788 253,420
Deposits, prepayments and ey~ FATEOE K
other debtors (notes ¢ and d) HoAth ENSCHRIE (B 5% c e d) 338,308 344,075
587,096 597,495
Less: non-current portion W FETREES A (153,846) (166,752)
Current portion TREN AT 433,250 430,743
Trade debtors analysed by FEESE H TN
invoice date: RECE Z B
Below 60 days 60 HEAT 54,902 82,561
Over 60 days 60 HLLE 194,435 171,331
249,337 253,892
Notes: B EE -
(@) The Group engages designated import and export agents for (@  AEEIETEE S A R
the importation of products from the subsidiaries in Hong o6 o 2 ) B S R A A Hb Y BB N T o
Kong to the subsidiaries in the Mainland China. The balances T Wi B AT 3 b 0 A B Y & i T 44 ] 45
due from and due to the import and export agents are settled I3 RS PRI SZ AR 2 A
on a back-to-back basis, and hence, there are no fixed terms BN A ] AE AF R o A S ) RE A B 2 M RE
of settlement for such balances. The Group’s trade debtors A5 B 3060, 475 JRE i S JRE ASF 3 M o AR H A 4%
and trade creditors include balances due from and due to ik 25 W M5 159,755,000 7 2015 4F = #5
the import and export agents of HK$159,755,000 (2015: 144,128,000 7C) °

HK$144,128,000).

Other than the balances due from the import and export [ MR B B AT 3 11 AR PR B S5 i b - A4E
agents, the Group allows an average credit period of 60 days ) 4 7 FORE SRR ) MR o o 2 R 124
from the invoice date to its trade debtors. 60 KIfEEH -

Balances that are neither past due nor impaired relate to ST 48 78T 44 Bl I 0 5 5 T B s £ 42 SIE 4B A
a number of independent customers whom there was no BEARC R Z B E T o

relevant history of default.

Included in the Group’s trade debtors were debtors with a A B 119 B AR ) R S 4 R T 2 s T
carrying amount of HK$31,098,000 (2015: HK$25,678,000) 31,098,000 JC (2015 4F : # ¥ 25,678,000
which were past due but not impaired. The ageing analysis of IC) BN FRIE > A B FE I AE ok
these trade debtors based on due dates is as follows: WA o WZE BN 5 IR GBI B 2 IRE
SIHTIE
1 .l 1 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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19

(a)

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued) 19 BYWERR - RERFEMNTR A
Notes: (Continued) st - ()
(Continued) (@) (#5)
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
Overdue: i
Within 1 year 14N 29,747 25,456
1-2 years 1-24 1,048 182
2-3 years 2-34F 66 9
Over 3 years i 3 4 237 31
31,098 25,678
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate 3 A A BB 1 FRE A 8 o Rk B2 4 8 T
to a number of independent customers for whom there HE AR SR AT S et R ARRT B
is no recent history of default. Based on past experience, MRYE AR 5S> SRR B B ISR TE O 5 45
management believes that no impairment allowance is BRI A E R > KA R LA
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a B[] PR M PR AR 1 T A M U (A
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still o A B2 9 7 40 Ak 5% 4R OCHCRE A AT T4
considered fully receivable. The Group does not hold any il o
collateral over these balances.
Movements on the provision for impairment of trade debtors (b) MM 5 MR AR O BB AT

are as follows:

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT AT

At 1 April AR 1H 472 445
Provision for impairment BEREA 80 116
Provision written back U (LA A 988 [ (55) (40)
Exchange differences [ifE b, 24 %8 52 (49)
At 31 March W3H31H 549 472

The creation and release of provision for impaired
receivables have been included in other operating expenses
in the consolidated income statement. Amounts charged to
the allowance account are generally written off when there is
no expectation of recovering additional cash.

The balance included amounts due from related companies
of HK$4,897,000 (2015: HK$5,150,000).

The balances due from related companies (note 30 (iii)) are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

BT e A 1 2 RE AR A 2 A
ER AR AR [ HALEE S A o AR
i AR Y B — R TR AN AT i [ R A B

P T T B T R i B A D I KT U
4,897,0007C (20154 : #%5,150,00070) °

JRESCAT IR ) A A58 B 350 0 IR A ~ B R
Fe MEELRAERREFE (30 (i) »

B () A RA A
2016 4F4F-H
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19 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued) 19 FEWERR - R RBENMRE ()
Notes: (Continued) [t st (A7) -
(d  As at 31 March 2016, the balance included prepayment (d)  R20164F3 H31 H » ILEERIAM IR T

JBCA 75 A 09 IR TR AT IE S 15 9,302,000
JC (20154 = ¥k #14,906,000 7 ) ( B 3%

for services arising from the issue of convertible bonds of
HK$9,302,000 (2015: HK$14,906,000) (Note 26).

26) °
(e)  An analysis of debtors, deposits and prepayments by (e)  WEMHRSR ~ b K FAT R IE 4% B 40 A
currency is as follows: T

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT W
Hong Kong dollars i 353,052 369,872
Renminbi NG 83,782 91,188
Singapore dollars Hrmgoe 35,081 37,826
Malaysian ringgit AR PG4 55,296 54,625
Thai bahts B3 17,068 23,051
Swiss Francs ity L7 BB 6,682 683
Others HoAth 36,135 20,250
587,096 597,495
20 BANK BALANCES AND CASH 20 HRITEHERS
An analysis of bank balances and cash by currency is as SRATHE IR BB BTN T
follows:

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Hong Kong dollars I 179,750 109,870
Renminbi NG 104,295 107,193
Singapore dollars Hrmdoo 50,956 41,772
Malaysian ringgit LSY LR 127,877 92,424
Thai bahts ek 106,762 83,622
Swiss Francs g - EE B 2,555 4,719
Others HoAt 27,030 20,543
599,225 460,143

The conversion of Renminbi into foreign currencies and
remittance of Renminbi out of the PRC is subject to the rules
and regulations of exchange controls promulgated by the

PRC government.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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21  SHARE CAPITAL 21 BR&X
Number of shares
of HK$0.1 each
SREEBY HK$’000
0.1 TR EE BT
Authorised: LA
At 31 March 2015 and 2016 20154 ) 201643 A 31 H 1,600,000,000 160,000
Issued and fully paid: T AR A
At 31 March 2015 and 2016 A 20154F )% 20164F3 H31 H 1,046,474,025 104,647
The Company and its subsidiaries did not set up or operate AN ) K LB RS A F R L E 2016 43 H 31
any share option scheme for the year ended 31 March 2016 HOE 4B R AR5 H I 5 or
and up to the date of publication of this Annual Report. BHEF TR B A R ST ) o
22 RESERVES 22 e
Convertible
Share  Revaluation Exchange  bonds reserve Retained
premium reserve reserve  (Note 26) earnings Total
iR

Re®  Efife  EXRE  B5EE  REEA L
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000

Affn EEffn ABffn RBfr REER BRMR

At1 April 2014 20144 A 1H 1977 13,080 15,240 77000 1246304 1,353,691
Exchange differences [E =% - - (41,286) - - (41,286)
Revaluation of available-for-sale — FIfikH B
financial assets (Note 17) & f (fzE17) - (2,679) - - - 2,679)
Profit for the year Lufiegl - - - - 91,756 91,756
Dividends paid (Note 23) BRI (fE23) - - - - (59,649) (59,649)
At31 March 2015 201543 A31H 1977 10,401 26,046 77090 1078411 1341833
At 1 April 2015 20154 1H 1977 10,401 (26,046) 77000 1278411 1,341,833
Exchange differences R EH - - (15,680) - - (15,680)
Revaluation of available-for-sale ATkt & fOBHE G
financial assets (Note 17) e (FEE17) - (523) - - - (523)
Loss for the year EREE - - - - (190,009 (190,009)
Dividends paid (Note 23) EAIE (823) - - - - (10,465) (10,465)
At31 March 2016 201653 31 H 1,977 9,878 41,726 77,000 1,077.937 1125156
23 DIVIDENDS 23 RE

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T AT T

No interim dividend for 2016 2016 A AIREE 401 A B
(2015: HK$0.02 per ordinary share) (2015 : &% 40t HK$0.02) - 20,929

No final dividend for 2016 2016 4 ANIREEAR AL S
(2015: HK$0.01 per ordinary share) (2015 = /54 i HK$0.01) - 10,465
— 31,394

B () A RA A
2016 4F4F-H 114
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23 DIVIDENDS (Continued) 23 RE ()
The dividends paid in 2015 and 2016 were HK$59,649,000 A 2015 4F 1% 2016 4F IR 5 19 11 5L 43 7l A v
(HK$0.057 per share) and HK$10,465,000 (HK$0.01 per ¥ 59,649,000 7T (B HE 15 0.057 70 ) it Hs
share) respectively. The directors did not recommend a final 10,465,000 7C (B s #50.0170) - HEE A
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2016. HERIREEB £ 2016453 31 HILEEZR
W e -
24  CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS 24 BEARIKRETEAR
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Trade creditors analysed FEESE H TN
by invoice date: JEATEE 7 Bk
Below 60 days 60 HLIF 317,014 298,550
Over 60 days 60 HPLE 4,247 22,981
321,261 321,531
Other creditors and oAt EAT IR K
accruals (note a) e A (FsEa) 267,974 279,957
589,235 601,488
Notes: R3E -
(@) Included in other creditors and accruals are amounts due to (@) FFA T A R A AR S RE T R I O
related companies of HK$1,367,000 (2015: HK$1,413,000) 5 J0E AT B 2 28 WD i K TE 51,367,000
(note 30(iii)), which are unsecured, interest-free and JC(20154F © ¥ ¥ 1,413,00000 ) ( Fff 5%
repayable on demand. 30(iii)) » #RTE 2 MARAT - f B S e B SR
i o
(b)  An analysis of creditors and accruals by currency is as (b)  BEAHRS IR &M
follows:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT T
Hong Kong dollars ik 372,253 415,595
Renminbi NG 63,140 55,402
Singapore dollars BT 27,325 21,745
Malaysian ringgit LY iR 27,484 25,883
Thai bahts B 7 23,579 26,821
Swiss Francs Bty {2 BB 24,922 13,443
US dollars B 34,476 30,722
Others oA 16,056 11,877
589,235 601,488
1 .l 5 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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25

BORROWINGS LN
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Bank borrowings (note a) HATE (KMata) 674,272 631,528
Obligations under finance leases il A R (BT D)
(note b) 215 265
674,487 631,793
Balances repayable on demand or WEEY [ SR — N
within one year included in RN ) A E
current liabilities (656,439) (579,725)
18,048 52,068
(@ Bank borrowings @ RITER
The Group’s bank borrowings are repayable as A HERA T R RS DL T
follows:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T AT T
Repayable on demand/ MEZSRAEIR —4FZ N
within 1 year 656,412 579,671
Between 1 and 2 years 1E 24 1,336 12,722
Between 2 and 5 years 2 E 54 4,369 20,762
Over 5 years 542 L 12,155 18,373
674,272 631,528

Included in bank borrowings as at 31 March 2016 are
secured borrowings amounted to HK$661,237,000
(2015: HK$546,186,000), which are secured by
property, plant and equipment of the Group (Note 13).

A20164F3 H31 H ZMBITERNA
HEH 2 3 661,237,000 96 (2015
4 % 546,186,000 7T) ,LMK%IEI
P - b R AT (B 13)

B () A RA A
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25 BORROWINGS (Continued)

(@

117

Bank borrowings (Continued)

An analysis of the carrying amount of the Group’s
bank borrowings by currency is as follows:

25

B

(@

RITERK (H)

7 A [ RAT 8 SR T (B 4 B2 8 40
o

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT T

Hong Kong dollars bkl 655,132 610,154
Malaysia ringgit L5y N EHRC 19,140 21,374
674,272 631,528

The weighted average effective interest rate per
annum for bank borrowings was 1.85% (2015:
1.60%).

As at 31 March 2016, the carrying amounts of current
bank borrowings approximate their fair values.

As at 31 March 2016, the Company had given
guarantees to various banks to secure general banking
facilities granted to certain subsidiaries amounting
to HK$1,661,773,000 (2015: HK$1,561,087,000).
As at 31 March 2016, the utilised amount of such
facilities covered by the Company’s guarantees was
HK$674,272,000 (2015: HK$631,526,000).

Prior to the date of this report, the Group has obtained
a one-off waiver from a bank from strict compliance
with certain covenant requirement of a bank
borrowing amounted to HK$222,364,000.

STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

SRAT BB IR ST 2 BT B AR R R
1.85 8 (20154F : 1.60 &) -

R20164E3 A31 H » SEATERNIER
(B LT AR

#20164E3 A31H » AN A% T
F5 1 BB 2N 7 0 — AR AT A& 1) )
SRATAE 4% R 39 %5 1,661,773,000
JC (20154 : #¥1,561,087,0007T) °
R2016FE3A31TH » #% % B AR
MIERAMMECEH A &E A
¥ 674,272,000 (20154 = # ¥
631,526,000 7C) °

TEBLIR SR > AR 2 A — R aRAT
54 B 15 & 4 B 15 222,364,000 70
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25 BORROWINGS (Continued) 25 B ()
(b)  Obligations under finance leases (b) BEHEEEE
The obligations under finance leases are payable as il R RS P AR A LA
follows:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Within 1 year THZR 31 60
Between 1 and 2 years 1H: 24 62 60
Between 2 and 5 years 2 F 54 150 179
243 299
Future finance charges il L 5 179 A 2l A S i
on finance leases (28) (34)
Present value of finance A B A A BLE
lease liabilities 215 265
The present value of finance lease liabilities is AE LS A S B
analysed as follows:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Within 1 year THZR 27 53
Between 1 and 2 years 1824 55 53
Between2 and 5 years 2FE 54 133 159
215 265
The carrying amount of obligations under finance il T REL R 97 W IR T (L AT 3 o

leases is denominated in Singapore dollars. FIHE o

B () A RA A
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26 CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 29 November 2012, the Company issued unlisted and
unsecured convertible bonds with a principal amount of
HK$371,022,600 to Sapphire llluminatus Holdings Limited
(“Sapphire”), an independent third party.

The terms of the convertible bonds are summarised below:

—  the bonds bear interest at 3.5% per annum if the
bonds are held by Sapphire or its affiliates, or 2.75%
per annum if otherwise, on the principal amounts of
the convertible bonds outstanding from time to time,
payable semi-annually in arrears;

—  the bonds are convertible at the option of the
bondholders into fully paid ordinary shares 18 months
after the issue of bonds up to fifth anniversary of
the issue date of the bonds at a conversion price of
HK$1.95 per share, subject to certain adjustments
pursuant to the terms of the agreement entered with
the bondholders;

- 190,268,000 conversion shares will be issued upon
full conversion of the bonds based on the initial
conversion price of HK$1.95 per share;

- Sapphire has the option to require the Company to
early redeem 30% of the outstanding principal (the
“Option”) if i) the consolidated net income of the
Company (without taking into account any expenses
arising from accounting treatment of the bonds) is less
than HK$400 million in more than one out of the three
financial years ended/ending 31 March 2015 to 2017;
or ii) the aggregate consolidated net income of the
Company (without taking into account any expenses
arising from accounting treatment of the bonds) is less
than HK$1 billion for three financial years ended/
ending 31 March 2015 to 2017. The remainder of the
bonds shall remain to be convertible, and such the
bonds which have not been previously converted,
redeemed, or purchased and cancelled and remain
outstanding on the maturity shall be redeemed. The
Company shall also pay an amount in cash to Sapphire
equal to 3/7th of the outstanding principal amount
of such remaining bonds held by Sapphire upon
maturity; and

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

26

AR ES

2012411 A 29 H > AT — 4 Bar o
=i Sapphire Illuminatus Holdings Limited
(I Sapphire |) #1774 & A AR W 371,022,600
TTY I T B S AT B

AR SR A e T

- RREEARERE M RAT O AR A R A

&> Mk ZRH Sapphire S H I B A
A > FAER 3 5%FHE > Bt
Hofh N EH5AT > AR R 2.75% 5t
B BRI

- URARGURRA ARV R

7184 M8 0 9617 FLAO 5 1
LS IELAR I M 1.95 T2 5600 1
EL AR BRI - S
AR B 440 AT S B e B
GESELE

— 190,268,000 B i, 4 B A3 3 i 15 25 AR

A SR B s 1 1.95 TR
AT

- Sapphire AU i BL AT ZOR A Al 72

LI ] 30% A B A 4 (T HARE ) »
i i) A2 BT S5 A IR IR CRFE AR
F5 0wl A AR AT BA 57 ) R E
20154FF 201743 A 31 B 1k ={A 84
AR 8 v — {18 B 22 o B4R AR s
¥ 400,000,000 7C 5 Bii) B FE 20154
201743 A 31 H 1E = {0 fFEUAE A
N T AR TR S8 %E CRBF X5
i HE A AT AR B ) I ik
1,000,000,000 JG ° fiF T & 75 JE £ 7]
SR TR T ] - SO R R Mt
B L B B I o A 2R 0 AR ol T A
fE ] o A3 W JRHE ] Sapphire AT AH
T O B IRE R AT 11 0 R AE R 1Y B
TEHEASFHLHZ MBS s &
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26

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

- Sapphire would be compensated by the difference
between the accrued interest and cash dividend
(calculated on as-converted basis) (the “Additional
Interest”), if the former is less than the latter.

The convertible bonds consist of a liability component,
comprising the 5-year 3.5% straight debt, other redemption
features and additional interest liabilities, and an equity
component, representing the convertible option of HK$1.95
per share. At the date of the issuance of the bonds, the
liability component and the equity component were
recognised at fair value, determined based on the valuations
performed by an independent professional valuer using the
binominal model with the major following assumptions:

- Risk-free interest rate of 0.261%;
- Volatility of 25.07%;

- Borrowing rate of 8.29%;

- Dividend yield of 6.0%

The liability component and equity component of the
convertible bonds recognised at initial recognition as at 29
November 2012 are as follows:

26

AR ES (A7)

- fHEFFLE DR ERE (T i
HEEMERH) > Sapphire MR ST
) S5 B 4 A S 2 T ) 25 2 (AR
) o

AR R AR B (4 5 4F 3.5% Rt
14 Al 2 A S R H At S 1] A ) L B RSB A
HE ) ML (BB 1.95 T8 5Lt
HE) o W ERATAE IRy > BE AT S 4R Ay
e B e RS > AR R 7 S Al A A
EBRA T o E AR — A

- AEEBEFIR0.261% S
- FEME25.07% ;

- BRI 8.29% ;

- KE%E6.0%

] B 2 1) B R B 2 0 T 2012
11 29 BRI RERR AN T

HK$’000
AT
Fair value of convertible bonds issued 2. 247 W # B AEFR A TE 396,772
Less: Liability component W AR (319,682)
Equity component i ok 77,090

The convertible bonds were issued with fair value higher
than the principal amount and were accounted for as share-
based payment transactions. The excess of the fair value of
the convertible bonds over the consideration received of
HK$28,018,000 were recorded as a prepayment for services
and are amortised on a straight line basis over the term of
contract. Amortisation expense of HK$5,604,000 has been
recognised in the consolidated income statement for the
year ended 31 March 2016 (2015: HK$5,604,000) (Note
19).

A5 AR 2 T 4% AR G BRI AP B
A7 > S5 DA Ay 25 R BRE 1 A5 ks 2 AR -
AT 6 B A 5 11 2 - A 8 T WA TR 1 A
28,018,000 JC J3 we Bk 25 Ik 5 19 T8 4+ 3Kk
TH > M7 4% T AR AR E N A A T o B (Y
FE19) o HESH BH S5 15 5,604,000 JG E A
201643 H31 HIEF M4 & ik 2 £
R At A S R 2015 4F ¢ i
5,604,000 JC) °

OB () A RA R
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26

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The liability component of the bonds is stated at fair value.
The equity component is presented in equity as “convertible
bonds reserve”.

The movement of the liability component of the convertible
bonds for the year is set out below:

AR (A1)
IR B BB R A TE RS o #4500
TR 251 5 [ AT e 25 At o

AN AT R B AR IR AR 0 I S B R8T
T

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT T

Liability component at 1 April it4 A1 H AR 380,753 331,456
Changes in fair value included TR A A T-E 5 8)

in finance costs 78,657 62,830

Interest paid EATFLE (12,986) (13,533)

Liability component at 31 March i3 H 31 H B 446,424 380,753

Less: balances redeemable/payable c AR R,
within one year R R (109,949) -
336,475 380,753

The liability component of the convertible bonds is valued
by independent qualified valuers, AVISTA Valuation
Advisory Limited, who hold a recognised relevant
professional qualification and have recent experience in
valuation of convertible bonds.

The valuation of the liability component of the convertible
bonds was determined using the binominal option pricing
model. In valuing the Option, the external valuer has
assigned a probability for each scenario under the Option
and calculated the probability weighted fair value of the
liability component of the convertible bonds. In valuing
the Additional Interest portion, the amount is based on
the present value of the differences between the estimated
dividend received on an as-if converted basis and the annual
coupon interest of the convertible bonds over the remaining
outstanding period.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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26

27

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

The more significant input used in the valuation of the
liability component of the convertible bonds are as follows:

26

AR ES (A7)

3B AT R f o B AR AT A (BT Y B
HRAEAEIT

2016 2015

Risk-free interest rate e o 1) 0.45% 0.56%

Volatility i) 47.79% 41.23%

Borrowing rate BEHOR] % 9.37% 8.18%

Dividend yield R 0% 3.5%
Probability of the Option AT RE RO 7T i

being exercised 100% 70%

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during
the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, none of the bonds
were redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled
(2015: nil).

On 23 June 2016, the Company announced that the
Company entered into an amendment deed with the
holder of convertible bonds of HK$371,022,600 issued
on 18 December 2012, (the “Convertible Bonds”), to early
redeem the outstanding Convertible Bonds at 100% of
their principal amount, to pay the accrued coupon interest
of HK$6,493,000 up to 18 December 2016 and a sum
equivalent to a payment for the put option of the Convertible
Bonds of HK$111,306,780 (if the put option in the original
Convertible Bond Instrument has not been exercised on
or prior to the early redemption date) on or before 30
September 2016.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

(to be recovered/settled after more than one year) is as
follows:

27

AR BEAG (AL Ol 7 S o )y

R E201643 A31 H IEFEE > M4
S e E KRR ES: (2015 4F ¢ ) o

H20164F6 H23 H » &RAFIEM » A/ w] Bl
2012412 H 18 HE{TRIHK$371,022,600
GRS E I E S S E NS N
BT A 201649 H30H B 2
A REER AR EESE S EAS
YA E E2016F12H1I8H W E EAEZE
i A B HK$6,493,000 - K ¥ A Ml % it
HK$111,306,780 AJ 46 f5 75 (19 58 37 HA A 3
TE (D0 SR 52 vl 44 B 0 2 R Tk U RE A 42 L 1 ]
H 2 Bl AR A TE) -

ESEFTSH
AR SE T T 7 R AE B A AR (E — 4% 1]

W, HEE) AT

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT WA

Deferred tax assets PEIERI T 76,162 70,692
Deferred tax liabilities AR TN =R (7,342) (2,299)
68,820 68,393

B () A RA A
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27  DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 27 EEFREH (A7)
The movement on the net deferred tax accounts is as IRAERIER B s E 0 R
follows:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
As at 1 April waH1H 68,393 61,649
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 31) Wi/ (KiE31) (9,844) -
Credited to income statement A A % 12,219 7,063
Exchange differences [ifE 5,25 %8 (1,948) (319)
As at 31 March W3H31H 68,820 68,393
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during A RIE A B VA S E B B S E) (R R
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of AR IR ) e [ R AR B R

balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Deferred tax assets EHEBIEEE
Provision for
unrealised Other
Depreciation profit in Other  temporary
allowances stock  Taxlosses provisions differences Total
BES
wE RERETR it

2 MERE  BEER HtRE TRNEE 2
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

BEfr  BEfr  BRfr  E%fr  ERfr BB

At 1 April 2014 201444 1 H 9,927 25,258 10,377 16,391 6,534 68,487
(Charged)/credited to (fiBRE) /FHAdg £

income statement (433) (287) 579 4,256 4,569 8,684
Exchange differences [ 5 (3) (237) - (113) (158) (511)
At 31 March 2015 201543 H31H 9,491 24,734 10,956 20,534 10,945 76,660
At 1 April 2015 201544 H1H 9,491 24,734 10,956 20,534 10,945 76,660
Credited/(charged) to FEA/ (B B i %

income statement 159 (6,443) 15,122 (685) (11 8,042
Exchange differences Hie 50,7 3 (59 (654) - (501) (781) (1,995)
At 31 March 2016 #2016%3 A 31 H 9,591 17,637 26,078 19,348 10,053 82,707
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27  DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 27 EEFTESH ()

Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEEE

Identified Other
Depreciation intangible temporary

allowances assets differences Total
Hit
=% EREE

nE%XHE RBYEAE =8 #Et
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT BRffr BEfFfr BT

At 1 April 2014 A20144F4H1H 6,573 - 265 6,838
Charged to income statement Ol B s % 890 - 731 1,621
Exchange differences fE 50,75 58 (138) - (54) (192)
At 31 March 2015 A201543 31 H 7,325 — 942 8,267
At 1 April 2015 JA20154F4H1H 7,325 - 942 8,267
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 31) Wi+7 v (Fff5E31) - 9,844 - 9,844
Charged/(credited) to income Mk (FEA) Al

statement 581 (4,758) - 4,177)
Exchange differences E 54,7 4 (47) - - 47)
At 31 March 2016 201643 H31H 7,859 5,086 942 13,887
Out of the total unrecognised tax losses of HK$629,457,000 T 435 0 D) 4G B o AR ME RELBE 2 o TR B B TE s
(2015: HK$668,980,000) carried forward, an amount of B4R B R 629,457,000 7T (2015 4F - &
HK$256,131,000 (2015: HK$154,483,000) can be carried #668,980,0007T) » Hi#EH 256,131,000
forward indefinitely. The remaining HK$373,326,000 IG(20154F : #E154,483,0007C) 7] 4 FE 19
(2015: HK$514,497,000) will expire in the following years: Zhw . HERUERE 373,326,000 7 (2015 4F -

#EH5 514,497,000 J0) #$7E T F1IHBR JE T -

2016 2015

HK$/000 HK$'000

BT AT

In the first year F1AE 18,063 66,826
In the second year H524F 62,555 76,279
In the third year %3 4F 81,349 66,892
In the fourth year 544 71,240 95,672
In the fifth to tenth years inclusive B 5AERE 104F (WIS E B W) 140,119 208,828
373,326 514,497

B () A RA A
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28

125

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 28

STATEMENT

Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before income tax to cash

RERSRERME

W T A5 BRI (s 48) i A1) B 4% 78 3% ) T 19

generated from operations: Bl & B EHR
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
(Loss)/profit before income tax W BT AL AT (548 i A (185,713) 140,508
Depreciation W 108,274 113,628
Amortisation of intangible assets 5 TP 2,346 -
Amortisation of prepayment S TR A T AR
of lease premium 5,900 6,851
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, P ~ B S
plant and equipment Qi apd =i (265) 688
Provision of stocks fE B UEAR 34,230 19,540
Impairment of debtors JRE UK i 80 116
Write back of bad debt provision T3 AR YEM (55) (40)
Impairment of property, P2k - B I R I
plant and equipment 7,021 5,566
Impairment of intangible assets T 4 R 26,431 -
Provision for onerous contracts B G AR 17,560 178
Expenses on convertible bonds BEAT R R R 5,604 5,604
Interest income FE A (1,946) (1,342)
Finance costs A B A 90,778 72,141
Dividend income A (3,506) (2,052)
Share of loss of an associate 3 = /NEl) E | - 5,302
Gain on remeasuring to fair value T W ER A B I HE T RE 2
of the existing interest in an FOR P E
associate upon acquisition of
control (4,222) -
Bargain purchase of a subsidiary e (B A R (9,863) -
Operating profit before working I 7 < L T 1) 888 i
capital changes 92,654 366,688
Decrease/(increase) in stocks FEWAD Em) 204,838 (179,512)
Decrease/(increase) in debtors, JEMSCIR AR ~ 4 B TS
deposits and prepayments FIEW D (B ) 14,312 (38,276)
(Decrease)/increase in creditors JREA R e e w22
and accruals () (41,873) 12,471
Cash generated from operations R Y P A B 269,931 161,371
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29 COMMITMENTS 29 &g
(@) Capital commitments of the Group for property, (@ FTEEBYE-  BERRENERE
plant and equipment: B
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Contracted but not provided for B4R #1{HARAE i #5 6,275 8,950
Authorised but not contracted for EZHEEAFTH) 8,509 -
14,784 8,950
(b) Commitments under operating leases (b) EEHETHWEAE(REEERER
(where the Group is the lessee) A)
The Group had future aggregate minimum lease A FIAE A T B S B R AR AR
payments under non-cancellable operating leases as IRARAH S AT AR T
follows:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT AT
Buildings T
Not later than one year 14 A 581,130 633,709
Later than one year but not 1FEE 5 R
later than five years 453,802 600,653
Later than five years 54D 4,935 10,790
1,039,867 1,245,152
The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses Sy S EH AT R LI SRR 4 e 2k
and renewal rights. The operating lease rentals of T GRERER] o 25 T G 0 42 v AR A
certain outlets are based on the higher of a minimum S T B A AR 2 A 4 Bk B A 4
guaranteed rental or a sales level based rental. The (DL 3 i) S o R T 4z
minimum guaranteed rental has been used to arrive at AR 4 5 o

the above commitments.

B () A RA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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30

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party
or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or common significant influence.

Yee Hing Company Limited, directly and indirectly through
its subsidiary including Active Lights Company Limited,
held 1,195,100 shares of the Company as at 31 March
2016. 55% of the total issued ordinary shares of Yee Hing
Company Limited is held by Klayze Holdings Limited,
which is the trustee of a discretionary trust (the “Trust”).
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong and Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas are the
beneficiaries of the Trust and were therefore deemed to be
interested in 1,195,100 shares of the Company through the
Trust’s interest in Yee Hing Company Limited.

Save as disclosed in Notes 19 and 24, the following is a
summary of the significant related party transactions carried
out in the normal course of the Group's business:

(i)  Sales of goods and services to related companies

30

BFREALRS

A BN 8 T R e R S O
e A BB R S R S ) — T AT
EDNZ VPN B PN S
(YNCDN-Z PPNV Rl f U o

201643 H31 H » FEHA RN R B
[ H2 3 208 FL B 22 Wl Active Lights Company
Limited ¥ A 74 2 71,195,100 fi% & ¥y »
Klayze Holdings Limited LA{E £ —JEEI 15
L (EFE D) 2 Z it NS A EEA R
A AT E BT S AL 2 55% M g o B
Sk REAIT R E R 2 2 A > Bk
R 4 R A5 ST FE AT BR 2 A) 2 i 25 17 48
HALT],195,100 BB HESRS

BB 19 B 24 BT 5k & Ah > T AL
P B AT R RN 2 TR AT 0 K A 5
B AR oy SRS I H R SRS AT

() MBEREARKEEEMRERS

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT
Building management fee income [ — %A BHE /3 7]
from a related company WS 27 PRI A 2,340 2,340

A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group entered into
agreement with Mengiwa Property Investment Limited
(“MPIL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Yee Hing, for
the provision of the following services for the period
from 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2016:

(@)  contract administration with respect to contracts
entered into between MPIL and third parties
from time to time;

(b) property agency liaison and tenancy
management;

(c)  management of the property manager of Stelux
House; and

(d)  other miscellaneous administrative services.

The fee for the provision of the above services was
agreed at HK$195,000 per calendar month during the
duration of the agreement.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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30  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 30 HBEHEATXS 4)
(i)  Purchases of goods and services from related companies (i) MEBEARBEERRRSE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT T

Purchase of goods from related [0/ B2 W E & 5 (BftsEa)

companies (note a) 913 1,032

Purchase of goods from an 1) g > ) B R R (B RE D)

associate (note b) - 45,662

Rental expense to related 1] A7 B 3 24 R SRR 4 S (BT )

companies (note c) 16,725 15,400
17,638 62,094

Notes: [t =3

(a) During the year, certain subsidiaries of the Group (@) AR A EA T R A T 3R
purchased optical products from International Optical L ] 42 o g N ) T O I 4 o4 ik
Manufacturing Company Limited and its subsidiary AR T K H B E A F (TTOMEE
(“IOM Group”), indirectly owned subsidiaries of [ 1) shAS 4 [ R R SR L
Yee Hing, in accordance with the terms of written ZEmM TR R R E N o
agreements for the Group’s retail and trading
operations.

(b)  Purchases of watch movements from an associate (b)  TEH N ) R SR B R H R
were conducted in the normal course of the Group’s S o 5 2 A A A ] B R 5
business. The terms of transactions were determined FTF 7w e > A Rk
and agreed between the Group and the counterparty TGRS AT o

and all balances due were repayable according to
trade terms.

(c) During the year, certain subsidiaries of the Group have () AEIN » 7S£ 2 T [ 2 ) B R %)
entered into tenancy agreements with the following A AN RT LA S ek o DU
related parties for office premises, warehouses, WAWE- B Y ERIFE
showroom and car-parking spaces: fi

Rental expense for the year

FEHEXH
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AT T
MPIL W3 14,750 13,430
Other related parties HoA A B A 1,975 1,970
16,725 15,400

B () A RA A
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30  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 30 AREALIRS (H)
(iiiy Year-end balances arising from service income, Gii)  MRBFUCA ~ B B B B A < 7t A A
purchases of goods and rental expenses are disclosed AR A A BRI B EE19(c) BB 524 () Il
in Note 19(c) and Note 24(a). #eg o
(ivy Key management compensation (ivy TEEEEHRH
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000

BT AT

Salaries and other short-term e M H AL IR B A

employee benefits 15,862 24,695
Other long-term benefits HoAth = 04 147 215
16,009 24,910
31  BUSINESS COMBINATION 31 pEAH
On 16 April 2015, the Group acquired an additional 48% 20154F4 H 16 H » A< B T — [ 56
equity interest in CATENA SA, a Swiss watch movement L TF RO U R CATENA SAZHAN 48%
manufacturer, for a cash consideration of EUR1,660,000 HIME S o A B 341,660,000 BT © 7RI
and entered into a shareholders’ agreement with the 12% [A] B B CATENA SA 119 12% REz5 5 N R
equity interest holder of CATENA SA for a right to purchase sk > DA 12% IR RESRIERE o« It
the 12% equity interest. Together with the previously owned B S BT R AT 14 40% RE 25 F0 A 45 3 (1) B TR 32
40% equity interest and the Group’s underlying right, the WERE > VB RS — > AREE R O
Group is considered as controlling all equity interest in H CATENA SA [T A Rz o
CATENA SA.
1 29 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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31 BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 31 REEHt (A
The following table summarises the consideration paid T RBE AR H R CATENA SA JIT At
for CATENA SA and the fair value of assets acquired and MARAR ~ Jr e o 1) T X AR

liabilities assumed at the acquisition date:

HK$'000
AT
Consideration: HfE -
— Cash — B4 14,386
— Deferred consideration payable in — IRAE A SRR AU
respect of the purchase right 11,083
Total consideration A #AH 25,469
Recognised amounts of identifiable i S Tl R % I R AR A
assets and liabilities assumed T RR
Property, plant and equipment LIE R S G| 3,532
Intangible assets I 70,816
Stocks & 25,849
Debtors and prepayments JRE MR R B FLAST ko 2,206
Cash and cash equivalents Bl KB &5 EY) 22,257
Creditors and accruals JEAT IR X RER T2 (10,957)
Deferred tax liabilities AR EN=R (9,844)
Total identifiable net assets A A AR 103,859
Less: Fair value of equity interest in B 0 BLCATENA SA 355 & fif A
CATENA SA held before the Z MR 2 TH
business combination (68,527)
35,332
Bargain purchase il (9,863)
25,469
Additional purchase consideration PAB 4 SO RSB B AUE
settled in cash (14,386)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired JIT S B M B A (E ) 22,257
Cash inflow on acquisition WS R 4 7,871

B () A RA A
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31

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs of HK$770,000 have been charged
to administrative expenses in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 March 2016.

The Group recognised a gain of HK$4,222,000 as a result
of remeasuring its 40% equity interest in CATENA SA held
before the business combination at fair value. The gain is
included in other gains/(losses), net in the consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31 March 2016.

A gain on bargain purchase of HK$9,863,000 has been
recognised to other gains/(losses), net in the consolidated
income statement for the year ended 31 March 2016.

The identified intangible assets represent technical know-
how for watch movement with useful life of 30 years. The
fair value of the intangible assets as at the date of acquisition
is determined based on cash flow projections using multi-
period excess earning method with a discount rate of 12%.

The right to acquire 12% equity interest in CATENA SA is
exercisable at the price equal to the proportional net assets
value of CATENA SA set out in the latest audited financial
statements available on the date of exercise the purchase
right. The purchase right is exercisable until 31 December
2035. The fair value of the deferred consideration payable
in respect of the purchase right is determined based on the
discounted cash flow method.

CATENA SA contributed a revenue of approximately
HK$606,000 and a loss of approximately HK$44,812,000 to
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Had CATENA SA been consolidated from 1 April 2015,
the consolidated income statement would show revenue
of approximately HK$3,401,716,000 and a loss of
approximately HK$189,779,000.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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XSG (4)

Wi 1 AR BE A AR HK$770,000 7 B A # £
20164E3 A 31 HILFEZ 48 A lzs £ 21T
B A B e

AR EF ] —TE HK$4,222,000 Toil 25 1E 5
FHTRHE B CATENA SA¥EBS BT Z 40%
HEZR A T-H A 45 5 o Il 28 B W& il E
201643 H31 HIEFIE N Z 4/ It £ 2
HAbi st (E518) - AN -

—JEFRE M E U3 HK$9,863,000 JC E R
R E20164E3 731 HIHEFERZ 4581k
fi Rz Hhlie sz (Es48) - TFEEN -

]l ) P AR A 30 4 (0 A U 4
YRGB SE RO - AR A A SR E A A
SE AR 12% 7 413 LA 2 WP R U 4 77 5 78
B AERD o

W CATENA SA 1 12% FBEHE (14 #E A 2 7T
TT AR > A7 (A2 S AR 28 A A7 (0 4 R IR 42
CATENA SA ¥ W B s B £
B EFE - HE20354F12 31 H > #%iR
WA m] DAAT Y o 0 AE R A5 R A RE AU
BT R A B B AR R -

B 20164E3 H 31 H IR4EFF - CATENA SA
AR A A I 4 HK$606,000 7 X & 18
#] HK$44,812,000 JC ©

fii # CATENA SAH201544 A 1H
A A AR &4 I R BRIt A
#1 HK$3,401,716,0007C K& 5 #H #
HK$189,779,000 7t °
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32 POST BALANCE SHEET DATE EVENT 32 HERAREHE

On 23 June 2016, the Company announced that the 20166 H23H > A 4 & = i
Company entered into an amendment deed with the holder A o A B 20124F12 H 18 H ¥ 47 1
of convertible bonds of HK$371,022,600 issued on 18 HK$371,022,600 7] # JIi fF 75 ([ 7T i 1 {5
December 2012, (the “Convertible Bonds”), to early redeem 7% ) ¥ NFT S AERT 3295 - 7201649 A
the outstanding Convertible Bonds at 100% of their principal 30 Hel i » $ R IER T R R T 0 H
amount, to pay the accrued coupon interest of HK$6,493,000 A LA E 201612 H18 HIWE
up to 18 December 2016, and a sum equivalent to a HWEAE HK$6,493,000 » K S ATARAE
payment for the put option of the Convertible Bonds of HK$111,306,780 R # B fk 35 1) 52 1 3 4 ¢
HK$111,306,780 (if the put option in the original Convertible TEL (A0SR 5 T $60 B o 0 it O A 2 L T [
Bond Instrument has not been exercised on or prior to the H 8l 2 |l 1 AR AT o

early redemption date) on or before 30 September 2016.

33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE 33 AEEEEBERRESIE

COMPANY
Balance sheet of the Company AREEAER
As at 31 March
MW3A31H
2016 2015
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
M 5T BT T AT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FEVLEN A=
Investment in a subsidiary Wi J 2w % 35 - -
Debtors, deposits and REMCIREX ~ $24 K
prepayments AR 9,304 14,907
9,304 14,907
Current assets T
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE AT I G > v K IR b 707,642 618,375
Debtors, deposits and REMCHREK ~ $4 K
prepayments TR 153 188
Bank balances and cash SRATHE R LB & 38 40
707,833 618,603
Total assets G E AR 717,137 633,510
EQUITY ¥
Capital and reserves attributable to AN FIRER A A
the equity holders of the Company  JE{L A I
Share capital i 104,647 104,647
Reserves ftfts a 158,635 140,376
Total equity R A 263,282 245,023

B () A RA A
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33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE 33 AREEAGBRREBEEHR )
COMPANY (Continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (Continued) RAEERER ()

As at 31 March

MW3A31H
2016 2015
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E BT T biokix s
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities FEmE AR
Convertible bonds AR I 26 336,475 380,753
336,475 380,753
Current liabilities T A
Creditors and accruals AT AR 3k % I w14 1,930 2,234
Amount due to a subsidiary JREAST B B8 2 ] 3 IE b 5,501 5,500
Convertible bonds EEdidres 109,949 -
117,380 7,734
Total liabilities AR 453,855 388,487
Total equity and liabilities HE i S B (R 717,137 633,510
Joseph C.C. Wong Wallace Kwan Chi Kin
=R FAEE
Chairman and Executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
LR AT T #F R
BT B A
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the EEEIE20164E6 A 23 HHLUEN£2 T4
Board of Directors on 23 June 2016 and was signed on its NAIEEAGE -
behalf.
1 33 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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33

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE 33
COMPANY (Continued)

RNAEERBRRBERER ()

Note: [t 5T
(@)  Reserve movement of the Company (@ DRFEEH
Convertible
Share bonds Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
;&N GIE: -
RfE BESEE B F sz
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AT T AT AT AT
At 1 April 2014 #20144E4 71 H 1,977 77,090 76,406 155,473
Profit for the year A T ¥ ) - - 44,552 44,552
Dividends paid SRR - - (59,649) (59,649)
At 31 March 2015 201543 H31 H 1,977 77,090 61,309 140,376
At 1 April 2015 ~20154F4 71 H 1,977 77,090 61,309 140,376
Profit for the year AF A IR ) - - 28,724 28,724
Dividends paid AR - - (10,465) (10,465)
At 31 March 2016 201643 H31 H 1,977 77,090 79,568 158,635
(b)  Amounts due from/to subsidiaries b)) ERRESHBITRE

R BB 2 ) 0 ORI %
SR MEE R AR - SO MO BT DB
HATA -

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand. The carrying
amounts of these balances approximate their fair values.
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34  BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 34 EBEANRES
(A) Directors’ emoluments A EEEE
The remuneration of every director is set out below: RNFISERZMEST -
For the year ended 31 March 2016: BWE 201643 A31H :
Emoluments paid
or receivable
in respect
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services of director’s
as a director, whether of the Company o its subsidiary undertaking: other services
ARTGENBAAENESAESRIEN - in connection
Remunerations with the
paidor  management
Basic receivable in of the
salaries,  Contributions respect of  affairs of the
allowances, to retirement accepting ~ Company or
and benefits benefit ~ Discretionary officeas it subsidiary
Name Fees in kind schemes bonus'’ director  understating Total
xHIER
ARTREKE
Ee¥e- Bxfid AARESN
RHR £ife PAERRE  RAHER
4 fis  ENNE  HRGE BERL ESEEE  REORZ ]

HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000
BRBffn  EBffn  BBffn BBz ERffn ERffn ERffz

Joseph C. C. Wong (i MG 100 2,938 105 7,341 - - 10,484
Lau Tak Bui, Vincent (ii BIH i 2 798 % 5,192 - - 6,034
Kwan Chi Kin, Wallace LS 80 1,506 18 1,576 - - 3,180
Sakorn Kanjanapas HANL 80 - - - - - 80
Mary Ma RE( - - - - - - -
Alex Wong BTH - - - - - - -
Kwong Yi Hang, Agnes WAl 135 - - - - - 135
Wu Chun Sang, Nelson Wk 135 - - - - - 135
Wu Chi Man, Lawrence ik 135 - - - - - 135

685 5,24 147 14,109 - - 20,183
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34  BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued) 34 EEEANRER A
(A) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) A EBME A
For the year ended 31 March 2015: #WAE20154F3 431 H -
Emoluments paid
or receivable
in respect
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services of director's
as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking; other services
LINTECU IS EEE £ e R in connection
Remunerations with the
paidor  management
Basic receivable in of the
salaries,  Contributions respectof  affairs of the
allowances, toretirement accepting ~ Company or
and benefits benefit  Discretionary officeas its subsidiary
Name Fees in kind schemes bonus' director  understating Total
FUET I
ALIHE
53 A EXfE AdAfEEY
R Bk figkeh  HER
ft4 e EWME  MIGH RERL E2RIM: REdMe B

HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
ki BRf B B8 #%E #WiE #WEx

Joseph C. C. Wong (i HAI G 100 294 104 6,502 - - 9,650
Lau Tak Bui, Vincent iii SRR i) 80 2533 93 5775 - - 8,481
Kwan Chi Kin, Wallace BE 80 1,528 18 1412 - - 3,038
Sakorn Kanjanapas HAIL 80 - - - - - 80
Mary Ma BRI - - - - - - -
Alex Wong BFH - - - - - - -
Kwong Yi Hang, Agnes WA 135 - - - - - 135
Wu Chun Sang, Nelson L 135 - - - - - 135
Wu Chi Man, Lawrence & 135 - - - - - 135

745 7,005 215 13,689 - - 21,054
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34  BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

(A)

(B)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

: Discretionary bonus represents the amount paid
during the year.

i Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong is also the chief
executive of the Group.

ii Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui resigned on 1 July 2015
as executive director due to retirement.

During the year, none of the directors waived their
emoluments, except Ms. Mary Ma and Mr. Alex Wong
waived emoluments of HK$80,000 each.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Except as disclosed in Notes 19, 24 and 30, no other
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 35 FEHBAT

BZE20165E3H31H » THEMBATWT -

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31

March 2016:
Particulars of Percentage of equity
Place of share capital issued  attributable to the Group
incorporation/ BRHARA EBFRRNES
operation Principal activities Number Value 2016 2015
AR R IREK k& SkEE
Investment 2 &
Stelux Holdings International Group British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 Us$1 100° 100°
(BVI) Limited Y B LR BERR (ESH
Stelux Holdings Limited Hong Kong Investment holding 1,000 HK$1 100 100
EDLE R (M) ARATR ik B 1T
Stelux Investments and Properties  British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 US$1 100 100
(BVI) Limited KRR AT B
Thong Sia (BVI) Company Limited  British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 Us$1 100 100
SRR BEHER B
Property 1%
City Chain Properties Limited Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$1 100 100
WS B A R AT il ESIac W T
Fulani Investment Limited Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$1 100 100
il JESI R T
Optical 88 Properties Limited Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$1 100 100
R 55 88 WA IR~ il E 195 LA
Oswald Property Management Hong Kong Property investment 2 HK$100 100 100
Company Limited B MERE 10070
Stelux Properties Agency Limited ~ Hong Kong Property agency and 2 HK$1 100 100
Bt RILAG PR A7 Hils management i A
HSe
Stelux Properties Limited Hong Kong Property management 500 HK$100 100 100
A R ik e £ Rk 100 T

B () A RA A
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35  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35 EEMEBAF A
Particulars of Percentage of equity
Place of share capital issued  attributable to the Group
incorporation/ BRTRA SEREESNEAL
operation Principal activities Number Value 2016 2015
MR, R FEEHR k&% #kEE
Retailing and trading
ZERES
City Chain Company Limited Hong Kong Watch retailing 250,000 HK$100 100 100
i ] e e A PR 2 il BT E R 100 T
City Chain (M) Sdn Bhd Malaysia Watch retailing 3,333,333 RM1 100 100
Y i FEEE 123
City Chain (Macau) Company Macau Watch retailing 2 MOP5,000 100 100
Limited T BT Nk
I s afc (IRP) IR ) 5,0007C
City Chain Stores (S) Pte Limited ~ Singapore Watch retailing 1,800,000 S$1 100 100
Hrhnss BT g H
17T
City Chain (Thailand) Company ~ Thailand Watch retailing 200,000 Baht100 100 100
Limited 2R s 100 %k
210,000° Baht100
100 %5k
Optical 88 Limited Hong Kong Optical products 33,379,940 HK$1 100 100
R85 88 AR i TR LA
Optical 88 Eyecare (M) Sdn Bhd ~ Malaysia Optical products 1,428,572 RM1 100 100
AR5 TR 14%
Optical 88 (Macau) Limited Macau Optical products 2 MOP5,000 100 100
I8 88 (") A RA R IR R TR
5,000 7C
Optical 88(S) Pte Limited Singapore Optical products 500,000 S$1 100 100
Hrhnsg LA fh Mg o
Optical 88 (Thailand) Company ~ Thailand Optical products 245,000 Baht10 100 100
Limited #H HERRE 10 %6k
255,000 Baht10
1058k
Pronto Watch S.A. Switzerland Watch distribution 100 SFr1,000 100 100
Bt S ) H 1,005+
i
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35  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35 EEMEBATF A
Particulars of Percentage of equity
Place of share capital issued  attributable to the Group
incorporation/ ERTRE SEMEERNEDL
operation Principal activities Number Value 2016 2015
MRS FEXEHR k& SkmE
Retailing and trading (Continued)
ZEREZ (H)
Solvil et Titus S.A. Switzerland Watch distribution 300 SFr1,000 100 100
Bit: Sk 8 1,000 54
TR
Stelux International Licensing Bahamas Trademark holding and 2 Us$1 100 100
Limited B licensing B
TERFEA MR AL
Stelux Watch Limited Hong Kong Watch supply chain 1,000,000 HK$1 100 100
Bk AR ik management T
SR T g
Thong Sia Watch Company Limited Hong Kong Watch distribution 80,000 HK$10 100 100
A R R il SR B W 10T
Thong Tai Watch Company Limited Hong Kong Watch distribution 2,000  HKS$1,000 100 100
RS A R i Bk B #%51,000 7T
Thong Sia Company (Singapore) Pte  Singapore Watch distribution 2,000,000 S$1 100 100
Limited Hnsg Bk 8 Hrhmsg®s 1 7
Thong Sia Sdn Bhd Malaysia Watch distribution 1,000,000 RM1 97.6 97.6
ARG S 8 147
Thong Tai (Taiwan) Company Hong Kong/Taiwan Watch distribution 1,000 HK$10 100 100
Limited it/ AE S B 07T
R (A8 ARAF
Thong Sia (Thailand) Limited Thailand Watch retailing and 20,000 Baht100 100 100
30| distribution 100 %68k
SRR )
Thong Sia Optics (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Optical distribution 5,000  HKS$1,000 100 100
Company Limited ik IR g3 7815 1,000 7
EHOLEE (B ) AR R
Universal Geneve S.A. Switzerland Watch supply chain 5,000 SFr1,000 100 100
Ji management and 1,000 % &
distribution A
S (AL B T 0%
Catena S.A Switzerland Manufacture of watch 1,016,667 SFr1 100¢ -
Hit: movements it
TREERIEN i

B () A RA A
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35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35 EENEATE 4
Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation attributable to the Group
operation Principal activities Paid-up capital SEFTEEENADL
MY IREH BREX 2016 2015
Retailing and trading
(Continued)
ZERES (B)
Stelux Thong Sia (Guangdong) People’s Republic of China/ Watch retailing, trading  HK$241,400,000 100 100
Trading Limited Mainland China (foreign- and related services ¥4 241,400,000 7T
B () EAHMRAR  invested commercial HETE - GH )
enterprise) B R
/e K BE (S 7
FA3)
Stelux Thong Sia (Beijing) People’s Republic of China/ Watch retailing, trading  US$20,500,000 100 100
Trading Limited Mainland China (foreign- and related services 20,500,000 37T
I (L) MEAHMAT  invested commercial HHTE "R
enterprise) il
/e K BE (S 7
E3)
Stelux-Thong Sia (Shanghai)  People’s Republic of China/ Watch retailing, trading  US$16,000,000 100 100
Trading Limited Mainland China (foreign- and related services 16,000,000 7T
EN (1§ B AMRAR  invested commercial HHTE BN
enterprise) ilkliiess
/e K BE (SN 7
F3)
Baoqjing (Chongging) Trading  People’s Republic of China/ Watch retailing, trading  HK$32,000,000 100 100
Limited Mainland China (foreign- and related services  # 32,000,000 7T
T (E ) MEARAT invested commercial HEEE - HH R
enterprise) HHBMH
/e K BE (S A 7
FA3)
Baoshi (Guangdong) Company People’s Republic of China/ Retailing, tradingand ~ HK$238,890,000 100 100
Limited Mainland China (foreign- related optical #57238,890,000 76
B (B BOCIRBIA AR invested commercial services
enterprise) REEnEE - B
/e K BE (SN £ 7 il o
E e
1 41 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35 FEMEBAR (4)
Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation attributable to the Group
operation Principal activities Paid-up capital EEFRERENE D
MR S TERE BRER 2016 2015
Retailing and trading
(Continued)
Z2ERES (B)
Baoshi (Beijing) Company People’s Republic of China/ Retailing, trading and HK$38,000,000 100 100
Limited Mainland China (foreign- related optical #1538 000,000 7C
EOREM (L) IRGEER/AT invested commercial services
enterprise) WEEmEE - 85
GV PRECINEd il e
E4p%)
Baoshi (Shanghai) Company  People’s Republic of China/ Retailing, tradingand ~ RMB23,364,557 100 100
Limited Mainland China (foreign- related optical AR 23,364,557 7C
B (HE) A RAT invested commercial services
enterprise) WEmEE - 85
BB RRE (SN BAH BT
E0%)
Shibao (Chongqing) Trading  People’s Republic of China/ Retailing, tradingand ~ HK$18,000,000 100 100
Limited Mainland China (foreign- related optical 518,000,000 7
P () MEARAF invested commercial services
enterprise) MEEEMETE - B
B/ R RE (SN TAr B R
FH)
a Directly held subsidiary a AT 1 B A T
Non-redeemable preference shares b T i [ 4 S it
100% equity interest included 88% of equity interest and a c 100% HE 25 135 88% A % LB A 32 i

right to purchase 12% of equity interest

B 129% e

B () A RA A
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to improve transparency and
protect the interests of shareholders in general. The Board
of directors (the “Board”) of the Company is committed to
making sure that effective self-regulatory practices exist to
protect the interests of its shareholders. These include a
Board comprising experienced and high calibre members,
board committees, and effective and sound systems of
internal controls.

This Corporate Governance Report (“Report”) describes the
Company’s corporate governance practices with specific
reference to the Corporate Governance Code contained
in Appendix 14 (the “Corporate Governance Code”) of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).
During the financial year ended 31 March 2016, the

EEERFERTA

A SR B B0y R R KA SR - AR
AE R B 785 B JBE A o A e R SRR A R i o
ARrEEG(EHFEE)) BOHEREHA
RO B RS R DAL BE SRR A A 4
WP ARSI B R AE R A BALR N
T EEZAGURERAMEENA
AR R AT

A FEE RS CRE D BB ARA TN
EEBFH > &R 2 BE B4
ST AT RN Wl R LT AR A (T BT )
B 8% 14 T SR A 2L 3R SF (T A 2 IR
D) - #FE 201643 31 H IEIBUERE > A&
Iy F B SE A A SF RIS > A
Jit st A e =5 3 B ok A o I sy I 2 R R

Company complied with the provisions of the Corporate TEARIRS N IRA FEAE o
Governance Code except for certain deviations. These

deviations with considered reasons are set out in this Report.

DIRECTORS” AND EMPLOYEES’ SECURITIES EERESETESRS

TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies contained in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions.

The Company has also made specific enquiry of all its
directors to ascertain whether they have complied with
or whether there has been any non-compliance with the
required standard set out in the Model Code.

In addition, the Board has established written guidelines
on no less exacting terms than the Model Code for relevant
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) in respect of these employees’ dealings in the
securities of the Company.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Group by directing and supervising its
affairs. Every director is expected to discharge his or her
duties in good faith and up to the standard of prevailing
applicable laws and regulations, acting in the best interests
of the Group and the Company’s shareholders.

Appointments to the Board are based on merit having
regard to an appropriate balance of skills, experience,
independence and knowledge.

Subsequent to the resignation of Ms. Mary Ma and Mr.
Alex Wong on or before 30 September 2016, the Board
will comprise of 6 members; two executive directors,
three independent non-executive directors and one non-
executive director.

Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui resigned as an executive director of
the Company on 1 July 2015 due to retirement.

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive officer
(“CEQ”) should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Under the current organisation
structure of the Group, Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong is both
Chairman and CEO of the Group. The Board is of the
opinion that vesting the roles of both Chairman and CEO in
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong has the benefit of ensuring consistent
leadership within the Group thus enabling more effective
and efficient strategic planning for the Group. The Board
also believes that the balance of power and authority is not
compromised and is adequately ensured by the composition
of the existing Board.

The non-executive and independent non-executive directors
are highly experienced individuals with a broad range
of expertise and experience including in areas such as
management accounting, finance, academia and healthcare
consulting.Together, they ensure that the Board maintains
high standards of financial accounting and other mandatory
reporting; providing adequate checks and balances to
safeguard the interests of shareholders in general and the
Group as a whole.

Exg

ERGAAEEREEASENELE I
S H B TS0 I I A s DA i
SERS I o A% TR A B LA A BT
T 3 91 i R T AT AR e B AT R AT > LA
B B B AR R R 2 B A SR AT o

RALEHGHE - GRIESRE - A5 B
SEARE BRI A0 5 L AR T o

ARG BAL 2 L RN T B SEAETE 2016 4F 9 A
30 HEl Z ATAHTAR - EHEAANLMA
FIEW AT S - = AL AT B
Ke—ZIATHFESR -

B PR e A R AR T BEAT e i
HERHS - H20154FE7 H1 HAR -

HRPE AR SEEA T R B <7 RUGRSCR A 2.1 L
SE > T AT BB ([T B D A6
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

To assist the directors to discharge their duties, there are
established written procedures to enable the directors, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

The term of office of the Company’s non-executive directors,
including the independent non-executive directors, is 3
years, subject to retirement by rotation (pursuant to Bye-law
110(A) of the Company’s Bye-laws), whichever is the earlier.

Under Code Provision A.4.2, every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Not all
directors of the Company retire strictly under Code Provision
A.4.2. The Company’s Bye-Laws 110(A) stipulates that,
one-third of the directors of the Company who have been
longest serving in office since their last election, except the
Chairman or CEO, shall retire from office by rotation at each
annual general meeting (“AGM”).

Both the Board and management have clearly defined roles
and responsibilities under various internal controls and check
and balance mechanisms. The Board is ultimately responsible
for establishing the overall strategic direction of the Group,
steering the growth of the Group, setting objectives and
business development plans within a set of well-defined core
values, monitoring the performance of senior management
and assuming responsibility for corporate governance.
Management is responsible for formulating policies,
implementing strategies and plans, and regularly reports to the
Strategy Committee and the Board on the Group’s performance
and operations. Directors have access to management for
enquiries, explanations, briefings or informal discussions on the
Group’s operations and businesses.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board held a total of five board meetings and passed
circular resolutions during the financial year. At the board
meetings, different issues and matters were discussed and
reviewed including, approval of the Group’s FY14/15 final
results and the FY15/16 interim results; reviewing financial
and operating performances of the Group; approval of new
and/or renewals of borrowing facilities; approval of new
and/or renewals of continuing connected transactions;
and conducting an annual review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal controls of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the purposes of Code Provision C.2.1 and
C.2.2. Details of the directors’ attendance at the Board
meetings during the financial year are set out below. All
businesses transacted at the Board meetings are well-
documented and the records are maintained in accordance
with applicable laws and regulations.

3. EE®(H)

HRGNARMBFEIL R IRER G &
ARG 2 TH A R R o AR HIREH
g AN PN AN R oy ]
WA AL 14/15 BABUAE BE R A S4B K 15/16
BRI SR A AR A AR B
R s PR & A A s
WEH e/ SR AR A B A S o M RS
HIMGESCAE C.2 16 )2 C.2. 216 » AR ] R H:
W o 2 ] 4 A B ) 14 BB A T AT
Mwt o MARPABUERE > KEHNEFGE
MR RSN - NER G
2 AT YRR AT R B o 0 4 R T
B S A A R 8% -

Total no. of No. of Directors
Date of Directors present
board meeting EEgeETAY ESBA" HEEEAY
25 June 2015 201546 /125 H 8 7
20 July 2015 201547 H20H 8 7
6 November 2015 2015411 H6 H 8 7
19 January 2016 201641 19 H 8 7
8 March 2016 201643 H 8 H 8 7
No. of board meetings
attended/held in FY15/16
Director R15/16 IREFE
B HEBHZESSERHE
Executive Directors THES
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong (Chairman and BRI SEAE (F RATBUEE)
Chief Executive Officer) 5/5
Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui (Chief Operating Officer) BITEMSGAE (I E AR 1/5
(retired as a director of the Company (A 201547 11 HBIK)
on 1 July 2015)
Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin (Chief Financial Officer) B B e (7 A A ) 5/5
Non-executive Directors FITHES
Mr. Sakorn Kanjanapas BANLEA: 0/5
Ms. Mary Ma e e 5/5
Mr. Alex Wong TR 5/5
Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang (independent) B () 5/5
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man (independent) WS SCBAR () 5/5
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang (independent) WE 2 AT 1 L (g ar) 5/5

B () A RA A
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

During the financial year, the Company held its AGM on 17
August 2015. No other general meetings were held during
the financial year. Details of the directors’ attendance at the
AGM are set out below:

17 August 2015

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong

Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin

Mr. Alex Wong

Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

The Board is supplied with relevant information by
management pertaining to matters to be brought before the
Board for decision as well as reports relating to operational
and financial performance of the Group before each regular
board meeting. At least 14 day’s notice of a regular board
meeting is given to all directors giving them the opportunity
to attend. Board papers are despatched to directors generally
at least 3 days before the meeting and in any event as soon
as practicable, in all instances, ensuring that they have
sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately
prepared for the meeting.

The proceedings of the Board at its meetings are generally
conducted by the Chairman of the Company who ensures that
sufficient time is allocated for discussion and consideration
of each item on the agenda and also equal opportunities are
given to directors to speak, express their views and share their
concerns. The Chairman held one meeting on 23 March 2016
with the non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) without the executive directors present.

Under Code Provision A.6.5, all directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. As such the directors
are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development. The directors were furnished with reading
materials on the topics of “Inside Information” and
“Director’s Duties” and these materials would have
constituted about 5 hours of reading time.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Professional development seminars attended by the
directors during the financial year are set out below:

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong attended a seminar on “Director’s
Duties and New Companies Ordinance” .

Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin attended a seminar on
“Director’s Duties and New Companies Ordinance”.

Ms. Mary Ma attended a seminar on “In-house briefing
HKEx Corporate Governance Code Changes — Risk
Management and Internal Controls”.

Mr. Alex Wong attended a seminar on “INED Forum”.

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang attended a seminar on “INED
Forum”.

Mr. Nelson Wu Chi Man attended the following:-

(i) Seminar on Corporate Fraud — Problems and Possible
Solutions;

(i) Financial Instruments;

(iii)  Seminar on Common Misconceptions in China Tax
and the Consequences of Non-compliances;

(iv)  Seminar on IFRS — Challenges;

(v)  Financial Reporting Update? New Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance;

(vi)  How a multinational company leveraged its ERP
system to optimize operational efficiency;

(vii) Recent trends and developments in China Transfer
Pricing;

(viii) Changes in Financial Reporting under the New Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Bs24)

A I T DL A B R
I B R G T

BRI SRR R [ w) o S A o A Rl
] Wrater -

A ERSEA R [ R BRSO o ) bk
] Wteter -

BRAELZ T HE“In-house briefing HKEx

Corporate Governance Code Changes — Risk
Management and Internal Controls” °

BT FSEA R INED Forum BIFf € o

6 & A7 1 RS INED Forum ™ W at €

WA IR AU O el g - —

(i)  Seminar on Corporate Fraud -
Problems and Possible Solutions;

(i)  Financial Instruments;

(iii)  Seminar on Common Misconceptions
in China Tax and the Consequences of
Non-compliances;

(iv)  Seminar on IFRS — Challenges;

(v Financial Reporting Update? New
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance;

(vii How a multinational company
leveraged its ERP system to optimize
operational efficiency;

(vii) Recent trends and developments in
China Transfer Pricing;

(viii) Changes in Financial Reporting under
the New Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

B () A RA A
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4. BOARD DIVERSITY
(1) Policy on Board Diversity

a.  We embrace diversity by being inclusive.

b.  We believe in meritocracy irrespective of
gender, ethnicity, culture, generation or

geography.

c.  We believe that an optimal and balanced
board should comprise of individuals with
an appropriate balance of different skills,
educational and industry background,
experience, independence and knowledge.

(2) Objective and Benefits of Board Diversity

To remain competitive in a globalised world, board
diversity is at the forefront of the Group’s agenda. We
believe in diversity and inclusiveness as these bring
to the boardroom a spectrum of perspectives and
opinions, necessary as we navigate our businesses
through a more complex market place and as our
customers’ aspirations grow in sophistication.

5. COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company
and has day to day knowledge of the Group’s affairs. She
reports to the Chairman and CEO. The Board has access to
the advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure
that board procedures and all applicable laws, rules and
regulations, are followed.

The Company Secretary attended the following professional
development seminars receiving around 20 hours of training
during the financial year:-

(i) Risk Governance;

(i) Data privacy in Mainland China;

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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(i)  Risk Governance;

(i) Data privacy in Mainland China;
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COMPANY SECRETARY (Continued)
(iii)  Listing compliance update;

Listing enforcement strategy, current theme and case
study; and

Integrity Management and Corruption Prevention;

(iv) Hong Kong and PRC Employment Law Review 2015;

(v)  PRC Labour Law;
(vi)  The IP Year Ahead 2016;

(vii) Director’s Duties and New Companies Ordinance.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the
preparation of the Group’s accounts and has delegated
this responsibility to the Group CFO. The Group CFO
and his team are responsible for preparing interim and
annual financial statements based on generally accepted
accounting principles in Hong Kong ensuring that the
financial statements present a fair and true view of the
results and the financial position of the Group and that
they comply with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations. The Group CFO maintains
regular communications with the external auditors. He also
plays a role in reviewing and making recommendations to
the Board on the Group's financial risk management. During
the fiscal year, the Group CFO was also responsible for
overseeing the Group's investor relations activities.

A statement by the Group’s external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers about their reporting
responsibilities on the Group's financial statements are set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 38.

The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company and its subsidiaries ability to continue as a
going concern.

(iii)  Listing compliance update;

Listing enforcement strategy, current
theme and case study; and

Integrity Management and Corruption
Prevention;

(iv) Hong Kong and PRC Employment Law
Review 2015;

(v)  PRC Labour Law;
(vi)  The IP Year Ahead 2016;

(vii) Director’s Duties and New Companies
Ordinance.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The Company appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers as
the external auditor of the Company and certain of its
subsidiaries at the respective 2015 annual general meetings
until the conclusion of the next annual general meetings.
During the year, HK$4,749,000 was paid or payable to
PricewaterhouseCoopers for the provision of audit services.
Details of nature for non-audit related services provided by
and the fee paid or payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers are
set out as below:

BB ET &

AN E] T 2015 AT SR AT R e Z AT B SR
B 51 T 5 AR ) R LR R
NCIPA N Y3 TR R - N T R ]
SEREEER B IE o R > A 75 =R
JK HE & ill =5 5 T 4 4t 2 A IR S 1) S
{F B EAT AR 4,749,000 T © S RUKIE &
il = BT HR Ak 2 I A SO B RS R
I ST sk BB 2 2 R AR

Description HK$
IGED BT
Taxation compliance BB B 786,000
Advisory and other services i o) H A i s 607,000

The Group also engaged other auditors in Hong Kong and
overseas for auditing and miscellaneous services and total
fees paid amounted to HK$985,000.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in the discharge of its duties, the Board
is supported by five board committees. Each committee has
its defined scope of duties and terms of reference and the
committee members are empowered to make decisions on
matters within the terms of reference of each committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

m

Strategy Committee

The Strategy Committee comprises of two executive
directors, namely, Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong (Chairman
of the Strategy Committee, Group Chairman and
CEO), Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin (Group CFO) and
two non-executive directors, namely, Ms. Mary Ma
and Mr. Alex Wong . The Strategy Committee meets
regularly and its terms of reference includes providing
recommendations to the Board on changes to the
Group’s organisational structure; formulation of key
performance indicators for the Group’s businesses,
annual budgets; and to advise the Board on strategic
matters as thought fit and necessary for the expansion
and future development of the Group.

The Committee met seven times during the financial
year and up to the date of this Report.

Attendance of directors at the Strategy Committee
Meetings held on:

23 April 2015

23 June 2015

31 August 2015

13 October 2015
16 November 2015
3 February 2016

8 April 2016

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong

Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui (up to 1 July 2015)
Ms. Mary Ma

Mr. Alex Wong

Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

2

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of three independent
non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Nelson Wu
Chun Sang (Chairman of the Audit Committee),
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man and Dr. Agnes
Kwong Yi Hang and two non-executive directors,
namely, Ms. Mary Ma and Mr. Alex Wong.

The terms of reference of the Committee are aligned
with the recommendations set out in the Listing Rules
and the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code. The Committee provides advice
and recommendations to the Board and oversees all
matters relating to the external auditors, thus playing
an important role in monitoring and safeguarding the
independence of the external auditors.

The Committee met four times during the financial
year and up to the date of this Report together with
the external auditors in three meetings to discuss
matters, including, the Group’s audit service plan,
the review of accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and other financial reporting
matters; to ensure the completeness, accuracy and
fairness of the financial statements of the Company;
to discuss the effectiveness of the systems of internal
control throughout the Group including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of
the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function, and their training programmes and budget;
to review all significant business affairs managed by
the executive directors in particular on continuing
connected transactions and to review the Group’s
results for the year ended 31 March 2016 and interim
results for 2015/2016 before they were presented to
the Board for approval.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(2)

3)

Audit Committee (Continued)

Attendance of directors at the Audit Committee
Meetings held on:

18 March 2016

Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Mr. Alex Wong

22 June 2015

23 November 2015

20 June 2016

Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Ms. Mary Ma

Mr. Alex Wong

Ms. Mary Ma appointed Mr. Alex Wong as alternate
director to act on her behalf in her absence at the
Committee meeting held on 18 March 2016.

Remuneration Committee

The Company’s Remuneration Committee comprises
of Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man (Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Nelson Wu Chun
Sang, Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang (all independent
non-executive directors of the Company, Ms. Mary
Ma Xuezheng (non-executive director) and Mr. Joseph
C. C. Wong (Group Chairman and CEO).
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

3

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

Code Provision B.1.2 deals with the terms of reference
of the remuneration committee. The Company has
adopted the terms of reference under Code Provision
B.1.2 except that the terms of reference do not
include reviewing and determining the remuneration
packages of senior management. The Company
believes that the remuneration packages of senior
management should be the responsibility of the
executive directors as they are in a better position to
appraise the performance of senior management. The
Remuneration Committee determines with delegated
responsibility the remuneration packages of its
individual executive directors. The basic salaries of its
executive directors are reviewed annually, and unless
there are exceptional circumstances, increases if any,
generally align with the average annual increment for
the Group’s office staff in Hong Kong.

The Committee met once during the financial year
and up to the date of this Report. At this meeting, the
Committee conducted annual reviews of the basic
salaries of its executive directors and determined the
annual bonus scheme for FY15/16 for its executive
directors.

Attendance of directors at the Remuneration
Committee Meeting held on:

21 August 2015

Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong

Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Ms. Mary Ma
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

4)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises of Mr. Joseph
C. C. Wong (Chairman of the Nomination Committee,
Group Chairman and CEO), three independent non-
executive directors, namely, Mr. Nelson Wu Chun
Sang, Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man, Dr. Agnes
Kwong Yi Hang and a non-executive director, Mr.
Alex Wong.

Code Provision A.5.3 deals with the terms of reference
of a nomination committee. The Company has
adopted the terms of reference under Code Provision
A.5.3. During the financial year, and up to the date
of this Report, the Committee met once. At this
meeting, the Committee reviewed the structure, size
and composition of the Board and considered the
independence of Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang having
served 12 years by the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting. The Committee nominated Mr. Nelson
Wu Chung Sang for re-election as an independent
non-executive director at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting. In the nomination process, the
Committee proposes the most appropriate individual
with the right balance of skills, experience, and
industry background for the position based on merit
irrespective of gender, ethnicity, culture, generation or

geography.

Attendance of directors at the Nomination Committee
Meetings held on:

23 June 2016

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man
Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Mr. Alex Wong
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

(5)

Corporate Governance Committee

Stelux recognises that adopting proper systems, running
our businesses within a strong legal framework of rules
and procedures, underpinned by sound business ethics
are essential to safeguarding the economic performance
of the Group and our shareholders’ interests in a
sustainable manner. The Corporate Governance
Committee comprises Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin
(Chief Financial Officer, appointed as Chairman of the
Committee with effect from 1 July 2015 in place of
Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui, who resigned as Chairman
of the Committee with effect from 1 July 2015), three
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr.
Nelson Wu Chun Sang, Professor Lawrence Wu Chi
Man, Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang and two non-executive
directors, namely, Ms. Mary Ma and Mr. Alex Wong.

Code Provision D.3.1 deals with the terms of
reference of a corporate governance committee. The
Company has adopted the terms of reference under
Code Provision D.3.1. The Corporate Governance
Committee held one meeting during the financial
year. At this meeting, the Committee amongst other
things, reviewed the Company’s compliance with
the Code Provisions and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report. Quarterly sales turnover
updates are voluntarily issued by the Company
and a whistleblowing policy is in place. With the
implementation of the statutory disclosure regime for
inside information under the Securities and Futures
(Amendment) Ordinance 2012 on 1 January 2013,
systems are in place on reporting and dissemination of
inside information.
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8. BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued) 8. EEZEg A
(5) Corporate Governance Committee (Continued) (5G) ©EEBREES(H)
Attendance of directors at the Corporate Governance #HHR T H B RITRAAEE R E R
Committee Meeting held on: R D
18 March 2016 20163 A 18H
Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin B B e
Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang [k
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man BRSO
Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang R AT
Ms. Mary Ma HEIEL A+
Mr. Alex Wong T A
The above board committees report to the Board on FHiERZAEGEMMERGRE o R HE
a regular basis. All businesses transacted at the board FEAGGHFETINAE FEB AR K
committee meetings are recorded and minuted. The terms A Gk o Ll K& 5
of reference of four of the above board committees are )RR RRE ot B 7 A W) 4B 25 www . stelux.com
available on the Company’s website at www.stelux.com. A RIS -
9. INTERNAL CONTROLS 9. REMERE
The internal controls and accounting systems of the Group AEEF LN B g Rt HE > BES
are designed to provide reasonable assurance that assets PR BE A > A TE R KCARME TS DL Bt
are safeguarded against unauthorised use or disposition, R E > MMERITA 55 W TEE Mg R
transactions are executed in accordance with management’s I DU HEAT o & FHIR H BE AT 5E Hh B
authorisation and the accounting records are reliable for 1 45 B2 w3 ) A5 3R Y B S R
preparing financial information used within the business or 7 0T P B D ) R AR DL o
for publication and reflecting accountability for assets and
liabilities.
The key responsibilities of the Group’s Compliance and N Sk S AN R e U RS = 0
Internal Controls Department, include: i -
e to review cost control and performance efficiency of o BEETITA SEH R B A i R R B
all business units; BOR
e to identify areas for improvement in the Group’s o R A E AR R N R B R SR A
system of internal controls and to propose necessary S o S E R G LR EE

recommendations to the Board; and

e tocarry out internal audit work at business units. o JAKEBERITHEST N ARFARL TAE o
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (Continued)

Under Code Provision C.2.1, the directors should at least
annually conduct a review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal controls system reporting to the Company’s
shareholders in the Corporate Governance Report. The
review should cover all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions.

Under Code Provision C.2.2, the Board’s annual review
should, in particular, consider the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal controls and accounting systems of
the Company and its subsidiaries and a board meeting was
held on 18 March 2016 for such a review for the period
from 1 April 2015 up to and including 18 March 2016. The
Board reported that there were no changes in the nature
and extent of significant risks and there were no material
changes in the control environment during the period under
review. According to the opinion of the Board, the Company
and its subsidiaries have established sound internal control
systems so that our shareholders’ investment and the
Company’s assets are safeguarded. Moreover, in the opinion
of the Board, the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function was adequately resourced with staff
holding appropriate qualifications and experience and with
sufficient training and budget provided by the Company.

The effectiveness of the system of internal controls and the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function and their training programmes and budget will be
reviewed annually.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

R EREEEE (4F)

il

WS RIS C20 k> ER R D F
A 3 S5 T P B A A FEE Y BB AT — AR
it o AR A S I W P 1 AR 2 R B R RE
e o A7 B A R 25 BT A B B BEEE O
T LA S ~ i O R DL B A
JkAE

MRYESF RIRSCER C.2.2 0k > HEGIF R
ol AR 9 A AL 2 R 5 A TS A R
B TR ELAR 250 & M Ay > W E %
RN > R TEA G wh K
5 MEHH RE Oy T4 78 O TELSE

i O AR /] R BB A /] 2 I
P B B S R A ROE TR I
HH 201594 H1 HE 201643 H18 H (4
&z H ) 2 AEtit 2016473 H 18 H 847
HRGOE e HFGHEER > AXFAEK
JEL g A BT R N AR A A o T B R ER
TEZ A HA M TR e FE K ol 5 - iR e
ZER > AN E RIS AR B oL R4
Z N FEREE R B > TR B R 2 E AR
N ZERE o WA EHETES - ANF
TE & 51 K WP RS ik e Oy A AR R R
TR~ B T ELA 2 40 1 G R I AR B I B
Z RN > KA\ BRI TR 1 T
ﬁ o

A% 1 A A AR A R A AR
TE8 R L SBS T 0  BE J7 T2 15 B A T
W IR - B TR A B A
5o MR MBI R EHA R
JETHE o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EERERRE

10.

11.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

To promote and enhance investor relations, press meetings,
roadshows, and meetings with the investment community
are held regularly. The Group values constant dialogue
with existing and prospective investors as a way to increase
understanding of the Group’s business models and the way
we conduct our businesses.

SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS

(1) How shareholders can convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Shareholders may request to convene an extraordinary
general meeting in accordance with section 74 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981:

i. The directors of a company, notwithstanding
anything in its bye-laws shall, on the requisition
of members of the company holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of such of the paid-up capital
of the company as at the date of the deposit
carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the company, or, in the case of a company
not having a share capital, members of the
company representing not less than one-tenth
of the total voting rights of all the members
having at the said date a right to vote at general
meetings of the company, forthwith proceed
duly to convene a special general meeting of the
company.

ii.  The requisition must state the purposes of
the meeting, and must be signed by the
requisitionists and deposited at the registered
office of the company, and may consist of
several documents in like form each signed by
one or more requisitionists.
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11. SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS (Continued)

(1) How shareholders can convene an extraordinary
general meeting (Continued)

If the directors do not within twenty-one days
from the date of the deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a meeting, but
any meeting so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of three months from the said
date.

A meeting convened under this section by the
requisitionists shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings are to be convened by directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionists by reason of the failure of the
directors duly to convene a meeting shall be
repaid to the requisitionists by the company,
and any sum so repaid shall be retained by the
company out of any sums due or to become
due from the company by way of fees or other
remuneration in respect of their services to such
directors as were in default.

(2) Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the
board and sufficient contact details to enable these
enquiries to be properly directed

Shareholders may send their enquiries to the Board by

addressing them to the Company Secretary in writing

to:

(i) the Company’s head office, 27/F, Stelux House, 698
Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong

Kong; or (i) by email to shareholdersenquiries@stelux.com.
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11.

12.

SHAREHOLDERS RIGHTS (Continued)

(3) Procedures and sufficient contact details for putting
forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders may, subject to (1) above, by way of
request in writing request a shareholders’ meeting
to be convened for the purpose of considering a
certain matter, addressing the request to the Company
Secretary at:

the Company’s head office, 27/F, Stelux House,
698 Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company attaches great importance to communication
with its shareholders and investors. To foster effective
communications, the Company provides extensive information
in its annual report, interim report and also publishes
information relating to the Group and its businesses on its
website: www.stelux.com.

The Company regards the AGM as a platform to provide an
important opportunity for direct communications between
the Board and the Company’s shareholders. All directors
and senior management will make an effort to attend.
External auditors will also attend the AGM. The chairman
of the Audit, Remuneration, Nomination and Corporate
Governance Committees were all present at the Company’s
AGM held in 2015. Shareholders are given at least 20 clear
business days or 21 days’ notice of the AGM (whichever
is the longer) and are encouraged to attend the AGM and
other shareholders” meetings. The Company supports
the Corporate Governance Code principle to encourage
shareholders’ participation.

Shareholders may send any enquiries they have by
addressing them to the Company Secretary in writing to:

(i) the Company’s head office, 27/F, Stelux House, 698
Prince Edward Road East, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong; (ii) or by email to shareholdersenquiries@stelux.com.
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13.

14.

CODE OF CONDUCT

To enhance the ethical standards of employees, the
Company has an employee handbook, setting out the
Group's requisite standards and an ethical code of conduct
for all employees of the Group. Employees at all levels are
expected to conduct themselves in an honest, diligent and
responsible manner.

CONCLUSION

The Company recognises that adopting good corporate
governance principles and practices are important for
the success of the Group and as such we will continue to
strengthen and improve the standard and quality of the
Group’s corporate governance.

STELUX Holdings International Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT
HESR

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Our Policies

In respect of Community Involvement, Stelux’ mission is to
strive to be a part of our communities, to serve and contribute
by promoting corporate social responsibility. Our motto is to
“Connect through Love”, and, through this we hope to:—

1. show love, to give hope and to support the disadvantaged;
2. encourage compassion and empathy in our employees;

3.  foster a sense of community within Stelux; and

4. empower through education.

As we engage with our community, Stelux” principal areas of
contribution are:-

1. interaction and integration with the wider community, like
the underprivileged and those with disabilities; and

2. education.

During the year, we continued to interact with the local
community in many different ways.

In FY2015/16, around 10% of our office employees in Hong Kong
were involved in some form of charitable work, whether during or
outside office hours.
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In Hong Kong, Stelux’ charitable volunteer team continued to
“Connect Through Love” through various activities with charities/
schools like Hong Fook Church Bradbury Community Health
Development Centre, St. Barnabas’ Society and Home, Evangel
Children’s Home, Hong Chi Association, Orbis and S.K.H. St.
Thomas’ Primary School which target low-income families, the
elderly and homeless, orphans and children from broken families,
those with intellectual disabilities, sight saving and students from
low income families respectively.

Activities included visitations to low-income families, the
homeless and elderly; the “2016 Hong Chi Association New
Territories Flag Day”; buying office floral displays arranged
by Hong Chi trainees on a weekly basis; and helping to raise
donations for “ORBIS Pin Day 2015”. Other sponsorships
included free tutorial classes for underprivileged students; gift
packages of basic groceries and toiletries, knitted hats, fresh
fruits and vegetables for low-income families; the provision of
eyeglasses and eye examinations for underprivileged children;
sponsoring students from low income families attending S.K.H.
St. Thomas’ Primary School with opportunities to learn a
musical instrument and to set up a school orchestra. The total
sum contributed to these charities in FY2015/16 was around
HK$250,000.

Holdings Intemational Limited

WEANMEGE ALmMARN
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YOU

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

TS R TR [ DI | i At 8 o FRAMSELHE & fEAR 22 8
Mt BEFRg2R  HEREZ R - EEG - BRI AR
AL /NS W SRR G AR o DL 2R E 2 R 8O I BRI A K
JE 5 R MR 5 IR KB R B BN A s B~ BOE BRI A R e
HERAE o

M ELLL b2 MM S F R Z TS AERTIRIARE - RE XX
F 5 AE2015 ER e WA FETER AR EE @R WEZIHAE
TEERARE e M B B [ BRLLL STt SR A58 B 2015 ) ROSERTAE o HA B BhIH H Q46 55
BB AR B SRR B 5 SR A R SRR~ Ve A~ B
WE BT KCR RS 5 DA K £ I e B R (AR G R B R IR 5 B A R JeE
B PR G L I/ NEE R Y RSO AT LY < TR 2015/16 BABUEE
1) 28 35 15 B B SR 364 HK$250,000 ©



COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT
HESR

During the year, Thong Sia Hong Kong, the sole distributor for
“SEIKO” watches and clocks sponsored several sports events,
including “Sowers Action — Ancient Teahorse Route”, “Sowers Action
— Challenging 12 Hours Charity”, “UNICEF Charity Run 2015,
“Stanley International Dragon Boat Championships 2015”, “Hong
Kong Dragon Boat Carnival”, “AVS Charity Run Sports Fun Day”,
“Oxfam Trailwalker 2015”, “Oxfam Tower Run 2015” and “MSF
Orienteering Competition 2016”. Furthermore, Thong Sia Hong Kong

supports the conservation work of WWF-Hong Kong as a Corporate
Member. Thong Sia Hong Kong has also sponsored many charitable events including “Race for Water 2015” by A Drop of
Life Ltd., “Walk For Nature 2015” by WWF, “World Vision Hong Kong — 30 Hour Famine” and “Stride for a Cure 2015”
by the Hong Kong Cancer Fund.
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Staff volunteers from City Chain Malaysia and Optical 88
Malaysia visited House of Joy Kids, a local charity serving
disadvantaged children, taking the children on a pre-historic
adventure. Optical 88 Malaysia also provided complimentary eye
screening and prescription glasses to children at Shelter Home,
another local charity for disadvantaged children.

T ] JBR 55 206 P 5 % MR 8% 88 FE AR VY i ) B T.38 T2 5l % Hh IR 755 55 34 St 38 (1 26
£ [H 88 House of Joy Kids » A7 ¢ il 3 HEAT L NI HRER © WREE 88 M2V R IR £ 7
— 5 IR 55 20 5T B 19 25 3 91 B8 Shelter Home B9 5 3 42 4100 2 IR B AG A ST
HIREE -

TR (F) ABRA
2016 4F4F-H

166



167

AWARDS
#2187

CARING COMPANY
AR REIR

In recognition for the Group’s services and support to the
wider local community, Stelux and its subsidiaries, City
Chain Hong Kong, Optical 88 Hong Kong, and Thong Sia
Watch, the Hong Kong distributor for "SEIKO” watches and
clocks were again respectively awarded Caring Company
Awards by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Registered Office
Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street
Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda

Principal Office

27th Floor, Stelux House
698 Prince Edward Road East
San Po Kong

Kowloon

Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Citibank, N. A.

Auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Share Registrar

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
26 Burnaby Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Room 1712-1716

17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Strategy Committee
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong (Chairman of Committee)

Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui (retirement effective from 1 July 2015)

Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin
Ms. Mary Ma
Mr. Alex Wong

EEQHiE Y
Canon’ Court, 22 Victoria Street
Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda
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MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
26 Burnaby Street
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Audit Committee

Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang (Chairman of Committee)
Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Ms. Mary Ma

Mr. Alex Wong

Remuneration Committee

Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man (Chairman of Committee)
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong

Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Ms. Mary Ma

Nomination Committee

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong (Chairman of Committee)
Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang

Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Mr. Alex Wong

Corporate Governance Committee

Mr. Vincent Lau Tak Bui (Chairman of Committee until his
retirement on 1 July 2015)

Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin (Chairman of Committee)

Mr. Nelson Wu Chun Sang

Professor Lawrence Wu Chi Man

Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang

Ms. Mary Ma

Mr. Alex Wong
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RETAIL
2E

CITY CHAIN*
IR [

Hong Kong
ik (88)

Mainland China
rhg KR (93)

Macau

M (10)

Thailand
Z#E (63)

Singapore

Hiimk (28)

Malaysia
FEAR PR (63)

OPTICAL
IR &

OPTICAL 88*
R $88*

Hong Kong
i (81)
Mainland China
B RE (43)
Macau
#F (10)
Thailand
75 (40)
Singapore

FmE (15)

Malaysia
FEARVYEE (27)

Hong Kong
it (23)
Mainland China
HEKRE (38)
Thailand
R (1)

Singapore

Fmk 4)

Malaysia
FEARPYEL (2)

STELUX HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
BEXEX(ER)BRAE

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
HAEsEEE

Hong Kong
i

Switzerland

Number of shops as at 31 May 2016. Includes all concept shops.
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MAINLAND CHINA AND HONG KONG FEIKERER

Equity Investment, Property Investment, Retail, Trading, IEABE - W - TE - By M R itE
Wholesale and Supply Chain Management P

e Stelux Holdings International Ltd EDOLHEE (B A RA R

J Stelux Holdings Ltd
J Stelux Properties Ltd
o Optical 88 Ltd

o City Chain Co Ltd

ES
JEFE (EE) ARAF

il

B A R A A

R $5% 88 A PR

I [H] oG Sk 6% A PR W)

e Stelux Watch Ltd EsE A BRA A
27/F., Stelux House, AU JUHE T
698 Prince Edward Road East, KFHEHR 698 5%
San Po Kong, Kowloon, HONG KONG BRI 27 B

3/F., Kader Building
22 Kai Cheung Road, Kowloon Bay
Kowloon, HONG KONG

e Thong Sia Optics (Hong Kong) Company Limited

A JLRE RO 22 9%
BRI R =4

MOEEE (i) A PR )

Unit 502-06, Stelux House, 1 JLREHT i
698 Prince Edward Road East, KFHEHR 698 5%

San Po Kong, Kowloon, HONG KONG

Lg% 0 502-06

J Thong Sia Watch Company Limited T8 YRS AT BR A W)
21/F., Stelux House U JUBEHT T i
698 Prince Edward Road East KTFEHR 698 9%
San Po Kong, Kowloon, HONG KONG [ S/AE LR

e Thong Tai Watch Company Limited AR ERA PR ]
21/F., Stelux House B it JUHE B i
698 Prince Edward Road East KR 698 97
San Po Kong, Kowloon, HONG KONG FOLRgEE 0 21 #

o Stelux-Thong Sia (Shanghai) Trading Limited
3/F, Building 1, Industrial Park, 951 Hutai Road,
Shanghai, PRC

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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Baoshi (Shanghai) Company Limited
3/F, Building 1, Industrial Park,
951 Hutai Road, Shanghai, PRC

Stelux-Thong Sia (Guangdong) Trading Limited
Rooms 3701-3707, R&F Well Center,
Jiang Nan Da Dao Zhong Rd, Guangzhou, PRC

Baoshi (Guangdong) Company Limited
Rooms 3701-3707, R&F Well Center,
Jiang Nan Da Dao Zhong Rd, Guangzhou, PRC

Stelux-Thong Sia (Beijing) Trading Limited
Rooms 1101-1102, Yu Lin Da Sha,

2nd Alley Xiangjunnanli,

Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC

Baoshi (Beijing) Company Limited
Rooms 1101-1102, Yu Lin Da Sha,
2nd Alley Xiangjunnanli,
Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC

Shibao (Chongging) Trading Limited
Room 1-3, 18/F Tower 10, Longhu Times Tianjie,
Yuzhong District, Chonggqing, PRC

Baoqing (Chongqing) Trading Limited
Room 1-3, 18/F Tower 10, Longhu Times Tianjie,
Yuzhong District, Chongging, PRC

TAIWAN

Wholesale Trading

Thong Tai (Taiwan) Company Limited
9/F., No. 102

Song Lung Road

Taipei (110)

TAIWAN

o HH (L) REEHRAF
Fp R L 3 T U IR E K 951 5%
oS [ [ 1 R 3

o EGIEIN (EHD) P AR
F IR J3E T I I VT T R B 180 B
R0 3701-07 F

o EH R BOLIRETA PR
P[RR T T R YT K R I 180 B
R0 3701-07 F
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R b T D e R AR R
MWHFRE1101-1102 F
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MACAU

Retail
o City Chain (Macau) Co Ltd

o Optical 88 (Macau) Ltd
Rua de S. Domingos,

n° 21-A, em Macau

MALAYSIA

Retail and Wholesale Trading
o City Chain (M) Sdn Bhd

o Optical 88 Eyecare (M) Sdn Bhd
G8, Jalan Puteri 7/13A
Bandar Puteri
47100 Puchong
Selangor Darul Ehsan
MALAYSIA

J Thong Sia Sdn Bhd (87055-A)
CP 27, Suite 2601-04, 26th Floor, Central Plaza
34, Jalan Sultan Ismail
50250 Kuala Lumpur
MALAYSIA

J Thong Sia Optical (M) Sdn Bhd
CP27, Suite 2601-04
26th Floor, Central Plaza
34 Jalan Sultan Ismail
50250 Kuala Lumpur
MALAYSIA

THAILAND

Retail and Wholesale Trading
o City Chain (Thailand) Co Ltd

. Optical 88 (Thailand) Co Ltd

e Thong Sia (Thailand) Ltd
347, 349 Muang Thong Thani
Bondstreet Road
Bangpood Subdistrict
Pakkred District
Nonthaburi 11120
THAILAND

1 73 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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City Chain (M) Sdn Bhd

Optical 88 Eyecare (M) Sdn Bhd
G8, Jalan Puteri 7/13A

Bandar Puteri

47100 Puchong

Selangor Darul Ehsan
MALAYSIA

Thong Sia Sdn Bhd (87055-A)

CP 27, Suite 2601-04, 26th Floor, Central Plaza
34, Jalan Sultan Ismail

50250 Kuala Lumpur

MALAYSIA

Thong Sia Optical (M) Sdn Bhd
CP27, Suite 2601-04

26th Floor, Central Plaza

34 Jalan Sultan Ismail

50250 Kuala Lumpur
MALAYSIA

T NHIRE 5 T

City Chain (Thailand) Co Ltd
Optical 88 (Thailand) Co Ltd

Thong Sia (Thailand) Ltd

347, 349 Muang Thong Thani
Bondstreet Road,

Bangpood Subdistrict
Pakkred District

Nonthaburi 11120
THAILAND



COMPANY DIRECTORY
AFERRG

SINGAPORE

Retail and Wholesale Trading
o City Chain Stores (S) Pte Ltd

o Optical 88 (S) Pte Ltd
138 Joo Seng Road, #06-01
Singapore 368361
SINGAPORE

e Thong Sia Co (S) Pte Ltd

e Thong Sia Optical (S) Pte Ltd
50 Kallang Avenue, #06-03
Singapore 339505
SINGAPORE

SWITZERLAND

Watch Supply Chain Management and Trading

. Universal Geneve S.A.
. Solvil et Titus S.A.

o Pronto Watch S.A.
38, chemin du Grand Puits
Case Postale 128
1217 Meyrin 2
SWITZERLAND

. Catena S.A.
les Vernets 2,
2035 Corcelles NE
SWITZERLAND

N

ES VSO E
e City Chain Stores (S) Pte Ltd

Optical 88 (S) Pte Ltd

138 Joo Seng Road, #06-01
Singapore 368361
SINGAPORE

e Thong Sia Co (S) Pte Ltd

J Thong Sia Optical (S) Pte Ltd
50 Kallang Avenue, #06-03
Singapore 339505
SINGAPORE
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o Universal Geneve S.A.
o Solvil et Titus S.A.

o Pronto Watch S.A.
38, chemin du Grand Puits
Case Postale 128
1217 Meyrin 2
SWITZERLAND

° Catena S.A.
les Vernets 2,
2035 Corcelles NE
SWITZERLAND
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR
g J ki

Latest time for lodging transfers of Shares for ERXR M EZEER M
registration in order to qualify for AR HERR
attending and voting at the BFEAEIRELRE
Annual General Meeting ZERERFE
4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 11 August 2016 201648 A 11 H (RHM) T4 MR =+
Latest date and time for return of proxy RERRBAFAERREEREZEE
form for the Annual General Meeting HH R R
not less than 48 hours before the time of the Annual General R A R BRI [E] 48 /R
Meeting
Closure of the register of members of the EENERMBFECUEERERD
Company for determining the identity of BEREIARE LREZRRSH
Shareholders who are entitled to attend 201648 H 12 H (BT =
and vote at the Annual General Meeting 201648 H 17 H (B#1=)
Friday, 12 August 2016 to (B EREmH)
Wednesday, 17 August 2016 (both days inclusive)
Annual General Meeting RRBFRE
11:30 a.m. on Wednesday, 17 August 2016 20164F8 17 H (BM=Z) B H—K=+4r
Email Contacts PR EE
Investor Relations: ir@stelux.com WEEBR © ir@stelux.com
Shareholder’s Enquiries: shareholdersenquiries@stelux.com &R A © shareholdersenquiries@stelux.com

1 75 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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